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CORPORATE PROFILE

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred
to as the "Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter
of longitudinal welded steel pipes and is engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). The Company has been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 1938) since February 2010. The Group's steel pipes
are mainly used for energy transmission including oil and gas
transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city gas networks,
and petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction, offshore
engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group’s production bases and offices are located in Panyu,
Zhuhai, Lianyungang, Nanjing, Ningbo of the PRC, Singapore,
Dubai of the United Arab Emirates and Hong Kong, with 9
longitudinal submerged arc-welded ("LSAW"), 4 spiral submerged
arc-welded ("SSAW”) and 1 electric resistance welded ("ERW")
production lines and other production lines with a combined
annual production capacity of 3,380,000 tonnes as at 31 December
2017.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research
and development, holding 102 patents (including 31 invention
patents) and 11 international certificates and having a long
standing international and nationwide track record. Furthermore,
the Group is the first and only steel pipe manufacturer in the
PRC to manufacture and successfully develop deep sea welded
steel pipes for the use at a water depth of 3,500m and a qualified
supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. Our Joint Venture in Saudi
Arabia is also the qualified supplier of Saudi Aramco. The Group
is the only welded steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC that has
received five national honours and awards, including “Gold Cup
Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical Products”, "Superior
Quality Award for Actual Quality of Metallurgical Products”,
“National Key New Products”, “National-recognised Enterprise
Technology Centre” and "High and New Technology Enterprise”,
and host a "Academician Workstation” and is the main drafter of
the national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in the
PRC.
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FRHEES

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
would like to present to you the audited consolidated annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. In
the difficult and challenging year of 2017, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB873.3 million (2016: RMB1,443.5
million), decreased by approximately 39.5% compared with that of
2016. Loss for the year was approximately RMB873.8 million. Loss
per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
was approximately RMBO0.86 (2016: loss per share of RMB1.48).
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

In light of low oil price and political instability across the globe,
2017 was also a year of difficult operation for the steel pipe
industry. These factors had a material impact on the oil and gas
industry and even the global economy. The Group’s poor results
were attributable to the fact that major oil and gas projects were
launched at a slow pace in both domestic and international
markets, and that the recovery of demand for steel pipes fell
below market expectation. This resulted in a fall of domestic and
international sales.
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Fortunately, the whole oilfield services industry has been
recovering since 2018, with new projects launched continuously by
three large oil companies. We had obtained two new projects from
China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation in early 2018, namely
the Natural Gas Pipeline Project from Qianjian to Shaoguan (the
end of the whole artery of the Xinjiang coal-to-gas transmission
pipeline) and Luyu Oil Pipeline Project in Shandong. In addition,
we will also provide steel pipes for the Yacheng 13-1 Pipelines
Project, Gaolan Branch of South China Gas Field Development
Project of China National Offshore Oil Corporation.

During the year under review, the Group accomplished three major
milestones, including:

1. Commencement of sales of the serviced apartments at
Phase Il of Golden Dragon City Fortune Plaza;

2. The obtaining of relevant international certificates for the
production plant in Saudi Arabia; and entering into the list
of suppliers of Saudi Aramco as well as starting trial orders;

3. Participation in the largescale international project, UK
offshore wind power project.
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FRHES
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Besides, in early 2018, the Group announced a plan (the “Plan”)
for the future development of the land (the “Land”) where its Panyu
production plant was located. A subsidiary of the Group and the
project partner will change the use of the Land from “industrial”
to “residential and commercial” (the “Change of Land Use”). The
Group expects that the Plan will provide the Group with financial
resources and help implement the Change of Land Use, and that
the project partner's well-established reputation in the real estate
sector will unleash and raise the potential economic value of
the Land. The Land, located in Qinghe Road, Shiji Town, Panyu
District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province of the PRC, covers
an area of approximately 287,000 square meters, which accounted
for roughly three fourths of the total land area of the Panyu factory
site. Originally, the Land was occupied by the Group’s Panyu
factory which housed key facilities for manufacturing welded steel
pipes. The Group has already relocated one of the production
lines in the Panyu factory to Lianyungang, whilst the remaining
two will be relocated to other production bases by the end of 2018.
Currently, most of the Group’s production activities take place at
the production bases in Lianyungang and Zhuhai.

As an ongoing project of the Group, Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (“GDC”) is a largescale integrated commercial complex,
occupying roughly a fourth of the total land area of the Panyu
factory site. Phase one covers a permitted construction area
(including underground construction area) of approximately
135,000 square meters. On the other hand, presale has begun
for some of the units at phase two, which covers an area of
approximately 191,000 square meters. The total permitted
construction area of GDC (including underground construction
area) is approximately 550,000 square meters. We believe that
GDC will become one of our stable income sources in the long run,
providing solid financial support for the steel pipe business and
offer stable cash flow to help improve our financial position.
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The Group will relocate its production facilities from Panyu to
Lianyungang and Zhuhai, the Group’s key production bases
in China in the future. Currently, the production bases in both
Lianyungang and Zhuhai have obtained relevant qualification,
certification and awards for the manufacturing of various steel
pipes. In 2017, the Zhuhai base earned national and provincial
titles, such as “Guangdong Engineering Technology Research
Center for Oceaneering Pipe Material and Equipment*” ([ER & /&
FIREMREEIERMHAES L), “National Standard: LSAW
for High-temperature and High-pressure Pipelines*” (B X 1Z %
(FREREERE#BIEZMEE) ), “Guangdong Enterprise
Technical Center of Provincial Level*” (EHR&E & At ERFMTH L)
and “Guangdong Postdoctoral Innovation and Practice Base*” (/&
REBLTRANEREN).

Leveraging on our brand, outstanding performance and track
record, we have participated in a number of overseas large-scale
projects that require high-quality steel pipes. Such projects
include new orders from a British windfarm and the refinery
and petrochemical integrated development (RAPID) project of
Petroliam Nasional Berhad (“PETRONAS”), a Malaysian oil and
gas company. The supply of steel pipes to such major projects
will elevate our position in the global energy market and the
oceaneering equipment industry. In the meantime, development
is being carried out as scheduled at our production plant in Saudi
Arabia. With 1ISO 9001 and API certification obtained, the plant
has started commercial production in small batches. The plant
has one LSAW production line with a capacity of 300,000 tonnes,
capable of meeting the demand from the Middle East. We believe
that following our establishment of a new plant in the Middle East,
business relationships with major oil and gas industry players in
that region and our footprints in overseas markets, our brand will
be more extensively recognized in the region and we can capture
more business opportunities.

— T EERERE
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PROSPECT AND GOING FORWARD

There were positive signs of industry recovery, for example:
the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC
announced the “13th Five-Year Plan for Oil Development” and
the “13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas Development”, pursuant
to which a total of 17,000 km of crude and refined oil pipelines
as well as 40,000 km of natural gas pipelines are targeted to be
constructed by 2020; the National Energy Administration issued
the “13th Five-Year Plan for Wind Power Development”, setting
out promotions on construction projects of offshore wind power
facilities in four provinces and a number of first-tier cities; the “One
Belt One Road Strategy” (“OBOR strategy”) was initiated; and the
development of offshore engineering equipment manufacturing
industry, plus those pipeline construction projects of offshore
platforms, offshore windmills, offshore structure pipes and bridges
in China were accelerated. With large oil and gas projects coming
our way, we expect to have left the darkest days behind us.

Following an increase in bidding activities for pipeline projects in
early 2018, we expect the demand for steel pipes will rebound. In
fact, the “13th Five-Year Plan” for oil and gas pipeline networks
has been launched, in which it is expected that the oil and gas
pipeline would reach 165,000 km by 2020, representing an
extension of 47%. And there are 6 crude oil pipelines and 8 new
refined oil pipelines to be constructed under the plan. Therefore,
it would be another golden era for the development of oil and gas
pipelines during the “13th Five-Year Plan”.

The PRC government intends to promote clean energy as one of
the major sources of energy supply at a faster pace in the future.
The gas consumption of cities in China is expected to increase
by 33% each year and the number of gas pipelines is expected to
grow by 10.20% annually, with the construction of 14 new pipelines
for natural gas, which will boost the demand for steel pipes.

China’'s OBOR strategy and the establishment of the Asian
Infrastructure Investment Bank (“AlIB”) are expected to fuel
the constructions of infrastructure and hardware developments
in Asia and boost the economic growth in the region. As a
world-recognised pipe manufacturer, the Company is poised to
capture the precious opportunities created by the implementation
of the OBOR and the establishment of AlIB. The demand for
pipes to be used in infrastructure projects and oil and gas pipeline
installations is expected to increase substantially.

10 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

RER AT

TRERERAEZECEH (CARERI+=-A]
MED RRARBRI+ =R B8  RER=
T oTHEFTERE2REL7,0002 B8 E R MK TR E
B 40,0002 B RAREE -BIRERBEM (&
BERIT=-AIHRE) TTHENERZEA—K
WS ERERMEERER T [ — 8 B
([T—H—BR S MEBFTRREEREENS
B-UAR#ESHFEGEFE BLRAE - HLEEER
HIEREEBEEENER - BAKREARIER B
S BMEHEEAREANIA -

BESFYVHNEEBEERREDEL  RMEFHE
kAR ERB-FE L OAREANI+=5]
FRFAEELA -REPEL N _FT=_FTF HRE
MIEET G EDI6 5B AE B RIBERAT% o[ T=-
FIFRHABEERESER NG KA hEBREHE
NG BREEREEFHENX —S2KH-

FEBFEENRERERFERATZRRERES —
EWMHRARERETER BT TIENNZ3%, MERE
EIEH KT FEILNNL0.20%, KARESBEREFE I
16 #5 HEEDEH B R SKag 0 -

B [ —& — 5% ) BB R s M AR RE IR ERTT ([
BAITDOKIEHE REMNERREERRE MR
EAFE S AHESELEER - ERERAEE
ERERN ARBEERBREN [ —F ] RAZE
BITM&EROEHREE-TARSENEZER AR
EERKERASEBNELBABRT -

Annual Report 2017



Moreover, it is expected that through the Change of Land Use,
the price of the Panyu Land will be significantly increased, which
will bring considerable income to us in the foreseeable future that
will vigorously enhance the level of cash flows and provide strong
support to the long-term development and sustainability of the
Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all our staff members
for performing their tasks diligently in such a challenging year.
| am also grateful to our shareholders for their great support to
the Group during a consolidation stage where it is accumulating
strength for a prosperous future. The Board is full of confidence
in the management team and its ability. As we grow a stronger
foundation, our future will be even brighter.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong Province, China
28 March 2018
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AWARDS AN

RECOGNITIONS

1996

EREEFEHER
(ERECBEEER)
Guangdong Province
Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)
GPEC

2001
BHNREEIERE
(BNTHBEMEESS)
Certificate for the
Recognition of High and New
Technology Enterprises*
(Guangzhou City Science and
Technology Committee*)

200 5 (Renewed in
2011/2012/2015 4 )

AEERBYEE

SRR (BREE)

(TEIRE T XS )

Gold Cup Prize for Actual

Quality of Metallurgical

Products* - ERW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

1997

REERBYEBSME
(REIASTE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*)

2004
PEAMEAERER
2004 a3
(PEAANAHIEIREIENGS)
China Reserved Petroleum
Pipeline Manufacturing Industry -
Top Ten Enterprises in 2004*
(China Petroleum and Petro-chemical
Equipment Industry Association*)

2006

2005 FEREERER
SR
(EREAEBRMWEESR )
Leader in Quality
Management in Guangdong
Province in 2005*

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2002 st

)
EREEEER
(ERIETHEER)
Guangdong Province
Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province
Bureau for Administration of
Industry and Commerce*)

200 5 (Renewed in
2011/2012/2015 % )

REERBYEER

SRR (EABIEE)

(TEMSETEGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual

Quality of Metallurgical

Products* - LSAW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2007

EY S g L=l
(PERBEME)
China Torch Item*
(Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)

/

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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2007 Soorsiis
EREBEER
(EREEERMEER)

Guangdong Province Top

Brand Product*

(Guangdong Province Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2007

BRI D — S8
(BNTARBR)
First Prize for Sci-Tech

Achievement in Guangzhou

City*
(The People’s Government of
Guangzhou City*)

T EFFERE

2007

2007 F & R 1 3 8l 5 42 8
EERAIER
(EREALEBREERERD
HRBBEETEEY)
Best Original Prod!
Innovative Recor
Guangdong Ei

2009

BEREFESE
—ZBRETERRE
(BEREABBEREREABRERER )
Guangdong Province Patent

Excellence Award* (Three-
roller forming technology and
equipment)

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Personnel & Intellectual Property Office
of Guangdong Province*)

200 (Renewed in

2011/2014 %)
BREHHEM D
(BERERNBEIE EREAVBE &
REERBBRE  WRELHHER )
Guangdong High and New Technology

Enterprise*
(Department of Science and Technology of
Province*, Province

Department of Finance*, Guangdong
Provincial Office of the State Administration
of Taxation*, and Guangdong Provincial
Local Taxation Bureau*)

20 I o (Renewed in 2013

2013 %)
CES s |
BYBHEGLE
(ERPEBRERHE DX BB/ EME
FLEGhY)
Key High and New Technology
Enterprise of China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development
Centre of Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)

RINEEE

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

2008

EREAREES R
SERBETERRE
(FERABE)

International Exhibition of
Inventions Golden Awards*
(Three-roller forming
technology and equip =)
(China Inventions Association*)

200 %er;wed in2013

)
ERESHNEMER
( BERAEPHBEMTE )
High-tech Product of
Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and
Technology of Guangdong
Province*)

2010

B R E e FE B M /0
(ARBERHEE - B - MBER -
AT - ERBHAR )
National-recognised Enterprise
Technology Centre*

(National Development and Reform

Ce ission*, Science and T
Department*, Finance Department*,
General Administration of Customs*,
State Administration of Taxation*)

KIRAMARRMEZRERDA
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

2010

E+NEZERB

RESRR LREHEBRXAE
RREE

(FERBEHE )

1st Runner-up of The 19th

National Invention Exhibition*
Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*

(Invention Association of China*)

2010

BERE TRFKMPEDL
(ERENBREME - FREBRBRNHER
B® WREKCAESZER)
Technology Research and
Development Centre of

Guangdong Province*

2010

RREMBHEM — S5
(BEREARBA)

First Prize for Sci-tech of
Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2010

BEMTH AR R
(BENTREETEE A )
Innovative Enterprise of
Guangzhou*

(Technology and City Enhancement
Steering Committee of Guangzhou*)

(Department of Science and
Technology of Guangdong
Province*, Development and
Reform Commission of
Guangdong Province*,
Economic and Trade
Commission of

Guangdong

Province*)

2011

EREMBEE RS
(BRENBEMER )
Intellectual Property
Demonstration Enterprise of
Guangdong Province*
(Intellectual Property Department
of Guangdong Province*)

2011

ERE HEHE RS
(ERELCEBEE ERELHE
RS )

Top 10 Original Brands of
Guangdong Province*
(Association of Enterprises of
Guangdong Province*, Association
of Enterpreneurs of Guangdong
Province*)

14 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2010

EREBEAIHER

(FRENBEIE RREBRALEZEE
ERECENGESEEE - EREMBE -
EREMHRERD  MREEBRLTEER )

Indigenous Innovation Product of
Guangdong Province*

of Province*,
d ion of Province*,
Province®,

Finance Department of Guangdong Province*, Intellectual
Property Department of Guangdong Province*, Administration
of ity P Province*)

E-TEEZEEH

RESRR THE

MR RERE

(PEBHHE)

1st Runner-up of The 20th National
Invention Exhibition*
Five-electrode submerged arc
welding equipment

(Invention Association of China*)

2011

R+ THESG
(BEREARBA)
Academician Workstation
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

Annual Report 2017



2013-2016

R AR %

(ERENBHIE EREARRANEZSE - ER
BEANEEZRR  RREARBAEEREESR
EEEEE EREARBEER  ERELIS)
Innovative Enterprise of Guangdong

Province*

(The Guangdong Provincial Department of

Science and Technology, the Guangdong

Development and Reform Commission, the

Economic & Information Commission of

Guangdong Province, the State - owned

Assets Supervision and Administration

Commission of the Guangdong

Province, the Guangdong

Intellectual Property Office and

the Guangdong Provincial

Federation of Trade

Unions*)

2014

ABRRE
(ERAEAGE)

Guangdong Province

EREEREEREAIE

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of

(Guangdong Credit Association)

2014

BEERR (HAEIURE)
GEL L R

Prime Quality Award - LSAW
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2016

EREN BRI — 55
(RRRARBRE)

(ERE AR )
First Prize of Sci-Tech

Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

RINEEE
AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

2013

EREBBHMRE
(EREARBA)

Science Technological Award
of Guangdong Province*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2014

TEHACEREYER
BEEER
(TERSTEGS)
Superior Quality Award

for Actual Quality of China
Metallurgical Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2016

BEERMRSRMES R
(EE®mHARBUT)

Science Technological Progress
Award of Lianyungang City

(The People’s Government of
Lianyungang City)

KIRAMARRMEZRERDA



QUALITY CERTIFICATIONS

REBECESSHEREERRE -
The Group was received numerous international quality certifications.

BRAE
Saudi Arabia

1996 Bzt 1996 Biste 2016 2016

1S09001 API API 1S09001
(BBRERER) (ZERHBE) (EERMBE) (TUV NORD CERT GmbH)
(Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency) (American Petroleum Institute) (American Petroleum Institute)

2002 5555 87 200683y 2011 Sy 201 13

BV DNV ASME CNAS

(CEEIREARAL ) (R AAR AL ) (B IR ) (PEEETIEERRATEES)

(Bureau Veritas) (Det Norske Veritas) (American Society of (China National Accreditation SerAvice of
Mechanical Engineers) Conformity Assessment)

2014 2016 2016 2016 1999 o3 )
ABS CAcQC CASC CIATA CE
( EEMARL ) (PEIT R BAREMN (PEITERBRARLN (PEIEBBERN (BB AR )
HeE) HeE) HeE) (Lloyd's Register of Shipping)
(China Industry (China Industry (China Industry
Anticorroion Anticorroion Anticorroion
echnology Association) Technology Association) Technology Association)
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

The Group has a long track record of involvement in onshore and REBHEABEACBARBEEIER (FEREBE) %%
offshore projects domestically and internationally. k&

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE
ERENFERLHBERE

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE BE (0) F4
Oil Pipeline Project, TOTAL Automation Company, Middle East 90 2017
EEREPARTREAEETLR

High Pressure Gas Pipeline from Xiamen-Tonganmen Station to Huadian 630 2016-2017
Distributed Energy Station,the [Il Branch of West-to-east Natural Gas Transmission

Projects, Xiamen China Resources Gas Co., Ltd., China

EMERREERARNARRG =-REFIRLZHEZEEESHAELRERARSE

EHrIR

Hukou-Jinshawan-Pengze Branch,Jiangxi Gas Pipeline Network Project, Jiangxi 410 2016-2017
Natural Gas Co., Ltd., China

FEIAEARAREBRAGDNIAEARREA AL W E-—ZEXR

Foundation and Associated Works Contract for Main Works Package 1 for 3,413 2016-2017
Expansion of United Christian Hospital, United Christian Hospital, Hongkong

EEEBEHBABERERIRE B BFrFIENMERBBIEAL

Kai Tak Development-Stage 5A Infrastructure at Former North Apron Area, 595 2016-2017
Hongkong Civil Engineering and Development Department, Hongkong
EETATIREREMIEERBERCAERREILEHITTE

REPSOL Tarragona Spain 100 2016-2017
PRUE T B EE A AR m 18 B

Tuberia Recubierta-Gasoducto Mamonal Paiva., Promigas S.A. E.S.P, U.S.A 6,623 2016-2017
S B ) % R B TE B

Realisation Project for Pumping Station SP1-HEH/R-OB1, Sonatrach SPA. Algeria 1,253 2016-2017
P R R 1) 20 B 3R A A B 2R U IE B

Water Diversion Pipeline for Small Hydropower Stations, Madagascar 305 2016-2017
5 INAT AN 5K /N BUK B L 5| K EKE E

Order of Bend Pipes, Pipeline Equipment (Beijing) Co., Ltd., China 248 2016-2017
PHREBEEB (L) ERARZEEREE

Anhui Natural Gas — Ningguo-Huangshan Branch, Jixi-Huangshan Section, 5,100 2016
Jiangbei Industrial Concentrated Area Project, China

TRZHERARAEROERAFNEHR -—SIIXE BE-—SILR TILEXSES

EXRTE

Petroleum Nasional Bhd — RAPID Project, Malaysia 1,080 2016
55 2K 75 32 B 5l A FIRAPID BRUs L TR B

Corpac Ore Slurry Project, USA 1,176 2016
Z B Corpac ¥ A 15 1H B

GC-31 Process Piping Project, Middle East 1,790 2016
HEGC-3LMEEBIER

Sugian City Gas Pipe line Project, China 1,030 2016

TEEETERREBIRE

T EFFERE

BIRMAARAEEZRERLT 17



TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HE BE (0) F4H
Gas Project in Gaoyou Economic Development Zone 413 2015-2016
FEEBEERERERARMAIRE

PetroChina Power Plant and Oilfield Project, Middle East 1,455 2016
FEAEIREEZRXARPTREREL LHHEIER

L&T GC30 Project, Middle East 1,036 2016
F R L&T GC30IE B

Heavy Oil Development Program, Middle East 1,970 2016
mEREHMAEER AR

Abu Dhabi Gas Project 352 2016
P+ tE BSL s B B 1E B

Canada Oil Sands Project 2,690 2015
IEWNELSIEN=

Offshore Riser Pipe Project 104 2015
EBERERKEER

Zhuhai City West Water Plant-Quanwu Water Plant Expansion Project, China 1,366 2015
REIBKEMARKE - EZHKBRERLEEEELR

Dubai Oil Project, Petro Energy Dorsa 783 2015
RERMEFEERBERAFIEE

Phase Il, Crude Oil Pipeline Project, Sinopec 3,353 2015
mARLEERKES _HIIE

High-pressure Gas Transmission Pipeline Project, Chengdu City Gas Co, China 6,230 2015
FEIKHATRAREREERA AN SRR RARSERFHAEE LR

USA Project 3,696 2015
EBIE R

L&T GC30 Project, Middle East 2,148 2015
R L&T GC301E &

Tangyan-Gu'an Complex Modificate Pipeline Project, Sinopec 1,562 2015
POCERERE T BN EGBRETR

Tianwan nuclear power project of 4# unit high pressure steam and low pressure 149 2015
steam pipeline project

MRBAGHEBRERECRAFAEEREHBMHMBESER A REREREEEA

Sub-transmission Station in Gujiao — Taiyuan Section, Taiyuan Gas Pipeline Project 1,949 2015
RE-ARBREEIRARDH I - KRR

ZCINA Algeria Project 30,490 2015
MR R AR ZCINAB R E B8 T2

Project, Middle East 121 2015

hREB-RAERPLSHBEESBENELETE

18 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
EXABYEEFLLEBRE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year

HH HE () F 7

Oman Project 500 2015

B £ 7 0m 5 3% 9 BB R BUEIE B

Yuncheng-Hejin Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi Natural Gas, China 2,072 2015

RELARAREZE-ERBEREBETLR

Sour Gas Pipeline Project, Middle East 1,000 2015

REREMERE S

Reggane Nord Development Project, Sonatrach, Algeria 576 2015

MR EAMEEFERA TR H#AEFAEEE

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, China 2,929 2015

PREEZETIRE (FB)ERAASERL-BEOR—HI5ELER

Luomahu-No.2 Waterworks Construction Water Pipeline Project, China 5,584 2015

H B AR M T KT B AR N T 58 S8/ b 2 38 /KRR 1A B

Taizhou Gas Pipeline Project,China Chemical Engineering Construction Co 2,883 2015

PECETIREETNERARQARAMAREEIE

Macao Taipa MGM Hotel Cooling water Project 323 2015
Bk F iR Rk TR

PetroChina, Mozambique Oil Project 381 2015

PRBERERESERE ALK mmEEE

Oiltanking Beaumont New Finger Pier Marine Construction Project, Texas, USA 2,377 2015

% B 1= M Oiltanking Beaumont ¥7 Y 5 58 /5 J¥ 3 3% 18 B

Gas Project, Middle East 1,977 2015

RRXARIER

Hangzhou Natural Gas Project, China 2,370 2015

REHINRARIER

Reggane Nord Development Project, Algeria 7,103 2014-2015

PR R A H A ERAEEE

Gasoducto Andino del Sur Project, Peru 57,700 2015

WA R IE A

Shenhua Coal Carbon Indirect Liquefaction Project, China 3,848 2015

hEEEHEERMIER

Gas/Qil Pipeline Project, Canada 3,198 2014

e X&) hERIER

Phase Il, Weizhou Oilfield Jacket Project, Shenzhen Chiwan, China 2,151 2014

RERYIFEEM A RS EREEIRR

High-rise Building Project, Foshan, China 1,565 2014

hE LS EREE A

Gas Gathering Project, Chengdu, China 200 2014

B R AR SR AR S T2

T EFFERE

WIRARARMEZRERLT 19



TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Dongshan Double Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi, China 5,305 2014
RELFERILERRREBILIZ

Jiajie Power Plant Gas Pipeline Project, China 4,072 2014
RS E M R E B LR

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Guangdong-Scenic Hill Project, 560 2014
Hong Kong

EEBRNBRBREABSRREABEESARTHRILER

Yibal 3RD Stage Depletion Compression Project, Oman 512 2014
M € nmEFEREIER £ =1

Gas Pipeline Project, Pakistan 844 2014
EEHEERIER

Sek Areas Flowlines Project, Sweden 2,715 2014
I st B R AR R E R TR

Southeast Asia Pipeline Project, Southeast Asia 2,600 2014
R -REEEEHEE

Gas/Qil Pipeline Project, Canada 7,355 2014
e K& hERIEE

CNRL Slurry Pipeline Project, Canada 7,616 2014-2015
A& K CNRL #8378 B

SSUT Gas Project, PTT, Thailand 1,488 2014
ZRBHREBIEE

Indorama Eleme Fertilizer & Chemical Limited, Nigeria 1,670 2014
2= X A5 Indorama st ZAERHE THR A &

Changging Oil Field Project, SINOPEC, China 268 2014
FEFAERERBIER

Gas Pipeline Project, Shaanxi, China 6,537 2014
FERARREBETRR

Uzbekistan Gas Project, Lukoil 20,521 2014
ERAMRARSZARAEHRER

Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, 2,000 2014
Hong Kong

BEEEM-REA-EHESRKERER

“Hope” Flume Dam Project, Ecuador 31,949 2014
EMZE [ #E] EESEE

USA Project 4,788 2014
EEIEH

Water Project for Erdos Deep Coal factory, China 10,680 2014

rh B 5B 6 2% BT ORI TR 4538 B RSN K IE B
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
EXABYEEFLLEBRE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Highway Road High-pressure Gas Transmission Pipeline, Chengdu, China 1,677 2014
hEXESERAESBREREE

Southern Section of Jingzhou-Gongan-Shishou Natural Gas Pipeline Project, 1,652 2014
Hubei, China

RERIEEFIMN - A —AEARAARREBHEABER

Phase Il, Uzbekistan Project, Uzbekistan 26,076 2014
55w A8 —HiIE B

Yong-Tai-Wen Natural Gas Pipeline Project, Zhejiang, China 27,997 2014
FEMNIFAARBEERRRBAREB LR

Changzhou Wujin Gas Storage Project, Suzhou, China 6,035 2013-2014
RN EMNRERRIER

Middle East Projects, Beijing, China 2,450 2013-2014
REdE R ERIA R

Hangzhou Natural Gas Project, China 4,500 2013-2014
BN RARIER

Yizheng — Changling Crude Oil Pipeline, Yizheng — Jiujiang section, SINOPEC, 6,013 2013-2014
China

REAHEIROAERAREERES AABETE-—RERBEREITI-NVIR

LNG Pipeline Project, Phase IlI, SINOPEC, China 8,348 2013-2014
mEP O EREREBIIESE 4t

LNG Pipeline Project, Phase IlI, Guangxi Natural Gas Pipeline Project, China 1,078 2013-2014
HEEARAREEEEEARAEBIIESE 4t

ADCO, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 2,135 2013-2014
P REE & B REIM M ALLLIE B

Suzhou Baorun Gas Project, China 6,033 2013-2014
AR E R R IE B

Jiangyin City Heat Supply Network Southeast Pipeline Project, China 5,200 2013
REDTRE =2 (RER) T2

Gathering Pipeline, CNPC, China 3,300 2013
mEPHEEYERBELTISRERIAR

X90M Small Batch Trial Project, CNPC, China 400 2013
B ARMKARRNDIER XOOM /Mt EHEIER

Siping — Baishan Gas Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 12,600 2013
PEPEHEEARET-AILRAREBE IR

Sichuan — East Gas Pipeline, Jiangsu Yutai Section, Jiangsu Natural Gas Project, 4,200 2013
China

FEI#HEARARER I ARREXEREBEBIE

Zhoushan Fishing Island Oil Depot Project, CNPC, China 10,600 2013

FEORRAREBRE=ZTEDRAALINEHETRE

T EFFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EREE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
EXABYEEFLEBHE &)

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Shanxi Zhongli Flange Project, China 500 2013
AL PR RS A R IE B

Jincheng — Houma pipeline project, Qinshui — Duanshi section, Shanxi Qinshui 2,800 2013

Guoxin Coalbed Gas Project, China
RELTOKEEBRGATAEEEN - EHEERELELE K -HEER

The Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Hong Kong 3,600 2013
BEBEBHRRKNIBIER

Provincial Gas Transmission Pipeline Project to Nakhon Ratchasima, PTT, Thailand 28,825 2013
ZHIER

Shell, Canada 1,000 2013
B WNEg=

Indonesia Project, Indonesia 380 2013
Heme (fe)

Chemical Industry Project, China 4,800 2013
HEBLTIER

Uzbekistan Gas Project, Uzbekistan 16,100 2012
SEpw B HRIER

TieLing — JinXi Crude Oil Double Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 13,600 2012-2013
mEP O hEE - RERAEBEEEIRE

West-to-East Phase Ill Ji An — Fu Zhou Section, CNPC, China 13,400 2012-2013
RERORETRG - GBEIRST T BN

Zhejiang Gas Project, China 27,000 2012-2013
R BH T 8 R IA B

Syncrude, Canada 4,225 2012
& K Syncrude B> A )18 B

Canada Shell Oil Sand Project, Canada 11,028 2012
MERF WY IEE

West-East Gas Pipeline Project (Nanning — Baise Section), Phase Il CNPC, China 13,273 2012
FEAHRARROERATARRBEE_FHA R (FE—BRIER)

Shenwei Coal Slurry Pipeline Project, Shaanxi Coal Industry Co., Ltd., China 71,729 2012
REREREROERAGGEEBRKER

Huainan — Shanghai Ultra High Voltage Power Grids, State Grid Corporation of 42,610 2012

China (SGCC), China
mEDERE - EERBEMEER  PRIBREHERQA

Guangdong Natural Gas Pipe Network, CNOOC, China 48,274 2010-2011
mEEH s BRERAREA
Gas Pipeline Project, Southeast Asia 49,928 2010-2011

REDRREFER
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EBEE

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Syncrude, Canada 24,352 2010-2011
hnE A Syncrude i A FIER

Shell Nigeria 9,304 2011
HhEERED

Jingbian — XiAn Gas Pipeline Project, Phase IIl, CNPC, China 4,575 2011
FEF AR (FEEATHARAER =)

Turkmengas, Tukemenistan 12,048 2011
+E 2 8 KA F A A Turkmengas 18 B

Halfaya Project, CNPC, China 3,237 2011
AR AR IE B

West-East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, CNPC, Hong Kong 55,946 2011
BEETAHARRE _REEXE

Crude Oil Pipeline SINOPEC, China 10,523 2010-2011
PREFRA(CRBEBIRE

Inner Mongolia Gas, China 14,412 2010-2011
FREARLEREBIRE

Columbia Gas Pipeline Project, Ecopetrol, Columbia 144,669 2010-2011
TRk rH M TERAM AR T RETREESRIRE

Shell Canada, Canada 27,000 2008-2011
g RIRE

China-Russia Oil Pipeline Project Phase Il, CNPC, China 12,182 2010
B o R R m — H#RIE B

Guangdong Gas, China 55,000 2010
TREEREAARER —HPIE

East Siberia — Pacific Ocean, Russia 10,078 2010
B R AENE - KFFRTE

Ampliacion Red Principal de Distribucion de Gas en Lima y Callao Project, Peru 11,350 2010
MBI EIE A

Kinteroni MIPAYA Pipeline Project, Repsol, Peru 17,831 2010
WG RIE B

Syncrude, Canada 13,968 2010
hl& K Syncrude B A ®IE B

West — East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, CNPC, China 47,282 2010
FR B AR PR R e AR

Guangdong Natural Gas Pipe Network, CNOOC, China 61,855 2009-2010
PEPEHERERAREEERAA

GTCL, Bangladesh 35,000 2009

BNUBERRARA A

T EFFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED ONSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
ERENEEXs L EEH&E (@&

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Shell Canada, Canada 20,000 2009
MERZZEMEARIER

Kazakhstan-China Pipeline, CNPC, China 77,400 2009
mER O hR R ERIAR

ESPERANZA Project, CNPC, Chile 36,000 2008
2 A A dR T IE B

Yulin-Jinan Gas Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 14,000 2008
mE R AR - BRRER

Southwest Oil and Gas Pipeline, CNPC, China 40,398 2007-2008
mEPOhTERRREERER

Kurdistan Gas Pipeline Network, The Middle East 23,000 2007
PREMEIMARARERIE

NGC, Nigeria 16,000 2007
EBERERARELR

Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline Project, SINOPEC, China 200,000 2007
REIR A REREIEE

GNL Quintero Project, Chile 11,000 2007
EN&EREEIEAR

Shagyrly-Shomyshty Gas Pipeline, Kazakhstan 11,000 2006
14 & 52 87 18 Shagyrly-Shomyshty &) 5 & 4

Sonatrach, Algeria 7,500 2006
B /8 K2 A 52 A 8 A& &)

Changbei Gas Field Project, Shell, China 3,600 2005
PRI RILREIER

Guangzhou Gas Company, China 14,270 2005
R EM TR AR

Pipe and Piling, Canada 2,250 2005
MEREERF

Western Crude Oil and Product Oil Pipeline, CNPC, China 33,000 2004-2005
H AR o PR SRR A e B 8 T2 IE A

Guangdong Dapeng LNG Company, CNOOC & BP, China 14,523 2004
A R BP BR AR RARBRA A

GTCL, Bangladesh 7,400 2004
MR ERHERA

NOCO, The Middle East 4,000 2002
RERAHEA A
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TRACK RECORD
EBFE

SELECTED OFFSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE
EH#2 IR ESKEREBE

Projects Quantity (MT) Year

H B HE () F 7

Amrun Offshore Piling Project, Rio Tinto, Australia 3,429 2016-2017

NHREERAXF T Amrun B FEEIEB

Gazprom EPC Gas Pipeline Project 9,424 2015

MEFIRARERELIR

Yacheng Oil Pipeline Maintenance Project, CNOOC 180 2015

hSHEREE ML TR

DubaiPenomun1PmeHneinmaHaﬁon 3,448 2015
MF A MFRIEHE T2

Waidiao Island-Cezi Island-Zhenhai, Sinopec Offshore Project 30 2015

hAIMIE-MFE-HEEEEEEFHIRE

Dubai pipeline installation works, Dubai 7,092 2014-2015

BMFEBELTRIRE

Gas Pipeline Project Panama 2,332 2014-2015

BB RXARBEEBIE

Zhuhai Guishan Offshore Windmill Jacket Project, China 2,405 2014

REREEILE FREEERIER

Huangyan and The Surrounding Gas Rolling Development Project, Phase |, 11,620 2013-2014

North of Huangyan Oil and Gas Field Group, CNOOC, China

PEFERm (PE)FRANEERAEAREDNEER TSR

F#EIER

Zhanjiang South Sea Oil Offshore Construction Project, China 800 2013

BRI RS AMTERERIAR

Yong-Tai-Wen Gas Project, Longwan Branch Pipeline, Zhejiang Natural Gas 850 2013

Project, China

MBI ERARIBEREXEEEEERARBRARBREB IR

Shell, Nigeria 1,800 2013

Hhfe AT EIER

Mexico Pemex Platform Project, Mexico 4,640 2012-2013

BEFEFEFLAE

South China Sea Deep Water Gas Development PMT, CNOOC, China 66,238 2011

H A BB R K RN R E B

Liwan Deep Water Gas Development Project, Saipem/Husky/CNOOC, China 51,000 2011

# B Saipem,Husky /# 8 h % & R /8 X AR EIEE

West-East Gas Pipeline Project, Phase Il, Hong Kong Branch, CNPC, China 14,665 2011

RE R AMARRE AR BEXKE

Offshore & Onshore Pipeline Project-Feed, Total, Southeast Asia 15,500 2009

REBENE LLBRIER

T EFFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED OFFSHORE PROJECTS FOR LSAW PIPE (Continued)
EAEBENEESEEEB B& (@

Projects Quantity (MT) Year
H B HE () F 7
Manifa Field Causeway Project, Saudi Arabia 10,113 2007
WEHEEEIERE

Malaysia Angsi-TCOT Crude Oil Offshore Pipeline Project, PETRONAS, Malaysia 43,000 2007
F5 2K 78 58 PETRONAS f5 2K 78 35 /8 J& 0 0 & 42 78 B

Ledong Gas Fields Engineering PMT, CNOOC, China 27,000 2007
mE e HERRAERIER

Jamnagar Refinery Complex/Bechtel, India 36,000 2006
ENE sRoh w8 B

Panyu/Huizhou Natural Gas Development Project, CNOOC, China 58,881 2005
FEPERES BMRARREIER

CNOOC & Shell Petro Chemicals Company Ltd., China 12,149 2004
mEPERE AR IARADR

Chunxiao Gas Complex Development Project, CNOOC, China 68,645 2003

FEPERERERARMAEIAR
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EBEE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR SSAW PIPE

IZHe R IR EE B ek
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
HH HE () F 7
Zhanjiang Donghaidao — Leizhou High-speed Bridge Project, Guangdong Changda 10,884 2016-2017

Highway Engineering Co., Ltd., China
FEEREARAREIRARAEIRES -EMNRRSIBIER

Honghe Bridge Steel Pipe Project, Guangdong Changda Highway Engineering 6,269 2016-2017
Co., Ltd., China

FEERERAARIRZARARMBABIBHEDER

Lianyungang City Drinking Water Project, China 984 2015-2016
i EE R T AR A KEK T

The CWB No. 8 Road Connecting Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 386 2015
EERREFHBE \FEERRBELR

The CWB No. 8 Road Connecting Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 2,226 2015
BEPREHBE/\RERRRBETIZ

Zhuhai City West Water Plant-Quanwu Water Plant Expansion Project, China 2,610 2015
MERETRRKE - EKREELEEEBE LR

Luomahu-No. 2 Waterworks Construction Water Pipeline Project, Xuzhou, China 9,074 2015
Hh B AR N TSR SO KR S B KRR RR AR

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 1,441 2015
FEERL-BEO0F-#BIGERER

Crew Construction Project, Phase |, Southwest Hainan Power Plant, China 2,270 2015
hEEF AR ER - HEEERER

The Nigerian National Petroleum OB3 Project, Nigeria 6,000 2015
JE B A5 Bl A f OB31E B

Water Diversion Project, Nanning, China 2,065 2014
BB Ik T2

Piling Foundation Pipe Project, Humen Bridge Il, Guangdong, China 5,161 2014
REERERMA_GEENES IR

Gaolangang Area Container Terminal Project, Phase Il, China 4,200 2014
TESREBEEEMAEEER _HIR

Crew Construction Project, Phase |, Southwest Hainan Power Plant, China 8,994 2014
B e A E R — SE R RIE R

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Guangdong-Scenic Hill Project, 3,000 2014
Hong Kong

EERNBRBEARRABEES AGEH S ILER

Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project, Pakistan 7,537 2014
EEHEHRIEAR

Los Ramones Gas Pipeline Project, Mexico 49,587 2014-2015

£ 705 Los Ramones i 778 B

SR EERRES WIERARRASERERLT 27



TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR SSAW PIPE (Continued)

2B IR B8 B & (8
Projects Quantity (MT) Year
H B HE () F 7
Chemical Project, Jiangsu, China 2,071 2014
BT #C TIEE
Yancheng Water Project, Jiangsu, China 5,896 2014
DT AR B sk T2
Water Irrigation Project, Venezuela 565 2014
Z AR KERIE B
Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, 7,950 2014
Hong Kong
BEEEM-FEA-EESRAKERER
Zhuhai Port Temporary Construction Bridge Project for Hong Kong — Zhuhai — 9,115 2014

Macau Bridge Project, China
REDETOR AR IE B 208 O = R i TER TR

Al Hallaniyat Island Project, Oman 330 2014
Fi] £ Al Hallaniyat Island 8 B

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, China 360 2014
BB IR AB IR

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, China 8,556 2013-2014
BB IR ABIR R

Lianyungang City Drinking Water Project, Jiangsu, China 3,700 2013-2014
AR BT &R aE 28 T ek A KK T2

Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link-southern Connection Viaduct Section Project, 313 2013-2014
Hong Kong

EREEM-FEA-BESRKERER

Cross Sea Bridge Project, Lianyungang City, China 1,700 2013
mEEEETEERIBIER

Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge Project, Hong Kong 838 2013
EREABWWRKNBIER

City Heat Supply Network Southeast Pipeline Project, China 7,300 2013
hE R A (REAE) T2

NNPC, Nigeria 9,940 2013
EBFEEKAMRARKRIER

Jiangsu Water Network Project, China 8,000 2013
BT & IR T K B R BOMEC B KB 4

Hainan LNG Station Transmission Pipeline Project, CNOOC, China 3,000 2012-2013

mERELH (BRRERARERBREETLRR)
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE

EREEEBHE
Projects Quantity (Km) Year
HE HE(QE) F 5
Middle East Oil Orders 18.62 2017
R Hom AT &
Insulation Pipe Project in Hong Kong 0.54 2016-2017
HEERAEIER
Phase Ill, Gas Pipeline for GMP New 12SPP Project, PTT & GULF, Thailand 10.7 2016-2017
FEBERAHRAR&TELHGMPH12SPPIN B R AARE B
RAPID Petronas Project, Petronas, Singapore 21.4 2016-2017
55 R PH IR A MR RIET NS S0k s RIE B
NGP Gas Transmission Project, Jemena, Australia 626 2016-2017
SR K Fl 28 Jemena 2 7] NGP # .78 B
Marmul Rationalization Project, PDO, Oman 11.83 2016
e mMEQARNSERBY TR hERES
Liuzhou City Natural Gas Project, Guangxi, China 13.7 2016
REEFEIN TR ARIAR
Beiliu City Natural Gas Project, Guangxi, China 47.46 2016
mEEEILRTRARIAR
Yicheng City Change Line Project, Weijing Pipeline, Sinopec, China 18 2015
PAREBRACEATHREEREBHNALTIR
Sinopec Gas Pipeline reinstallation project, Qilu Branch 3.5 2015
FARLEERSRAARAARERERL 2R ERIEEA
Phase |, Xiangyuan Gas Pipeline Project, Shanxi, China 44.9 2015
FRELAKER (RAR)ERERANEEZRARNA -—HII2
Phase I, Changzhi-Tunliu Section, Shanxi Coal Bed Gas Pipeline Project, China 66.5 2015

TEEBHFEIKER (RAR)EBERARILAREREENAEERAE —E
BRRARNA—HTE

Betara Complex Development 479 Project, Petrochina International Jabung Ltd., 16.14 2015
Indonesia

f A EIE JE 78 o5 Betara 4R & FI 2547978 B

Badra-Zubaidah, EPC Gas Export Pipeline Project, Gazprom 105.14 2015
RBRMRAR - WMMEEPCHEARAREETLRR

Madura BD Field Development, Husky-CNOOC Madura Limited, Indonesia 53.6 2015
AT E - BE AR A RIEES AL BD M AME R

Macao Taipa MGM Hotel Cooling water Project, China 6.58 2015
RPN RSB ERE 2 RKIE

Sour Oil/Gas Pipeline Project, Daleel Petroleum L.L.C., Oman 10 2015
M EEMAMARNEHMREER

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 11.4 2015

EEERL-BEOR-—HRIGERER
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (Continued)
EMEEEEE B (@)

Projects Quantity (Km) Year
EHE HE(QE) F4
Kuwait Oil Pipeline Project 9.5 2015
REEL T 16 3B b [ 8] i B 42 T 12

Pstream Project, Australia 49 2015
R 5 1E B

Gasoducto Andino del Sur Project, Peru 84 2015
R B 7E B

Phase Il, Stage Product Oil Pipeline, The Pearl River Delta, SINOPEC, China 30 2014
PEACHERRAREE S AR =ZA_HKmBEERE

Jiangxi Gas Network Project, Phase |, Qingyun-Wannian, Shanggao-Yifeng Branch, 26 2014
China

FEIAARARER —BIESE-BF e HEXH

The Expansion Project of Macau University of Science and Technology, Macau 27 2014
RFIRIRABER TR

Catchment System Of Sea Water And lodon Plant, Chile 23 2014
BRRERGEKEBIRE

Flow line Pipes, PDO, Oman 200 2014
MesuEEa

QNP Lateral Pipeline Project, Australia 19 2014
B AFIZEQNPIEE

Eastern Goldfields Pipeline Project, APA, Australia 298 2014
SRR F 25 APATE

Aviation Oil Pipeline Project, BP, Australia 4 2014
EEA MR FDRIM & 22 m T B

Central Wan Chai bypass No. 8 Connection Line Tunnel Project, Hong Kong 8 2014
EERBRETREFSEE/\REERBRRBETLR

JQ AEP/ODP1 Project, Shell, China 32 2014
AR A B )| B #B & AKX E B

Scenic Hill-HKBCF-Airport Line Project, Hong Kong 7 2014
BEEBRL-EBOFR KB ERER

Mexico Project, Mexico 123 2014
=PEEHE

Longquan — Taiyuan Section of Lanxian — Taiyuan Gas Pipeline Project, 45 2014
Shanxi, China

hELERR - ARBREEILEER - KRR

Nakhon Sawan Project, CNPC, Thailand 36 2014
HHEBMERBR AR ZRBEDHIER

Natural Gas Pipeline Project, Phase I, CNOOC, China 28 2014

FEKEMRAREETIE —HEE
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TRACK RECORD
EBEE

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (Continued)
EMEEEEE B (@)

Projects Quantity (Km) Year

EHE HE(QE) F4

OGDCL, Pakistan 15 2014

EEAEBE R AHA A

Santos, Australia 212 2013-2014

BAMEIER

Pipeline Crossing Project, Sinopec, China 4.1 2013

mEPACEEFEIRE

Southern China Project, SINOPEC, China 25 2013

mEFAERIER

Hainan Natural Gas Project, CNOOC, China 2.9 2013

B AMEEANRIAR

Jian Rong Foundation Project, Hong Kong 3.6 2013

BEBREMEIAR

Guangxi PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Project, CNPC, China 52 2013

mEPOHEATAHERAARIAR

Chongging Gas Project, China 102 2013

mEEEMRRIER

Jiangxi Oil Pipeline Project, Phase IlI, SINOPEC, China 10 2013

PEAHEEBRARER S RANIAKMEESB —HITIEEA

Mexican Project, Mexico 155 2013

EFEFHMIER (2AF)

Hongkong Tunnel project, Hong Kong 3,445 (MT) 2013
(H8)

EEREIIR (FH)

OGDCL, Oil/Gas Pipeline, Pakistan 378 2012-2013

EEHEREREE

Flow line Pipes, PDO, Oman 550 2012-2013

MesmEAR

Kuwait Sour Crude Oil Pipeline, Kuwait 232 2012-2013

RHECR B 1 R h 8 X B 8

Jiangxi Product Oil Pipeline Project, Phase II, SINOPEC, China 270 2012

mERAOOIARmEEE —BIRE

OGDCL, Pakistan 145 2012

EEHAIER

Huainan-Shanghai Ultra High Voltage Power Grids, State Grid Corporation of China 24,763 (MT) 2012

(SGCC), China (mg)

REEE - LEREEMER PEBEXEH

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 143 2009

EEHBRXAREBAA

T EFFERE
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TRACK RECORD
EBER

SELECTED PROJECTS FOR ERW PIPE (Continued)
EMEEEEE B (@)

Projects Quantity (Km) Year
15 H HE(QE) F 5
ONGC, India 300 2009
HERARRRF

Electricity Network, China 960 2009
H Bl B 4 1E B

Flowline Pipes, PDO, Oman 1,602 2008
fi£ 18 B

Gasoducto Gibraltar Project, Columbia 151 2008
FFfm th SR 8 I B

Esperanza Project, Chile 150 2008
B AsHEIE R

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 250 2008
EEABERAREEBRA

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan 170 2007
EEAERAREEBRA

Shengli Oil Field, SINOPEC, China 255 2007
B AR R A IE R

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, Pakistan 195 2006
EEAERAREHEAA

Copergas, GDK, Brazil 126 2005
EEXARAA

Henan Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 191 2005
B A A b R R AR ol E AR

Pearl River Delta Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 1,200 2004-2005
BT A IR = A A o E 4R

Southwest Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 379 2003-2004
RER A KFEREKmAER (KE—EH)

Jingzhou-Jingmen Product Oil Pipeline, SINOPEC, China 153 2002
H B AR A b 3 — 5 P BK  Om B AR

Lan-Cheng-Yu Oil Pipeline Project, CNPC, China 220 2001
FR B AR S B R B B B AR

National Oil Company Limited, The Middle East 130 2000
RRIESAMAA

Texas Oil Field, USA 153 1998
BNk H

Changging Oil Field, CNPC, China 290 1996
B AR A O R B m A

Kelamayi Oil Field, CNPC, China 150 1996
H B A A e R 3 4 Oh F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
steel pipes, as well as providing manufacturing service for
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in
property development and investment.

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We
are the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the
PRC, and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet
the X100 standard. We are also accredited with 11 international
quality certifications such as Det Norske Veritas (“DNV”) and
American Petroleum Institute (“API”). In addition, we are the first
and the sole PRC manufacturer that has successfully produced
and developed deep sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under
water. Our products are widely applicable to major oil and gas
pipeline projects (both onshore and offshore) and infrastructure
projects domestically and internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms for offshore projects, and is being classified as a
member of the Offshore Engineering Equipment Industry* (/& 7¥
TREFGRESE) . We have benefited from and supported by the
PRC'’s strategic policies and received supports from policy banks
and insurance institutions in the PRC. We have maintained good
relationships with and have obtained medium-term loans from the
Export-Import Bank of China.

T EFFERE

KO

AEBITENRELRBEEERERME ARRERE
EMAMTAMENRERS: R)KEDEERR
BE-

AEBNEEMEERART D RELEINEE &
REBIRELEREE - RARTEKAELEINR
EREMEHOR® A EERA X1001F 2/ B 4212 5]
1RE - MBS ISR AL ([DNV ) REB A H
BE (TAPIE+ - HEREERE I HMR
B A M ME— BE AR T A K BT 2 HI3,5000K R AR
ENRED -BRMANEREBRARIMUEZERR KL
AMRRAAREERE (FLMEL) RERIEAR -

MRASEETREE ETREEANERE g L#H
Foe BUEAERERIANSFIRRBREXLEY
— RERERBEBEUEBRREXST RMAGSE2H
BRMEBITRRBREBBORD R EPEEL A
RITTRFRIAIERE LERZSHBESHH

£
HiAe
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

Panyu Land Development

In 2013, the Group has converted a piece of land in Panyu
into commercial use. The total land area of such piece of land
is 125,000m? which accounted for 25% of the total area of the
parcels of land owned by the Group in Panyu (the “Panyu Land”).
The total construction area of the Panyu Land is 550,000m2. The
Panyu Land will be divided into three phases for development.

Project name:

HE AW

Address: Qinghe Road, Shiji Town, Panyu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong, PRC
Houk: PR G BN T S A £ EE

Usage: large scale of integrated commercial complex of offices,
shops, serviced apartments and villas

A 2T e B REXABNHNENKRILGESHEER

Total permitted construction area (including underground
construction area)

AFFEEEERE (BEE TRERRE)

The Group had pre-sold the first phase and second phase of GDC
and the total contracted sales were approximately RMB 1,079.6
million as at 31 December 2017. The Group will record the sale of
properties in 2018.

GDC is part of the Group’s strategy to widen its income sources.
The Directors believe that GDC will maximise the potential
economic return of the Panyu Land to the Group. Furthermore,
upon the completion of GDC, stable rental income and the
proceeds from the sale of properties will support the further
development of the Group’s steel pipe business. The steel pipe
business will remain as the Group’s core business.

ERELTHEBR
FEBR_ZE— =85S BLHERIHERM-
T MBS B125,000F oK - (h AR EEREFEB A
AR ([FE L) BEBENTS 2 — FE 1T
)48 SR E 15 /550,000 F oK - B TR H /=
R

Golden Dragon City Fortune Plaza* (“GDC")

SHEAMERES ([SER])
Phase | 135,000m?2
E£—H 135,000 77 2K
Phase I 191,000m?
FEH 191,000+ 73K
Phase Il 224,000m?
E=H 224,000 75 3K

34 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

AEECDEESENE—HPREF_H- R _T—+
F+ A=+ "B BANBEEBOABARE
1,079,600,0007C - AEEBR —_Z— \FARBEEY
%o

SRAASNEEBFERNRAFRRORE —F D EFH
E oAU EEE D HHASEENEELEDRE
HEZRR -BE TREERE BEHSRARDE
HERABIHASEHEEBNE - SER-ME
EBHBEBESAEEOZOLES-

Annual Report 2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

On 12 February 2018, the Group has entered into an agreement
(“Agreement”) with, amongst other, Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co.
Limited* (ER EZB B R 2 7 ) (“Guangdong Yuecai”) and
Guangzhou Asset Management Company Limited* (BN & EE
AR A7) (“*Guangzhou Asset Management”) in relation to the
cooperation to facilitate the change of use of Land held by Panyu
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co. Ltd (F&IK)LHE BR A A) (“PCKSP”).
Such Land is next to GDC with land area of approximately 287,000
square meters. Pursuant to the Agreement, PCKSP shall apply to
the relevant government authorities for the change of use of the
Land from “industrial” to “commercial and residential”. Therefore,
the Group will relocate the production lines in Panyu to the
Lianyungang and Zhuhai production sites by the end of 2018.
The Lianyungang and Zhuhai production bases will be the major
production bases of the Group in the PRC, as both production
bases are in proximity to the self-operated ports where the Group
can minimise its transportation cost.

Order Status

In 2017, the Group received new orders of approximately 127,000
tonnes and approximately 33% were received from overseas
customers. During the year, the Group has entered into a global
frame agreement with Petroliam Nasional Berhad (“Petronas”). The
Group will become a qualified supplier of Petronas to supply steel
pipes of LSAW, HFW and bends up to December 2019 with two
years extension option. PCKSP will be entitled to receive orders
from projects of Petronas’ approved contractors. The Group has
received some sizeable overseas orders like offshore windfarm
project in the United Kingdom. The Group delivered approximately
214,000 tonnes of welded steel pipes during 2017.

T EFFERE

RZZE-—NFZA+ZB AEEE(HFBE)ER
BHMERARAR(IEREM ) RENEEERESR
RARI([BEMEEBTRDDIT Y HE ([ZHE]) R
AEBMAEENEB R INEAERAR ([HEEET
WMEDMFEZ I AR - Z I MR LHE
B H# /287,000 Fok o IRIEZ R FREHW IMER
ERBFHHESERZ L AR BRI RE
BITEINATBAERME] At A£EBR-F
—N\FFEEAREEENEEGEETERRTLE
R-EEBRKBEEENBKAASEEPRENE
EHEAEM RAMEEMMIEEED AEET
AL D> H B R A -

SRR
BT AR I ) 3 5T B BUR 40 5127,000
WA - T 4933% SR BB ANE 5 o ME 7 AR B RS 2R
MTEREH AT ([Hd)) TS 2RIERR R A%
RS A B R A E IS S
REREE BHEANE-_T-NAFT-A 58F
T RSB R A - B B T S A R R R
EEE L EEEREREES e SR T )
B ONMHEMNS I REEEZE - AEEEIR - —+
F 3254 #9214,0000 (2 5 6 & o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and
exporter in the PRC. LSAW steel pipe was the largest source of
revenue of the Group and accounted for approximately 64.0%
of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from the sales
and manufacturing service of LSAW steel pipes amounted to
approximately RMB512.3 million and RMB47.2 million, respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 46% and an increase
of 9%, respectively, as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2016. The decrease in sales of LSAW steel pipes was
mainly due to the decrease in both overseas and domestic orders
the Group has received. This was due to the slowdown in the
rolling out of major oil and gas projects.

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes produced in our plant in Lianyungang use
the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique, which
is the most advanced standard among all SSAW technologies.
Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of SSAW steel
pipes amounted to approximately RMB37.4 million and RMB24.2
million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel pipes
accounted for approximately 7.1% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

ERW Steel Pipes

Competition in the market of ERW steel pipes has been very
keen due to its relatively low technical and standardised entry
requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue
from the sales and manufacturing service of ERW steel pipes
amounted to approximately RMB130.0 million and RMB1.3 million,
respectively. The total revenue from ERW steel pipes accounted
for approximately 15.0% of the total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2017, our revenue was
approximately RMB873.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB570.2 million or 39.5% as compared with that
of 2016. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease
in both overseas and domestic orders received by the Group. This
was due to the slowdown in the rolling out of major oil and gas
projects.
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BH#ENEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED AT

The following table sets forth the revenue, gross profit, sales TREIATEHEEBZ D BOWA - EF HES
volume and average gross profit per tonne by business segments K GWEFHER

for each of the periods indicated:

2017 2016
—E—tf —E-REF
Revenue Revenue
A WA
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
14 WA A A
AR%Fr Bl AREFrT B
Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HEBES 512,343 58.6 949,426 65.8
SSAW steel pipes RIEEIEE 37,370 4.3 108,259 7.5
ERW steel pipes BHEE 129,924 14.9 148,376 10.3
Subtotal INEF 679,637 77.8 1,206,061 83.6
Manufacturing services BIERB
LSAW steel pipes BHEEIEE 47,165 5.4 43,149 2.9
SSAW steel pipes PR IEE 24,190 2.8 13,170 0.9
ERW steel pipes BHEEE 1,286 0.1 2,306 0.2
Subtotal et 72,641 8.3 58,625 4.0
Others Hit 121,015 13.9 178,801 12.4
Grand total Az 873,293 100.0 1,443,487 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

2017 2016
—E-tF ZERF
Gross Sales Average Gross Sales Average
profit volume  gross profit profit volume  gross profit
E| HEE FHER EM HER FHEM
RMB’000 tonnes  RMB/tonne RMB'000 tonnes RMB/tonne
AREFT B ARE W AREKTFT B ARE
Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HRENRE 41,574 101,401 410 71,963 214,000 336
SSAW steel pipes EHERRE 2,584 8,235 314 4,093 32,404 126
ERW steel pipes ERRE 371 25,232 15 3,268 28,302 115
Subtotal et 44,529 134,868 79,324 274,706
Manufacturing services BERE
LSAW steel pipes ERRIEE 17,893 31,143 575 1,814 26,023 70
SSAW Steel pipes BiERRE 276 47,601 6 28 30,703 1
ERW steel pipes BERRE 5 707 7 75 2,254 33
Subtotal NEF 18,174 79,451 1,917 58,980
Others Hitr (4592) NATER NATER 346  NATEE  NATER
Grand total @it 58,111 214,319 81,587 333,686
The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted RZE—EF - RAHEEHENRADEERERE LI

for approximately 77.8% of our total revenue in 2017 as compared
with approximately 83.6% in 2016. Steel pipe manufacturing
services accounted for approximately 8.3% of our total revenue in
2017 as compared with approximately 4.0% in 2016. The revenue
classified as “Others” mainly represented the trading of steel
plates, sales of steel fittings, trading of equipment and sales of
scrap materials which accounted for approximately 13.9% of our
total revenue in 2017 as compared with approximately 12.4% in
2016.

Gross profit for 2017 was approximately RMB58.1 million
as compared with approximately RMB81.6 million in 2016,
representing a decrease of approximately 28.8% or RMB23.5
million. Gross profit margin for 2017 was approximately 6.7%
which was at similar with that of last year.

Our overseas sales accounted for approximately 46.4% of our total
revenue in 2017, as compared to approximately 56.9% in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

SALES BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS BRitBEDWEHE
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—XEF
Revenue Revenue
WA A
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1548 A 1A YA
AR¥FT Bk AREFor IZ520
Overseas sales BINEE 405,560 46.4 821,034 56.9
Domestic sales FEk= 467,733 53.6 622,453 43.1
Total BEt 873,293 100 1,443,487 100.0
CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT REVELATEES

PROPERTY

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment property by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
property are reflected as profit or loss for the reporting period. The
Group has transferred part of the investment property — phase
| and phase Il of properties under development in prior years.
The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent
valuer, to value the investment property. According to the valuation
report as at 31 December 2017 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited,
the market value of the investment property — phase Ill as at 31
December 2017 was RMB1.14 billion. No gain was resulted from
the fair values of the investment property in 2017 (2016: nil).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2017 mainly represented bank
interest income, subsidy income from government and forfeiture
of customer deposit. Other income and gains increased by
approximately 274.2% or RMB103.0 million from approximately
RMB37.6 million in 2016 to approximately RMB140.6 million in
2017. Increase in other income and gains was mainly due to
increase in bank interest income and forfeiture of customer deposit
during 2017.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
25.7% or RMB37.1 million from approximately RMB144.4 million
in 2016 to approximately RMB107.3 million in 2017. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in sales as discussed above.

T EFFERE

REBEFEMNGHTERE AR TFEFEREWE-E
I REMELATFEZHEEZEZ ERBREHAD
BalARB - AEENBTFEERTIDREME—
BRAMESF—HBEE_H-ASEEZRBYGE
BXAITAERMBERAR  RIEEWMEETHE.
BEAKNTIEERBERATIR-_ZE—+tE+A
S+-—BHANMGERS REVESF=ZHR_Z
—tF+A=+—HHmERARN1140,000,000
ToRZT—tF WEEEAREMENATERE (=

E-RFE)-

Hi g A R =

T FMEMRARKEEZERRITFELA
BT A M AR ZERE PRS- H A WA &I &= B
ZE-RNFHARMBEI7,600,0007T ' 1M EI274.2%
5 A E¥103,000,000  Z_ZT -+ FHARHK
140,600,0007Tc AW A R B MEEHR ZF
—tFRITFEWMAENE BB EFPES -

HERDHEAX
HE RS HMASXH ZF —XE4 ARK%144,400,000
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 1.0% or
RMB4.7 million from approximately RMB471.0 million in 2016 to
approximately RMB475.6 million in 2017. Administrative expenses
in 2017 was at similar level with that of last year.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2017 was approximately RMB426.3 million
which were higher than that of 2016 which was approximately
RMB237.1 million. The effective interest rate in 2017 was
approximately 7.3% (2016: 3.7%). Increase in finance cost was
due to increase in average interest rate.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The Group recorded an impairment on property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB18.0 million for the year ended
2017 (2016: RMB516.3 million).

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by approximately 87.8% or RMB92.4
million from approximately RMB105.3 million in 2016 to
approximately RMB12.9 million in 2017. The decrease was mainly
due to provision for inventories and trade and other receivables of
approximately RMB99.3 million in last year.

EXCHANGE LOSS, NET

The Group recorded exchange loss of approximately RMB44.1
million in 2017 as compared to exchange loss of approximately
RMB86.4 million in 2016. The decrease in exchange loss was
mainly due to depreciation of RMB against USD to a lesser extent
this year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses decreased from RMB56.2 million in 2016
to income tax credit of RMB14.6 million in 2017. Income tax
expense in last year was mainly related to the reversal of deferred
tax assets in last year. Income tax credit in 2017 was related
to deferred tax liability of property business sector decreased.
PCKSP, and Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
(“PCKSP (Zhuhai)”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
were qualified as High and New Technology Enterprises and thus
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15% in 2017 (2016: 15%).
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR

FRAEBE

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded R EXAHORE AEBER T —LFHEHB
a loss of approximately RMB873.8 million in 2017 (2016: BHARKS73,800,000L(ZF—AF: AR
RMB1,499.0 million). 1,499,000,0007T) °
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES RBESRUBER
The following table sets out certain information regarding the TR BHAAEBEE T —R"FER_T—tF
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended T AT —HLEFENGERESRERNE é(ﬂ
31 December 2016 and 2017:
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=1+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMFIT
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBERESRE 557,662 963,118
Net cash flows used in investing KEEHMARE®REF
activities (211,064) (428,244)
Net cash flows used in financing activites Bt & /ZEFTAB S REFHE (911,558) (459,385)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBRSEEWEN Chd)FE
cash equivalents (564,960) 75,489
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFEBREREFRR
The Group’s net cash inflows from operating activities decreased REBHCEZHMESRERAFEHZT - F
from approximately RMB963.1 million in 2016 to approximately 4 AN E%963,100,000L BE-ZE—t+tFHAREK
RMB557.7 million in 2017. The decreased net cash inflows from 557,700,000 T« & LR FPAGEIR @ MAFRR L EE
operating activities were primarily due to the combined effect of (i) HRGAENTHERS: (\REBREE: )V FE &

loss before taxation; (ii) decrease in inventories, trade receivables,
prepayment and other receivables, pledged bank deposit and trade
payables, and (iii) increase in other payables and government
grants.

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in investing activities decreased
from approximately RMB428.2 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB211.1 million in 2017. The decreased net cash outflows were
mainly due to the combined effect of (i) disposal of property, plant
and equipment and land, and receipt of government grant; and
(if) purchase of time deposit and purchase of property, plant and
equipment during the year.
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NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash used in financing activities of approximately
RMB459.4 million in 2016 increased to approximately RMB911.6
million in 2017. The net cash outflows were mainly resulted from
the combined effect of (i) the borrowing of new interest-bearing
loans and other borrowings and amounts due to a director of
approximately RMB6,026.4 million and (ii) the repayment of bank
loans, government loans, short term note and finance lease rental
payment and its associated interest and payment of interest of
approximately RMB6,938.0 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar.
Most of its assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi.
Although the Group may be exposed to foreign currency exchange
risks, the Board does not expect that future currency fluctuations
would materially impact the Group’s operations. The Group did not
adopt formal hedging policies nor instruments of foreign currency
for managing the exchange risk exposure during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group invested
approximately RMB34.3 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment. These capital expenditures were fully financed by
internal resources and bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group guaranteed RMB174.1 million
(2016: RMB136.6 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group guaranteed RMB217.8 million
(2016: RMB231.8 million) to joint venture for banking facilities in
Saudi Arabia of which RMB200.5 million (2016: RMB185.4 million)
was utilized by the joint venture.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, land
use rights, time deposits and certain properties under development
with an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB1,477.5
million (2016: RMB1,512.5 million), RMB1,003.4 million (2016:
RMB1,061.8 million), RMB413.7 million (2016: RMB410.2 million)
and RMB1,355.9 million (2016: RMB442.7 million) respectively as
at 31 December 2017 to secure bank loans granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and short term notes divided by total
assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 were approximately 57.3% and 58.0%, respectively.

On 27 April 2017, the Company entered into a note purchase
agreement (the “Note Purchase Agreement”) with an investment
fund, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue, and
the investment fund agreed to purchase from the Company,
HK$155,000,000 8% notes due in April 2020 (the “Notes”).
Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, specific performance
obligations (the “Specific Performance Obligations”) are imposed
on Mr. Chen Chang, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
during the term of the Note Purchase Agreement including
(i) Mr. Chen Chang, directly or indirectly, holds or owns more than
50% of the voting rights of the Company; or (ii) the controlling
shareholder of the Company has management control of the
Company. Any breach of the Specific Performance Obligations may
constitute a breach under the Note Purchase Agreement, pursuant
to which the investment fund is entitled to redeem the Notes
immediately upon the occurrence of the breach in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Notes.

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued a bond with a principal
amount of US dollar 3,000,000 to an investor, Ms Fang, Lisa Qiu
(EF3#E[B) . The bond will be repayable in full by April 2020. The
bond bears a fixed coupon interest rate at 7% per annum for three
years payable semi-annually, commencing on 28 October 2017.
The bond is unsecured.
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On 24 August 2017, the Company issued a bond with a principal
amount of HKD10 million to an investor, Mr. Ye Hong Xiang ( Z3A
#) . The bond will be repayable in full by August 2021. The bond
bears a fixed coupon interest rate at 7% per annum for four years
payable semi-annually, commencing on 24 February 2018. The
bond is unsecured.

On 26 September 2017, the Company issued a bond with a
principal amount of HKD10 million to an investor, Mr. Hu Gan Ming
(#A%%%) . The bond will be repayable in full by September 2020.
The bond bears a fixed coupon interest rate at 6% per annum
for three years payable semi-annually, commencing on 26 March
2018. The bond is unsecured.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB5,821.3 million, of which approximately 35%
(2016: 30%) were long term borrowings and approximately 65%
(2016: 70%) were short term borrowings. Approximately 60% of
total borrowings of the Group were for financing working capital of
the Group, and approximately 40% of total borrowings of the Group
were financing capital expenditure of the Group. The Group had
to finance its working capital by short term borrowings as around
90% of the cost of sales was incurred on the procurement of steel
plates and steel coils. Once the Group received sales proceeds
from its customers, it would then repay the short term borrowings.
Taking into account the Group’s cash in hand and the available
banking facilities of RMB515.5 million, the Group had sufficient
liquidity and was in a strong financial position to repay its short
term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, the current liabilities of the Group
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB2,167.0 million.
Phase | and phase Il of GDC has been pre-sold in order to
increase the cashflow of the Group. Furthermore, subsequent to
31 December 2017, the Group has received a 3-year shareholders
loan of RMB1.68 billion from Guangdong Yuecai. The Group has
sufficient cashflow to meet its short term obligations.

As at 31 December 2017, approximately 61% (2016: 43%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi, which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by
the People’s Bank of China; approximately 15% (2016: 15%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried fixed
interest rate; approximately 0% (2016: 9%) of the total borrowings
were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar with interest rates
linked to the London interbank offered rates for US dollar loans
and Hong Kong interbank offered rates for HK dollar loans; and
approximately 24% (2016: 33%) of the total borrowings were
denominated in US dollar which carried fixed interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

In November 2016, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Fang Yang Commerce Trade Company Limited ( &
BT ¥ mZE AR A A ) (“Fangyang”), pursuant to which the Group
would inject its existing land and equipment at a market value
of RMB982 million and Fangyang would inject RMB500 million
by cash to the registered capital of Lianyungang Zhujiang Metal
Composite Materials Co., Ltd* GEZEF K IEBEAMEAERA
A]) (the “JV Company”). Upon completion of the capital injection,
Fangyang held 33.33% of the enlarged registered capital of the
JV Company and the Group’s equity interest in the JV Company
reduced from 100% to 66.67%. The Group also entered into a
non-legally binding memorandum of understanding with Fangyang,
pursuant to which Fangyang would further inject RMB200 million
by cash to the registered capital of the JV Company. If this further
capital injection materializes, Fangyang would hold 41.2% of the
further enlarged registered capital of the JV Company and the
Group’s equity interest in the JV Company would further reduce to
58.8%. The JV Company entered into construction agreements for
the purchase of bimetal composite plate processing equipment and
construction of the processing plant for an aggregate consideration
of not more than RMB2.5 billion. The Company has obtained
written approval of the capital injection from Mr. Chen Chang
and Bournam Profits Limited. The construction agreements for
the purchase of bimetal composite plate processing equipment
and construction of the processing plant was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
extraordinary general meeting on 25 January 2017. The principal
business of the JV Company is the manufacturing and sales of
bimetal composite plates. The construction of the processing plant
will provide the Group with a stable supply of raw materials located
near its production base at costs under its control. The capital
injection will provide the start-up capital for the construction plant
and the introduction of a reliable partner located in Lianyungang.
The JV Company will be consolidated in the Company’s financial
statements.
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On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works
Co., Ltd.* (BN M EHR IR B R X F)) (“GZMT”) for the purchase
of spare parts and production line (“Purchase Transaction”) from
the latter for the maintenance of machines, installation of rolling
line electrical drive system equipment and transformation of steel
transportation system of bimetal composite plate processing plant
in Lianyungang, the PRC. The consideration for the Purchase
Transaction is approximately RMB173.6 million. The purchase of
the spare parts and production line is mainly for the construction
of the bimetal composite plate processing plant in Lianyungang,
the PRC as per the Company’s announcement dated 18 November
2016 and the circular dated 9 January 2017. GZMT is ultimately,
wholly and beneficially, owned by Mr. Chen Chang, the controlling
shareholder and chairman of the Company, and is therefore an
associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected person of the
Company. The Purchase Transaction was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting on 19 June 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the
amount due from a related party of approximately RMB84.6 million
was the advance payment to GZMT for the Purchase Transaction.

On 19 April 2017, the Group and (Jiangsu Yungang Investment
Development Company Limited* JT#HEEREHEBR A7)
(*Yungang”) entered into an Asset Transfer Agreement, pursuant to
which, the Group agreed to sell, and Yungang agreed to purchase,
the right of use of four land parcels and six production plants (the
“Assets”) of EBEBNAIHAEMBR AT
New Construction Materials Limited*) (“Lianyungang Aike”) at a

a] (Lianyungang Aike

total consideration of RMB76 million. The total net book value
of the Assets of Lianyungang Aike as at 31 March 2017 was
approximately RMB76.2 million. The disposal of the Assets is to
enhance the working capital position by disposing non-core assets
of the Group. The net proceeds from the disposal of the Assets
was for the general working capital of the Group for its future
business development.
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On 11 September 2017, the Group and Jiangyin City ChangPeng
Recycled Resources Company Limited* CTETREFLERE
R A A]) (“Jiangyin ChangPeng”) entered into an asset transfer
agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and
Jiangyin ChangPeng agreed to purchase, the right of use of land
parcel and production plant of Jiangsu production plant at a total
consideration of RMB43.8 million. The total net book value of the
disposed assets of Jiangyin production plant as at 31 July 2017
was approximately RMB42.4 million. The Jiangyin production
plant was acquired by the Group before listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Since there is only one production line in the Jiangyin
production base and the space for its expansion is limited, the
Group has developed the production bases in Lianyungang and
Zhuhai. Now that the production bases in Lianyungang and Zhuhai
are in operation, the Group can centralize its administration in
the two major production bases. The disposal is to enhance the
effectiveness of the Group’s management. The net proceeds from
the disposal will be used as repayment of bank loan by the Group.
The disposal will not have material effect on the business and
operation of the Group.

On 25 October 2017, the Group and Guangzhou Ningjin
Decoration Works Company Limited* (EMNZEHE R TIZER A )
(“Guangzhou Ningjin") entered into a transfer agreement, pursuant
to which, the Group agreed to sell, and Guangzhou Ningjin agreed
to purchase, the property in Panyu at a total consideration of
RMB55 million. The property is located at No. 9, 11, Dalong Street,
Limin Street, Shiji Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou, the PRC* (/1
B B N 25 B [ A SR K BE A A R 45998 115% ) with construction area
of approximately 14,000 square meters. The book value of the
property as at 30 September 2017 was approximately RMB42.89
million. The property is a non-core asset of the Group. The
disposal has no impacts on the business operation of the Group.
The disposal of property is to enhance the cashflow position of the
Group.

Except the above, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.
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LITIGATION
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had four settled lawsuits as
follows:

(i) Nanjing Rongyu Group Company Limited* ( B R #%

£EAEPR2F) (“Nanjing Rongyu”) and Nanjing City
Qixia Hill Roll Steeling Company Limited* (R R W #
BEILEMAERAT) (“Qixia Hill™)
Nanjing Yuanchang Investment Guarantee Development Co.,
Ltd.* (“Yuanchang Investment”) (B R RS REERERE
R 2 7)) claimed against Nanjing Rongyu and Qixia Hill for
breaching and repudiating counter guarantee contract in the
amount of RMB5.6 million. The concerned counter guarantee
contract was signed by the ex-beneficial owners of Nanjing
Rongyu Group (collectively, Nanjing Rongyu, Qixia Hill
and Nanjing Rongyu Group Market Management Company
Limited* (B R EEMEEEBMRAF)) prior to the
Group’s acquisition of Nanjing Rongyu in May 2013. The
Group was not informed of such counter guarantee contract
at the time of acquisition. According to the second instance
judgement made by the Nanjing Intermediate People’s Court,
Nanjing Rongyu and Qixia Hill have to pay compensatory
amount of RMB5.6 million and damages to Yuancheng
Investment. On 29 May 2015, Nanjing Rongyu and Qixia Hill
applied for a retrial to the Jiangsu Province Higher People’s
Court in respect of the above judgement. In July 2015,
the Group was served with a notice of action from Jiangsu
Province Higher People’s Court informing it the case was
under file transfer and pre-filing review procedures. As of the
date of this announcement, the case was closed.
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(i)

(iii)

Nanjing Rongyu

Yuancheng Investment claimed against Nanjing Rongyu
for breaching and repudiating a counter guarantee contract
in the amount of RMB7.6 million. The concerned counter
guarantee contract was signed by the ex-beneficial owners
of Nanjing Rongyu Group prior to the Group’s acquisition of
Nanjing Rongyu in May 2013. The Group was not informed
of such counter guarantee contract at the time of acquisition.
According to the second instance judgement made by the
Nanjing Intermediate People’s Court, Nanjing Rongyu has to
pay compensatory amount of RMB7.6 million and damages
to Yuancheng Investment. On 29 May 2015, Nanjing Rongyu
applied for a retrial to the Jiangsu Higher People’s Court
against the above judgement. In July 2015, the Group was
served with a notice of action from Jiangsu Province Higher
People’s Court informing it the case was under file transfer
and pre-filing review procedures. As of the date of this
announcement, the case was settled.

Nanjing Rongyu

Yuancheng Investment claimed against Nanjing Rongyu for
breaching and repudiating a counter guarantee contract in the
amount of RMB4.0 million. Such counter guarantee contract
was signed by the ex-beneficial owners of Nanjing Rongyu
Group prior to the Group’s acquisition of Nanjing Rongyu
in May 2013. The Group was not informed of such counter
guarantee contract at the time of acquisition. According to the
second instance judgement made by the Nanjing Intermediate
People’s Court, Nanjing Rongyu has to pay compensatory
amount of RMB4.0 million and damages to Yuancheng
Investment. On 29 May 2015, Nanjing Rongyu applied for
a retrial to the Jiangsu Higher People’s Court against the
above judgement. In July 2015, the Group was served with a
notice of action from Jiangsu Province Higher People’s Court
informing it the case was under file transfer and pre-filing
review procedures. As of the date of this announcement, the
case was settled.
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(iv) Nanjing Rongyu and Qixia Hill
Yuancheng Investment claimed against Nanjing Rongyu and
Qixia Hill for breaching and repudiating a counter guarantee
contract in the amount of RMB4.2 million. Such counter
guarantee contract was signed by the ex-beneficial owners
of Nanjing Rongyu Group prior to the Group’s acquisition of
Nanjing Rongyu in May 2013. The Group was not informed
of such counter guarantee contract at the time of acquisition.
According to the second instance judgement made by the
Nanjing Intermediate People’s Court, Nanjing Rongyu Group
has to pay compensatory amount of RMB4.2 million and
damages to Yuancheng Investment. On 29 May 2015, Nanjing
Rongyu and Qixia Hill applied for a retrial to the Jiangsu
Province Higher People’s Court against the above judgement.

In July 2015, the Group was served with a notice of action
from Jiangsu Province Higher People’s Court informing it the
case was under file transfer and pre-filing review procedures.
As of the date of this announcement, the case was settled.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had paid a total of RMB29
million to Yuancheng Investment. Such payment can be fully
covered by the full provision in prior years.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in management discussion and analysis section
— Business Review — Panyu land development section, on 12
February 2018, the Group has entered into the agreement
(“Agreement”) with Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co. Limited* (&
REHFEZHAER Q) (“Guangdong Yuecai”) and Guangzhou
Asset Management Company Limited* (BN EEEIEBR A A)
(“Guangzhou Asset Management”) (collectively the “Investor”) in
relation to the cooperation to facilitate the change of use of land
(the “Land”) held by Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co. Ltd (#F & %k
STHE B BR AR (“PCKSP”) from “industrial” to “residential and
commercial” and the disposal of (actual and deemed) an aggregate
of 59% of the equity interest in PCKSP to the Investor. The Vendor
and the Target Company shall complete the Asset Reorganisation.
After the Asset Reorganisation, the only asset held by the Target
Company shall be the Land.Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Investor shall, by stages, (i) inject capital into PCKSP and acquire
19% of the equity interest in the PCKSP for RMB240 million; (ii)
implement the Asset Reorganisation; (iii) apply for the Change of
Land Use; and (iv) acquire 40% of the equity interest in PCKSP
from the Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co. Ltd for a consideration
equivalent to 40% of the fair value of the Land (after the Change
of Land Use).
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Apart from the above, there were no significant events subsequent
to 31 December 2017 which would materially affect the Group’s
operating and financial performance as of the date of this
announcement.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2017, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits)
were approximately RMB178.0 million (2016: RMB212.2 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Competitive
remuneration package is offered to retain elite employees. Our
package includes salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as mandatory
provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the
PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme and share
award scheme, options to subscribe respectively for shares in the
Company or share awards of the Company may be granted to
eligible employees. No share option or share award was granted
under the share option scheme or share award scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,600 full time
employees (2016: 2,100 employees). The following set forth the
total number of our staff by functions:
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2017 2016
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Management =L 170 205
Production and logistics FERYR 721 1,086
Sales and marketing HERMIGHERE 38 54
Finance B 7% 34 42
Quality control B2 7l 66 127
R&D I 67 67
Procurement g 22 32
General administration and others —MATER R E A 482 487
Total CE 1,600 2,100
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FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

There were positive signs of industry recovery in early 2017, as
the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC
announced the “13th Five-Year Plan for Oil Development” and
the “13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas Development” recently.
Pursuant to the plans, the PRC will build a total of 17,000 km of
crude and refined oil pipelines as well as 40,000 km of natural
gas pipelines by 2020. Apart from that, the National Energy
Administration issued the “13th Five-Year Plan for Wind Power
Development”, setting out projects to build offshore wind power
facilities in four provinces and a number of first-tier cities. Other
positive signs include the development of oceaneering equipment
manufacturing industry under the OBOR strategy, as well as the
pipeline projects for the construction of offshore platforms, offshore
wind power, offshore jackets and offshore bridges in the PRC. With
large oil and gas projects coming our way, we expect to have left
the darkest days behind us.

Following the increased number of bidding for pipeline projects in
early 2018, we expect a strong rebound in steel pipe demand. In
fact, we have already seen the launch of the “13th Five-Year Plan”
for oil and gas pipeline networks. As pointed out in the plan, such
networks are expected to grow by 47% to reach 165,000 km by
2020. Hence, the “13th Five-Year Plan” will usher in a golden era
for the development of oil and gas pipelines.

Included in the “13th Five-year Plan” is the construction of six
crude oil pipelines, including Phase Il of Sino-Russian Crude
Oil Pipeline, Yizheng-Changling Dual Pipelines, as well as
Lianyungang-Yizheng, Rizhao-Luoyang, Rizhao-Zhanhua and
Dongjiakou-Dongying crude oil pipelines.

Also included in the “13th Five-year Plan” is the construction of
eight new pipelines for refined oil, including Zhangshu-Zhuzhou,
Zhanjiang-Beihai, Luoyang-Linfen, Sanmenxia-Xi'an,
Yongping-Jinzhong and Hubei-Chongqging refined oil pipelines, as
well as coal oil transportation pipelines in western and eastern
Inner Mongolia. Meanwhile, the Qinghai-Tibet refined oil pipeline
will be extended and upgraded.
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In addition, the “13th Five-year Plan” includes the construction of
14 new pipelines for natural gas, including Central Asia-China Gas
Pipeline Line D, Sino-Russian East Pipeline, the middle section of
West-East Gas Pipeline (Phase Ill), Phases IV and V of West-East
Gas Pipeline, Phase IV of Shaanxi-Beijing Pipeline, Phase II of
Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline, the coal gas transportation line in
Xinjiang, as well as Erdos-Anping-Cangzhou, Qingdao-Nanjing,
Chongging-Guizhou-Guangxi, Qinghai-Tibet, Fujian-Guangdong
and Haikou-Xuwen natural gas pipelines. Construction of regional
pipeline networks will be fast-tracked, whilst the construction of
gas storages and the transportation pipelines for coalbed methane,
shale gas and coal gas will take place as appropriate.

The PRC government intends to promote clean energy as a major
source of energy supply at a faster pace in the future. The gas
consumption of Chinese cities is expected to increase by 33%
each year and the number of gas pipelines is expected to grow by
10.20% annually, which will boost the demand for steel pipes.

Moreover, the OBOR strategy and the establishment of Asia
Infrastructure Investment Bank (“AllB”) are expected to inject fresh
vitality into the infrastructure and hardware development in Asia,
and propel economic growth in the region. As a world-famous steel
pipe manufacturer, the Company is poised to capture the rare
opportunities brought by the OBOR strategy and AlIB. Demand
is expected to increase substantially in respect of the pipes to be
used in infrastructure projects and oil and gas pipeline installations.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (R &)

Mr CHEN Chang (Ff &), aged 72, is the chief executive
officer and the chairman of the Board and also a member of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr Chen is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian and
Ms Chen Zhao Hua (both being the executive Directors). Being
the founder of the Group, Mr Chen is primarily responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr Chen has over 50 years of
experience in areas related to woodwork, machine tool equipment
and lift/escalator equipment and has accumulated abundant
experience and knowledge in the mechanical and electrical
industry. Mr Chen graduated from the graduate school of Sun
Yat-Sen University* (ff|11K2) in Guangdong Province in October
1995 majoring in decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* ( 1 Bl & & £ & & iff 5 & 55 /1 J5 /2
EMESRMEEEEE) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(R E4EPZEHEalER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (R Ef&EHBEME S S H
NERERFEFRAEEELEIEER) (2004, 2008)

D Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council
of the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (R Bl & E g 2 S AE 5> E M-
T ANEEESRIEZER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of
the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (FF # 2
IEBeg Mg R) (2006)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications,
including:

*

Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean
economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce* (FEZHTHEBAGIT ATEHESRERMED
¥X) (2004)

Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards by
the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (& /I A
RIBFT AR 2R -5 415 %) (2007)

Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* (

BREEZHETRREETEERER) (2007)

The invention of “three-roller forming technology and
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding
award by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and
the Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department*
(BAZERBETIBERRENTEENEEAREARES FRE
CRNEEBREASTERERG HNHSERBN /EFKE) (2008)

Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou*

(BN TR ST @A) (2008)

The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China
Steel Association* ( 7 B 3§ 17 & S8 V0 JE “ 2 AR Al 3£ 227 ) (2009)

Guangzhou Model Labour* (& /I 714 )18 &5 ) (2009)

First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong
Province ( & 5 & &} 2 £ fif £ — % #2) for the research and
development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur (EMTEF L ER)
(2011)

Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (2B EF D ¥ R)
(2012)

Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and

Technology* (JE/N M & 250 2= H BB ) (2012)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Outstanding Industrial Province of Science and Technology in
the PRC’s iron and steel industry* (R B T EF R T
¥%) (2012)

+  Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (£ X A%) (2012)

. The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top
10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (20124 [ E &
ATHEIRSHHEERBEER) (2013)

. Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou*

(BN B 81 3B B2 28 B8R 22) (2013)

. Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013*

(2013FER T REEREAY)

+  Nationwide “May 1st” Labour Award* (2B — 48 #E=)
(2014)

«  Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* ( 55 )\
[EE B 3R & & 52) (2014)

e 14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* ( 55+ P10 fig tt 5 £
#= A 4%) (2015)

«  National Model Worker* (2Bl 4 8)#£ ) (2015)

e Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* ( &/ A%
30F TN BN R E) (2016)

. Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* (5

TN BB E 58) (2016)

e Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* ( £ || = i & B&f #% )
(2016)

e 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (2016F € EMMEXBEEAL)
(2017)

«  The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou* ( EM & &
25 ERBER) (2017)

«  Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* ( &M+ A& EEE A Y))
(2018)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with Mr
Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company, Mr

Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the Company.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Ms Chen Zhao Nian (BRIK£)

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian (FRJK4F ), aged 41, is an executive
Director. She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman
of the Board and an executive Director) and also the sister
of Ms Chen Zhao Hua (being executive Director). Ms Chen is
primarily responsible for the daily management and operations
of the Group. Ms Chen joined the Group in October 2002 as vice
general manager after her graduation. Ms Chen obtained her
bachelor’s degree in arts from the University of Central Lancashire
in the United Kingdom in June 2000 and her master’'s degree
in accounting from Leeds Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom in October 2002. Ms. Chen has taken up the following
public duties and has received the following awards:

public duties:

. Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC in
Panyu, Guangzhou* (EM M HBRE +NEAKFEZE) (2011)

«  Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* ( E /N
WK EERESITE) (2012)

. Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (BN MHEBE IHEHA T
& EFE) (2012)

. President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (E2RBEEIXSFHe T
£) (2012)

. Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women* (EMTHZE T ZEBRITEZELEE) (2012)

. Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (EMNMZ X RIBEE K) (2013)

. Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women
Federation Conference* (FE2BRZBATE+ B LEE
M) (2013)

. Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B A

Rpoatie@E T _ERMMEZEEEZE) (2014)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young
Entrepreneurs Committee* (EM M IHBESFLEREZE R
B EIE) (2014)

. Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* ( [& 5 & I Bt

ET_ERLZERHKELEE) (2014)

. Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises
Investment Development Association* ( ER & R4 ¥ 15 & %
EIEEERIER) (2015)

. Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (ERE XX RBHEalEK) (2015)

. Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association
of Public Affairs* (EREBREAZRESEHETR) (2015)

*  Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* ( &N
M AmERIgR) (2015)

. Representative of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou

City* (EMME+ABARKRERAERRK) (2016)

«  President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (R %
FRAEZEESZEER) (2017)

awards:

. the 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the
All-China Women’s Federation* (R E2HBLZH A E /&
T XHHRE) (2012)

. Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)*

(ZEMEZENIZL) (2013)

. Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving

Hearts* ( R &) E JN604 & B 1 &%) (2013)

«  Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* ( &} & 5 1

*¥%) (2013)

«  Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* (&

REEBHELLER") (2013)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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«  March 8th Flag Bearer” of Guangzhou* (BN “ = \4AFEF")
(2010-2013)

«  Outstanding Women Entrepreneur* (£ 8 2 % %) (2014)

. Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home*

(ERE"TAREBFEEZRK") (2014)

«  Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (+EEFSFE L ER)
(2015)

«  Guangdong Top Ten “ Charity Contribution Award™ ( f& & 11
“EEFRIE") (2015)

. Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015
&R R+ R#EAY) (2016)

«  Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (20165 E%&Z A& A
4%) (2016)

. Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* (&
M AR EFREK) (2016)

«  Outstanding CEO (20164 E#t i CEO ) (2016)

« the 1st National Civilized Family* (£ —E2BH XHARE)

(2016)
«  Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur* ( 55 — fE 5 L D ¥ 5K 48)
(2017)

Ms Chen Zhao Hua (BR k)

Ms CHEN Zhao Hua (FRJKEE ) , aged 39, is an executive Director.
She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being the Chairman of
the Company and executive Director) and also the sister of Ms
Chen Zhao Nian (being executive Director). Ms Chen is primarily
responsible for handling domestic and overseas marketing
activities, sales and business relationships with customers as well
as sales agents. Ms Chen joined the Group in December 2002
after her graduation. Ms Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
international business from the University of Lancashire, the United
Kingdom in June 2001, a master’'s degree in international business
Law from the University of Nottingham, the United Kingdom in
December 2002 and a master’'s degree in business administration
of senior management from University of Tsinghua, Beijing, the
PRC in June 2016. Ms Chen is the executive vice president of
the Guangdong International Overseas Chinese Chamber of
Commerce.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (FR¥)

Mr CHEN Ping (BR¥ ) , aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr Chen graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984
majoring in finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance
in Nankai University, the PRC in December 1990. Mr Chen has
lectured at the Lingnan College, Sun Yat-Sen University for
more than 27 years in Guangdong Province, the PRC, teaching
international finance. He is currently the head of Marine Economic
Research Centre of Sun Yat-Sen University (/& ¥ 48 % ff 55 b
£x) . Mr Chen also assumed various posts in societies and clubs
concerning economics and finance, such as a council member
at International Finance Society of China* (M EEE S RES ),
International Finance Society* (Bl & g2 & ) and China Society
of World Economics* (R Bt R4 EE &) . Mr Chen is also
engaged in academic researches with focuses on finance theories
and policies, global economics and so forth, and has published a
number of essays and publications. As an experienced professor,
Mr Chen has won various awards for the lecture materials used
and also for the essays published. In 1997, Mr Chen’s teaching
materials entitled International finance* (B[ & & )) was awarded
National Educational Achievement Award — Second Class* (%
HEKR —_F4) by the Committee of Education of the PRC. In
May 2002, Mr Chen'’s paper entitled Study on the effect of merger
and acquisition of listed companies on wealth* ( { £ A 73 4
HUTEE M) B = AR FE AT 95 ) ) was selected for the Best Paper Award
of the 9th Global Finance Association Annual Conference by the
9th GFA Annual Conference Program Committee. In 2005, Mr
Chen’s teaching and research achievements entitled Exploration
and practice of educational internationalisation* ( (2 &1t
FFEREERE) ) was awarded Guangdong Province Educational
Achievement Award — First Class* (BREHERRE—F4) . In
2006, Mr Chen was selected as talented person for Ministry of
Education New Century Outstanding Person Support Scheme* (#{
B L BEE AT ZIFEETE) . In 2007, Mr Chen received Bao
Steel Outstanding Teacher Award* (Z i - fE/HEFHEMLE) . Mr
Chen was an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Group Co., Ltd.* (BMEKIBKRMBMRAE), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with effect from 10 October
2016. Mr Chen was an independent director of Rising Nonferrous
Metals Share Co., Ltd* (BB BRHBMRAF), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and resigned from such
post with effect from 13 April 2015. Mr Chen was an independent
director of Guangdong By-health Biotechnology Co., Ltd* (¥ )5
EERAEwRIERMDBER AR, acompany listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and resigned from such post with effect from 25
September 2014.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr See Tak Wah (HEfE %)

Mr SEE Tak Wah (jEf2 %), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr See is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr See
graduated from the Management School of Waikato University in
New Zealand with first class honours in Bachelor of Management
Studies. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Australia and New Zealand, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr See has over 32 years of
experience in financial and general management as he previously
worked as the regional business controller of Nokia Mobile Phones
Asia Pacific, the managing director of Nokia Mobile Phones Hong
Kong, the chief operating officer of First Mobile Group Holdings
Limited and held key management positions in the North Asia
offices of Philips and Siemens. Mr See currently runs his own
strategic consultancy business. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Tesson Holdings Limited, which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1201). In
addition, he was an independent non-executive director of Sun
East Technology (Holdings) Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0365), and resigned
from such post with effect from 27 September 2016.

Mr Tian Xiao Ren ( HEZ)

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (FHEEZ)), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 August 2014. Mr Tian
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Tian graduated from Zhejiang Radio and Television
University in the PRC in 1985 and studied the Master of Business
Administration Degree at Hangzhou University in the PRC from
1995 to 1998. He was appointed as vice chairman of Bank of
China Group Investment Company Limited from 2006 to 2013.
Prior to 2006, Mr Tian was the president of Bank of China of
Guangdong Province and Jiangxi Province, the PRC and the Vice-
President of Bank of China of Zhejiang Province, the PRC for 26
years. He has over 31 years of experience in the banking and
financial field. Mr Tian is now a senior economist in the PRC and is
entitled to the special subsidy awarded by the state council of the
People’s Republic of China in recognition of his contribution to the
economy of China.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Li Yu Heng (ZF18)

Mr LI Yu Heng (Z=F18), aged 36, joined the Group in 2007 as
a technician, secretary of the chairman and other duties. Mr Li
has built up profound experience in business management. Mr
Li rejoined the Group in August 2016 as chief operation officer of
PCKSP. Mr Li is responsible for the operation and management
of the diversified business and the performance appraisal of the
Group. Mr. Li graduated from an undergraduate course in 2004,
majoring in material molding and control. Mr Li obtained a master’s
degree in material processing engineering in 2007. Prior to joining
the Company, he had served as assistant president in a listed
company for 5 years, responsible for daily business management.

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( 3 H})

Ms WONG Pui Shan ( ¥ Hf) , aged 41, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the
Company, she had served international audit firms for four years
and listed companies as financial controller and company secretary
for more than 15 years.

Ms Liu Yonghe ( 83k )

Ms LIU Yonghe (ZI5k#5) , aged 49, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms
Liu has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with PCKSP for
over 22 years. Ms Liu is now the vice general manager and a
director of PCKSP responsible for cash flow and working capital
control. She completed her professional accounting education at
Lanzhou University of Finance and Economics, the PRC in 1990
with a bachelor's degree in economics and obtained professional
gualification as assistant accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 25
years of experience in the accounting and finance industry. She
was awarded the “March 8th Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and
the post she held was awarded as the Women’s Exemplary Post
by the Guangzhou Women’s Union in March 2005. In October
2009, Ms Liu obtained a master’'s degree in the Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) programme at the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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COMPANY SECRETARY ARME

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( Z %) T+

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong FTREABARANABIWME - TXRITRARAZET
is working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her 1o KBRS 5 R ARE 30

biography are set out above in this section.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in the property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 106 to 234.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on pages 235 to 236. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association were nil.
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The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on
the dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For
dividend purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined
by reference to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC
statutory financial statements which are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the
Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”").

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 35% of the total revenue
of the Group, and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 11%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 72% of the total cost of sales of the Group,
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 24%. None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Ms. Chen Zhao Hua

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Ping

Mr. See Tak Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. Chen Ping, Mr.
See Tak Wah and Mr. Tian Xiao Ren, and as at the date of this
report, the Company considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 54 to 63 of this annual report.

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association,
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian and Mr. Tian Xiao Ren will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has renewed the service contract
with the Company for a term of three years on 1 February 2016.
Each of our independent non-executive Directors (except Mr.
Tian Xiao Ren (“Mr. Tian”)) has renewed the letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of two years commencing from 1
February 2018 and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice. Mr. Tian has renewed
the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 1 August 2016 and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice. The
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee have
reviewed the terms of service contracts and letters of appointment
of all Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the’SFO”")), which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by
the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the
“Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpns 514
Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
4= —RREH ARz EwE (L)
Personal interest
18 A HE =
Note:

1. These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits Limited.

2. Bournam has pledged 525,742,000 shares of the Company,

representing 52.0% of total number of issued shares of the Company,
in favour of independent parties.

T EFFERE

EERROREEAROREFNERR A
v

RZB—tF+ZA=+—H FRRAEFLSRT
BAEBRARBHEBBEE (EERFSF LPEK
5] (5571%) ([BHFLMEGEO D MET 2 HE) 2
B SAEERO I (RFBERME) RAERERESZ
Bot BAERERESFLEEENEXVEFETRED
MANGARA MBI EEIAR (BREEER
BREFEPERIZZZHEXREFRRERSERZ
B MORR)  HIREEF R R RO 53521% 78 50 8%
RARFRRBZIGHFE Z S LM AARE LT RAM
HZLTRETAERETERRZNRETR ([FE
SN AMERRR NE R ZEEIXRIT

ARFRH
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company
Position shares held RARTH
R BERGEHE BRERSW
Long 701,911,000 69.42%
HE (note 2)
(HMt352)
Long 4,350,000 0.43%
e
B 5

1. %5 A Bournam Profits Limited$65 @ H2 5 %
TRABRRELEEBREEA REBEFTHFRAEK
Bl BR & % £ %% 18 {EX Bournam Profits Limited 5 78 &)
701,911,0000% i 1) 7 #E 5 #E % o

2. Bournam B MBI A = B i A K #525,742,0008% &
NRRRD AEARRQRE BT B #52.0% °
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Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr. Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital
of Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.85% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 January 2010, pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed
by the then sole shareholder of the Company, the Company
adopted its share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or
the “Scheme”). The details of the Scheme are disclosed below
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
equity entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any members of
the Group holds an equity interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement and
growth of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the day on which
trading of the shares commence on the Main Board (i.e. not
exceeding 100,000,000 shares). Up to the date of this annual
report, no options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme and thus the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme remained 100,000,000
shares, representing about 9.89% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the annual report.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share 4. BREFITERLEENEAEFE  RNEM
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed 1% TZERABMERN TEBRBARAAERBEITR
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being. 1% ©

5. Period within which the securities must be taken up under 5. REBERERBEZFSFORG:-2EBENREZY

an option: an option may be accepted by a participant within
21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

BREEREZABRES -+ BRNETBERE-B
RIETRIEBERESENGEICEFTRAERAE
FEEABANBAEABRTE LHARTAZLHE
ﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ'@%EﬁF%Txﬁ
ERAREHEREE AR+ FER HAEETIR
AI#X L2 SBAREMIRE -

6. The minimum period for which an option must be held before 6. HETEAMESEERENZEHR KRIFEES

it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

SITRE RERAR ARZR H BRI Z N
B RIS AR &R AR o

7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the 7. FRGE SNCBE A RN R N BROE RO EE AR R R
option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on BFASZMIBTHREBARE:
acceptance of the grant of an option.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a 8. BENTHEMEE ZEBRBHEFET BT

price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

BIROEOHRREZ2RLBREZOE AEBR
P ARER LRI TE : (i) W EE
RERHBREZNBMADMERS B EB A
BB RS HAF U T B R (i) Rip|E
BE(UABSERE) -

9. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme 9. HEREENSTESR HEBA T —ZTF—

will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 January 2010, being the date on which the Share Option
Scheme was adopted.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to

31 December 2017, no share option has been granted or agreed to
be granted to any person under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME IR 17 2R B =t &)

On 22 March 2012, the Board approved the adoption of the share RITE——F=ZfF-+_-_H EEFeHEFNRHDE
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”). EhEt & (TR D BEmEt &) -

1. Purpose of the Share Award Scheme: the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme is to recognise the contributions by and
to give incentives to certain eligible persons in order to retain
them for the continuing operation, growth and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

2. Operation of the Share Award Scheme: the Share Award
Scheme shall be administered by the Board in accordance
with the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The trustee
shall hold the shares and the income derived therefrom in
accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

The Board may select any grantee for participation in the
Share Award Scheme as a selected grantee (the “Selected
Grantee”) and determine the number of awarded shares and
inform the trustee and the Selected Grantee(s) accordingly.

The Board shall either before or after identification of the
Selected Grantee(s) (i) cause the Company to directly instruct
a licensed securities dealer to purchase the awarded shares
and settle payment for the awarded shares and deliver the
awarded shares to the trustee subsequently; or (ii) cause
to be paid to the trustee (either by way of contribution or
loan from the Company’s funds) (a) the sum of purchasing
the shares and the related purchase expenses or (b) the
nominal or such other amount required for the subscription
of the awarded shares by the trustee as soon as practicable
to purchase the awarded shares required (the “Reference
Amount”).

Within 30 business days on which the trading of the shares
has not been suspended (or such longer period as the Trustee
and the Board may agree from time to time) after receiving
the reference amount, the Board shall instruct the trustee
to apply the same towards the subscription of shares at the
benchmarked price as stipulated in the Listing Rules from
time to time or the purchase of the awarded shares from the
market during a specific period and at a specific price range
as instructed by the Company.
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Awarded shares and related income held by the trustee
upon the trust and which are referable to a Selected Grantee
shall vest to that Selected Grantee on the vesting date.
The Board may also, in its absolute discretion, determine
the performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria, if any, to be satisfied by the Selected Grantee before
the awarded shares can vest.

The trustee shall not be obliged to exercise any voting rights
and powers in respect of any shares held under the trust
(including but not limited to the awarded shares, the returned
shares, any bonus shares and scrip shares) until such shares
have been transferred to the relevant Selected Grantee.

Participants of the Share Award Scheme: any employee or
director (including, without limitation, any executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive directors) of any
member of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

Share Award Scheme limit: the Board shall not make any
further award of awarded shares which will result in the
number of shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme representing more than ten per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date
of each financial year during the term of the Share Award
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Award Scheme: the maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to an award or awards to a Selected Grantee who
is an independent non-executive Director of the Company
at any one time shall not in aggregate exceed 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date of
the relevant financial year of the Company and the aggregate
value of which shall not exceed HK$5,000,000 (based on the
closing price of the shares on the business day immediately
preceding the vesting date) as at the vesting date.

The maximum number of shares which may be subject to an
award or awards to any Selected Grantee at any one time
shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the first date of the relevant financial
year of the Company.
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6. The duration of the Share Award Scheme: subject to any
early termination of the Share Award Scheme as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on 22
March 2012.

From the date of adoption of the Share Award Scheme and up to
31 December 2017, no share has been awarded or granted to any
person under the Share Award Scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

Shares of the Company

Name

wE/EB

Ms. Su Xing Fang
BAEF L

Bournam Profits Limited
Bournam Profits Limited

T EFFERE

Capacity
&4

Interest of spouse (note 1)

Ao s (FYAEL)

Beneficial owner (note 2)
EnlEA A (MFE2)
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SATt ARG HESMAERAEN KE
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Note:

1. Ms. Su Xing Fang is the spouse of Mr. Chen Chang. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Su Xing Fang is deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested.

2. The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Chang. Mr. Chen is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.

3. Bournam has pledged 525,742,000 shares of the Company,
representing 52.0% of total number of issued shares of the Company,
in favour of independent parties.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 80 to 96.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

74 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B eE
1. BAFREIRMELEZREB-REZSFLBMEGEN

BAFTLLIRERNREEEBRE RERER ZHR
BB R TP AR

2. BournamZ 2 HBRABKREXLER —REZEAE IR
BESMBEEN - BRE LR AR Bournam FH K
701,911,0000% A& 17 7 1 A #E 7 ©

3.  Bournam B MBI A = A= i A K #525,742,0000% &
NEIRAD AR BB BTN 48 8 A952.0% °

BE HEYIBEEARFT LTRSS

KBE-T—t&+-A=+—ALFER AR
&EEWW%AEﬁﬁ%;~E@&ﬁ%Eﬁ$AH
B E S -

ﬁ__\%ﬁ“x‘L\
KRB PTERMBEEE
PEERMEN-

TEERTHRHNFESOEICE N

BrBER
ARAREBERAUSFERESEZNMEECEERE
3

BETEHRZEESTA
ARD TR LR BN S 10FT B E A R F AT
$XBNBETA ((BLTA)) -FABENER 2

RESRRASNBE_T—tE+-A=+—AL
DM EETE

Annual Report 2017



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFEWRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase of Spare Parts from Guangzhou City Pearl
River Machine Tool Works Co., Ltd* ( BN BRI KA
PR E])

On 4 December 2012, the Group entered into the spare parts
purchase agreement with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine
Tool Works Co., Ltd.* (BIMNTHKIHEKBER DR (*GZMT”) for
a term of three years commenced on 1 January 2013 and ended
on 31 December 2015. On 4 December 2015, the parties entered
into a new spare parts purchase agreement to renew the terms
of the original spare parts purchase agreement for a further three
years. Pursuant to the spare parts purchase agreements, the
Group agreed to purchase spare parts of the machines used for
the manufacture and processing of steel pipes from GZMT, with
the annual cap for each of the three years ended 31 December
2015 being RMB28 million, RMB30 million and RMB32 million, and
the annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2018 being RMB30 million, RMB32 million and RMB34 million
respectively (the “Proposed Annual Caps”). During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group purchased spare parts from GZMT
of a total amount of approximately RMB4.2 million, which was
within the annual cap. Such spare parts purchase transactions
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than those available to independent third
parties and in accordance with the purchase agreement. Details
of the above transactions are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

GZMT is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of machine tools.
GZMT is ultimately, wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang, the controlling shareholder and chairman of the Company,
and is therefore an associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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As the Group is involved in the manufacture and sales of welded
steel pipes and the provision of related manufacturing services, it
purchases spare parts of the machines used for the manufacture
and processing of steel pipes. Such spare parts were and will
be used by the Group as components for (i) the repair and
maintenance of its machines and production lines; and (ii) the
installation of new production lines and new production facilities.
Some of the spare parts are general accessory items and some
of them are required to be tailor-made, thus ancillary processing
work on the spare parts is required. The design of the spare parts
is provided by the Group. During the considerably long period of
purchasing spare parts from GZMT, GZMT have been a reliable
source of supply, in terms of being capable of providing spare
parts with the required technical and quality standards that suit the
Group’s needs and for keeping confidentiality of the design for the
spare parts provided by the Group.

The purchases of spare parts set out above constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules,
as one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the above
transactions are more than 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the
spare parts purchase transactions are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.71 to
14A.72 of the Listing Rules but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and are subject to the annual
review requirement under Rules 14A.55 to 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. Announcements were published on 4 December 2012 and
4 December 2015 regarding the above transactions in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied
with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in so far as they are applicable.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out in note 37 to the financial
statements and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Directors had received a letter from Ernst & Young, the
auditors of the Company, confirming that the continuing connected
transactions (i) had been approved by the Board; (ii) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company; (iii) had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) had not exceeded the cap amount for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 as set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December 2015.

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works
Co., Ltd.* (BINM IR IR B R R F) (“GZMT”) for the purchase
of spare parts and production line (“Purchase Transaction”) from
the latter for the maintenance of machines, installation of rolling
line electrical drive system equipment and transformation of steel
transportation system of bimetal composite plate processing plant
in Lianyungang, the PRC. The consideration for the Purchase
Transaction is approximately RMB173.6 million. The purchase of
the spare parts and production line is mainly for the construction
of the bimetal composite plate processing plant in Lianyungang,
the PRC as per the Company’s announcement dated 18 November
2016 and the circular dated 9 January 2017. GZMT is ultimately,
wholly and beneficially, owned by Mr. Chen Chang, the controlling
shareholder and chairman of the Company, and is therefore an
associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected person of the
Company. The Purchase Transaction was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting on 19 June 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the
amount due from a related party of approximately RMB84.6 million
was the advance payment to GZMT for the Purchase Transaction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 February 2018, the Group has entered into the agreement
(“Agreement”) with Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co. Limited* (&
REB{EHBMRAQF) ("Guangdong Yuecai”) and Guangzhou
Asset Management Company Limited* (BN EEEIEBR A A)
("Guangzhou Asset Management”) in relation to the cooperation to
facilitate the change of use of land (the “Land”) held by Panyu Chu
Kong Steel Pipe Co. Ltd (FBIK)LE BR A 7A]) (“PCKSP”) from
“industrial” to “residential and commercial” (the “Change of Land
Use”), and the disposal of (actual and deemed) an aggregate of
59% of the equity interest in the PCKSP to the Guangdong Yuecai.
The Group shall complete the Asset Reorganisation. After the
Asset Reorganisation, the only asset held by the PCKSP shall be
the Land.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Guangdong Yuecai and the a nominee
of Guangzhou Asset Management shall, by stages, (i) inject capital
into PCKSP and acquire 19% of the equity interest in PCKSP for
RMB240 million (the “Capital Injection”); (ii) implement the Asset
Reorganisation; (iii) apply for the Change of Land Use; and (iv)
acquire 40% of the equity interest in PCKSP from the Group for a
consideration equivalent to 40% of the fair value of the Land (after
the Change of Land Use) (the “Equity Transfer”).

Upon completion of the Disposal (comprising the Capital Injection
and the Equity Transfer), PCKSP will be owned as to 40% by the
Group, 20% by Guangdong Yuecai and 40% by the a nominee
of Guangzhou Asset Management (subject to the exercise of the
option by Guangzhou Asset Management in relation to the Equity
Transfer).

The transactions contemplated in the Agreement shall be
conditional upon the approval by the Shareholders at the EGM
on 19 April 2018. The EGM will be convened and held for the
Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, to approve (i) the
Capital Injection and (ii) the Equity Transfer.

Apart from above, there are no significant events subsequent
to 31 December 2017 which would materially affect the Group’s
operating and financial performance as of the date of consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The Company has appointed Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. A resolution will
be proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM
to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Chang
Chairman
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The Board
considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the opinion
of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and Chief
Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG Code.
The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have
the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.

The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Member of
the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Ms. Chen Zhao Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. See Tak Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of
the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. Mr. Chen Chang, Ms. Chen
Zhao Nian and Ms. Chen Zhao Hua are members of the same
family. Mr. Chen Chang is the father of both Ms. Chen Zhao
Nian and Ms. Chen Zhao Hua.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn.
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments
of each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director
at the meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board
is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2017.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communication.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company
is responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, six Board
meetings were held.
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The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
A.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr. Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time to ensure appropriate move is being taken should
suitable circumstance arise.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Board is responsible for selection and approval of
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has
established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and
making recommendations on the appointment of Directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has renewed his/her service
contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 1 February 2016. All of their appointments
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors (except
Mr Tian) has been re-appointed for a term of two years
commencing from 1 February 2018, and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Mr Tian Xiao Ren has
been re-appointed as independent non-executive Director for
a term of two years commencing from 1 August 2016, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-appointments/
appointment of both executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors and recommended to the Board of
Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms Chen Zhao
Nian and Mr Tian Xiao Ren will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.
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Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors
attended seminars and training courses in relation to
corporate governance, Listing Rules update or financial
markets update arranged by professional firms/institutions.
Records of continuing professional development have been
maintained by the company secretary. Besides, the company
secretary also conducted briefings on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and provided materials
for Listing Rules amendments to all Directors for their
reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors has confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.
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Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect
of each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr Chen Ping, Mr See Tak Wah and Mr Tian Xiao Ren. Mr
See Tak Wah is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and the internal
control and risk management procedures and systems of our
Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the condensed unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group.

(B)
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditors before submission to
the Board;

. To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017, of which two meetings with
external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit
Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and processes, and the
re-appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the
internal control system of the Group has been identified.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees to raise concerns of possible
improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit
Committee.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2017 and interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company recognises the benefits of a board that
compose of a balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed
its composition and considered a number of aspects,
including gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in
accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board consider
that the existing board composition is well diversified and
appropriate to the business development of the Company.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22
March 2012 in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The majority of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
to review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year and up to the date of the annual report,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition
of the Board and made recommendations to the Board for
the re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the chairman, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity
policy determined the policy for nomination of directors,
nomination procedure process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and all members of the Committee
attended the meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Tian Xiao Ren is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of our Directors and senior management and determine
on behalf of the Board specific remuneration packages
and conditions of employment for our Directors and senior
management. Remuneration will be determined by reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities as well as market
practice and conditions. None of the Directors themselves
approve their own remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of the annual report,
the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of
the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held and all members attended
the meeting.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference
adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management
and to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The attendance of individual members of the Board and other
Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the table below:

AGM
BRRAFAE
Executive Directors WES
Mr Chen Chang RELE
(Chairman of the Board) EL3-£59, 11
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BkEZL n
Ms Chen Zhao Hua BokE L+ n
Independent Non-executive BUFATES
Directors
Mr Chen Ping BRELE n
Mr See Tak Wah MmRELE 1
Mr Tian Xiao Ren AEEEE n

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRSs
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
and statutory requirements have been consistently complied
with. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.

Independent Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, Ernst & Young,
for services rendered is broken down below:

Audit services ZE R T%
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(D) Internal Controls

(E)

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Company has an internal audit department to ensure effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system
of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group
achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on
quarterly basis and assessed the effectiveness (according
to its magnitude and significance) of the Group’s internal
control system which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls as well
as risk management functions during the year ended 31
December 2017. No major issue was raised which may affect
shareholders.

The Company has internal procedures on reporting
and disseminating inside information and maintaining
confidentiality.

Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of the current Company Secretary is set out in the
section headed “Directors and senior management” on page
54 to 63 of this annual report. The Company Secretary has
complied with the professional training requirement as set out
in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2017.

(D) mEpEEE

(E)
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(F) Shareholders’ Rights (F) BRERRER

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@zhujiang.com.hk. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the laws and the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company may from time to time
in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to
be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director. A shareholder may propose a person for election as
a Director by lodging the following documents to the Board
or Company Secretary at our Hong Kong office at Room
1, 15/F., Tower 3, China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong: 1) a notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person (with full name and
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) for election as a Director; and 2) a notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected as a Director.
Such notices shall be lodged at least 7 clear days before the
date of the general meeting and the period for lodgement of
such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and shall be at least 7 clear days in length.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.
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(G) Investor Relations and Communication With

Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn or http://pck.todayir.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted. A shareholder communication policy is in place to
ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to information of the Company. The policy is
available on the Company’s website.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on Friday,
8 June 2018. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head
of investor relation will be the primary contact point for
communications with investors and analysts.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year. The latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
posted on the Company’s website.

2017 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmans of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and the external
auditors attended the 2017 AGM.

At the 2017 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed
at the 2017 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 together with the reports of the Directors and
auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Ms Chen Zhao Hua
as executive Director and Mr See Tak Wah as independent
non-executive Director and authorised the Board to fix the
Directors’ remuneration; (iii) reappointed Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company and authorised the Directors to fix
its remuneration; (iv) approved a general mandate for the
Directors to allot and issue of new shares of an amount not
exceeding 20 per cent of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the 2017 AGM; (v) approved a
general mandate for the Directors to repurchase shares of an
amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date
of the 2017 AGM; (vi) extended the general mandate granted
to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue, and deal with
additional shares in the share capital of the Company by an
amount not exceeding the amount of the shares repurchased
by the Company. All resolutions were passed by way of a poll
conducted by the Company’s registrar. The poll voting results
of the 2017 AGM were available on the Company’s website.
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2018 Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting ("AGM”) of the Company will
be held at 7th Floor, W Hong Kong Hotel, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon Station, Kowloon on Friday, 8 June 2018 at
10:30 a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2018 AGM and
exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to ask
guestions relating to the business of the meeting. Details of
the resolutions to be considered in the 2018 AGM will be set
out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders together
with the 2017 annual report.

Others

Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2017.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017.

(H)
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The Group cares about the community and adheres to an
ingrained culture of fulfilling its social responsibilities by giving a
much-needed boost to the environment in Guangdong Province,
China and other regions in which it operates.

This session is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

This ESG session would separate into two subject areas-(A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A.1 Emissions
Carbon Dioxide Emissions
The Group has been focusing on minimizing emission of
pollutants and waste such as carbon dioxide and packaging
materials in order to efficiently consume resources and to
comply with relevant laws.

For the energy indirect emissions, the Greenhouse gases
(GHG) emissions associated with the electricity purchase in
PRC are provided by the relevant provider of electricity.

Emission factor

PEREF

Industry’s region
THEHE

Electricity supplied by China
REHEENE

0.63 kg/unit (kwh)
0.63F %=, EBi (TER)

The Group would consume electricity for lighting the
manufacturing bases powering the equipment and
machineries. Therefore, carbon dioxide or green gas would be
indirectly produced when the Group consumes electricity. The
Group has implemented the policies to reduce the emission of
the carbon dioxide as follow:

1) The design of new factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai

is allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to
reduce use of electricity;

T EFFERE

AEB-—BERADELENED BAETELEE
T ATEERRSEHMEREEMENRERRE
—t e

A E TR E LR R 8727 GRIR -

D) ((RE -HEREARSEIIDRRE-BF
EMAEINKMR - E—F-—A-BE_ZT—+F
TZA=T - AHHAERERME T AR IER -

HERERRK

RRF HEgRELBREDBA)EHERLRB)HLEME
z%ﬁ%iw'#f TZHRBHELEAER FBW

—F:
A. BE
Al BB

ZEE N
AEBE-—BERNRREERD AR REBEMN
BESRY M EZMHR 2B MMBEIRR
BTAERRAR

EREREREZKELNSRY T @ NP BEAE
BENFRHBEERBYNENTIHABEMH#

%ﬁ%ﬂi’f/\ °
Quantity of
purchased CO2 equivalent
electricity emissions
BEES “EtmEEHER

22.8 million kWh
22,800,000 FL B

14.4 million kg/kWh
14,400,000F 5/

FEE
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A.2

A.3

2) The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time.

Waste management

The Group remains focused on environmental protection
and complied with local legislation and standards for
environmental protection, e.g. Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China Prevention (& B A R &0
BlIR1ER %), Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FF#E AR
HMBE KRS ZP8%). Our production bases are featured
with high-end sewage treatment equipment. Sewage will be
treated before recycling and discharge.

Use of Resources

The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity,
water and petrol. The Group aims at and has been reducing
consumption of various resources. Resources consumption by
the Group during the year is listed in the table below:

Resources Consumption

BERHRE

Electricity consumption
Water consumption
FEIK

Petrol

UM

The Company will assess on staff to reduce the environment
impact from the major resources.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group endeavors to calculate the amount of materials
needed for our production based on the principle of minimizing
surplus materials. In addition, the Group puts in place a scrap
metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted steel produced
in our process of production to recycling companies.

A.2

A.3
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B. SOCIAL B. #&

B.1 Employment B.1 & &
The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace AEERHEEEEENRITTHERE S8BT
practice free from discrimination and providing equal TRER R ER B EEM - BRxE
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour, MR RIS T EHE KMREEIREE -

sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 1,600 employees. RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H AEEHBET
1,600f °

Department Profile

bk

Management
g
General administration 11%
and others
—RRITER R E At
30%

Procurement

pRAE \/ \
9
1% R&Q Production and
Ft e logistics
4% HERYIR
Quality control Sales and marketing 45%
BE#ES  Finance HE NS HERE
5
4% 3%
2%
The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new AEBEREFEIRIAREES  RE R
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality, # ERERG EEIWE -EA BI-®H
race for selection, hiring, training, compensation and MEREAFTERE-RECHRE-
promotion.
The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s AEBEET (REAREXMBELEE) (P =
Republic of China {FZE A R A B %5 &))%), Labour Contract ARHEMELEHERE) RAMABEEZHETEN
Law of People’s Republic of China (FZEARLMEL A F B R UK ©

%) and other relevant laws.

TR LFFERE BIAMARAREAEEZRBRATF
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B.2

Our employment contract specified the terms including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information of
policies on compensation and dismissal, employment benefits,
rights on termination, business conduct and leave benefits.

Health and Safety

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations
and adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, to ensure
people’s health and safety, and to promote sustainable
development. Our target is to achieve zero accidents, zero
injuries and zero losses in order to meet the international HSE
management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.

Occupational Safety

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and
is responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on
operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk
management, including the “Control procedures of the new,
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification
and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff

reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational
safety and regularly provides training for staff. In 2017,
the Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions
bases for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness
and emergency response, and held hazards identification
programs and assemblies of risk management activities.

B.2
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B.3 Development and Training B.3 BRERIZI

Staff Development and Training

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice
board, the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable
working environment among various departments and teams.
We offer our employees access to learning and understanding
about the Group, so that each employee and contractors
of the Group or visitors can recognize their responsibilities
and obligations in the aspect of improving the environment
and enhancing occupational health and safety performance.
We make great efforts on improving the environment and
occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards environment
and occupational health and safety. This policy is available
for review by employees at any time. In the year, the Group
further improved site management standards, achieved the
goal of dedicated management, and further promoted the 6S
management model in the Company. Project meetings were
kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai and Lianyungang.

The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses is provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.

The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.

T EFFERE

B T &5

AEBERESHE B RHREEFHTA HAE
Erz2ER RETERROASEEDESE
F-28MHA ABETSEE TRAKE EX
SENEEET AEEMABR HHABEEFHR
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REET-
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B.4

B.5

To reinforce the employees’ sense of belongings to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for its
employees every year, including basketball and table tennis
contests, etc. In addition, we have provided activities that are
of educational significance and served to enhance the work
performance of our employees, including the “Business Oral
English”, “Training and Assembly for Fire”, “Sales Training”,
“Joint Training and Team Building Program for Financial
Department”, and “Annual Sales Meeting”, etc.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities.

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (1 AR MEI 4 8)5%), Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China (FZEAR KB L E 4 [
’%) and other relevant laws. The Group has not employed any
staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of
the PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The
Group keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is
based on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship
with them. To improve logistics efficiency, the Company has
established a self-operated wharf in the Zhuhai production
base and formed a joint venture company to construct and
operate a port in Lianyungang production base for the delivery
of steel products and the receipt of raw materials.

B.4

B.5
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B.6 Product Responsibility B.6 EmEE

Product quality

With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number
of international standards. We are also the only domestic
welded steel pipe manufacturer being granted five national
honors, namely the “Superior Quality Award for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical Products”, “High and New Technology
Enterprise”, “National Recognized Enterprise Technology
Center”, and National Key New Products and hosts a
“Academician Workstation”. We are the main drafter of the
national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in China.
Meanwhile, with the setting up of the “Post-doctoral Research
Station” and “Academician Workstation”, the Company
strives to further enhance its product quality and extends the
application of its products.

The Group strictly upholds the 1ISO9001 quality management
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at
each production process stage in accordance with the best
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening
test. Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each product
meets customer requirements. We have built a testing
center in compliance with the national standards, and the
center has been recognised by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The Group’s
testing center is equipped with a wide variety of laboratory
equipment, including universal materials testing machine, low
temperature impact material testing machine, drop weight
tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced cracking (HIC)
testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking (SSC), crack tip
opening displacement (CTOD) test, computer-controlled
chemical composition vacuum direct reading spectrometer
and microscope. Achieving six standards, our measuring
chamber has passed through the 1SO10012: 2003 AAA
measurement management system certification. This proves
that our measuring instruments are of high qualification
and effectiveness. The Group’s testing centre has passed
the “National safety quality standardisation” and obtained
the “TUV SUD Metal Materials Laboratory Accreditation
Certificate”. Our products, an unfailing symbol of quality,
are blessed with unparalleled reputation in the international
market under the “PCK” brand.
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B.7

B.8

Anti-corruption

The operation of various departments of the Group is in
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We
have established a whistle blowing policy, which enables
our employees to express their views to the management
anonymously.

Community Investment

Contribution to the Community

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. During the year, with the
organisation of a couple of educational, sports, cultural
and charitable activities, we promoted the exuberance
of Guangzhou City, thus enhancing foreign interest in
Guangzhou and fostering urban development. These activities
included:

. Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd Table Tennis
Contest

. Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go Team
Championships

. “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd Dragon Boats
Championships

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. During the year, we
participated in:

. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award

by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”

B.7

B.8
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The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively
participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,
including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for
seeking job.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS GRS

/ Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888

Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas
Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu
Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
115 to 234, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB873,755,000 during the year ended 31 December 2017 and,
as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB2,166,957,000. As stated in note 2.1, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

T EFFERE

RBRRCERBZERTHBRER
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Estimation of fair value of investment property

REYEZ XN FERE

The Group has one commercial property in Mainland China.
Such investment property is measured at fair value and its
carrying amount was RMB1,138,221,000 as at 31 December
2017.

EEERPEANME -—EERADE- R -_T—t+tF+ -_A=+—
B ZEEMEARNTEFELEKRAEMEBERARKLL38,221,000
IE o

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the investment
property. To support management’'s determination of the fair
value, the Group engaged an external valuer to perform the
valuation on the investment property at the end of the reporting
period.
EREARETREMENRATFEFLDEZMARAE - RED
EEEREATE BESEEFISBHEMNRNREBREKRE
MEEITIEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 14
“Investment Property” to the financial statements.
BRBEBEHNMBREAMNEI [EEgHE RG] R4
ZEME] -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

As to our audit procedures, we have:

ERFNFEZBET  HMAD:

. Evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer;

- AMEREMNEBRE - BYMREE:

. Involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
to assess the methodologies and assumptions adopted
in the valuation for estimating the fair value of the
investment property and performed benchmarking of
the market value of the investment property held by
the Group to other comparable properties; and

o HBEANNEEER BHBRMAFLEEREDERITE
NSRBI ERRR T EXEEBRENREME
MEGEEREMAIE LR EETEELER &

. Assessed the sufficiency of disclosures about
investment properties.

. RHAEBREVERESNTRME-
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Impairment of long-term assets

R EEZ B E

As at 31 December 2017, the market capitalisation of the
Group accounted for 53% of the carrying amount of its
net assets before the impairment of long-term assets. The
decline in the revenue and operating losses in the Group’s
steel pipes segment in the past few years is the factor which
heightens the risk of impairment associated with the Group’s
long-term assets, including property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments, and an investment in a joint
venture. Management measured the recoverable amounts of
the long-term assets which are the higher of the respective
cash-generating units’ (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal
and their value in use. Recoverability of the CGU is dependent
on macroeconomic assumptions about future demands of steel
pipe products, the discount rate and exchange rates as well
as internal assumptions related to future production levels and
operating costs. These estimates are particularly significant
due to the uncertain economic outlook, product price volatility,
forecasted future production and market demand. The outcome
of impairment assessment can vary significantly when different
assumptions are applied.
RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H EBEEEWEGEFEE (NK
REOEEREAN REEZSE3% BEAHF ELEHEES» A
W THREREFZREERIRIENER SE£BERHEE (&
EWME - BEREH ENLHESUIR —HBEERFZEKRE)
BERR AR -BERENEHERELSN ([(REEEEM])
ZRAFEREERAALEGEHRBEEMEP zRGEFERY
BEZAIBKEE -ZREEEE 2 AT EYIE TR T E ZE @
ARBF MRERERARERREEKTREEREGEH 2
NBBREZZELERIME -HREEN R EmEBREE-
ﬁﬂ*%i%&m ”Xxﬁmr%%ﬁﬁtﬁigoﬁﬁﬂﬁ
ZERFEEGHAERATRBREMERBEEER-

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 12 “Property,
Plant and Equipment” to the financial statements.

BB BEBHNBHREMEI 2 [EESHE RG] K12
Z [ mE MKl -

T EFFERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

As to our audit procedures, we have:

ERFNFEZBET  HMAD:

. Reviewed management’s impairment assessment
of the CGU by comparing the carrying values of the
long-term assets, the fair value less costs of disposal
and their value in use, assessed the assumptions and
methodologies (long term growth rate, budgeted prices
based on the market trend and budgeted sales quantity
based on the existing production capacity) adopted by
management, and involved our valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the discount rate;

. FBERERHAEECREE RFTERESEHRAREE

REEEHERRYEZBE eEL B 2 RMENE 7T
ERERAzZREERGE(RBAERE EXMmEBY
BT HEERREARB AEREE CHNERE) &
EAGMEERGYE ST HEERE

. Evaluate forecasts used with respect to future
revenues and operating results by comparing
the forecasts with the historic performance of the
respective CGUs and the business development plan;
and

- FEAKBAREHERSELBMBAERRREBER
STEETHE - AR R R M e R BB P 2 TR
54

. Assessed the adequacy of disclosures about
impairment in the consolidated financial statements.

« HMEGAMBBRRAZHABRERENTRIE-
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Key audit matter

HREEREE

Impairment provisions of trade receivables

B 5 EWAR 52 B B

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables
after impairment of RMB335,591,000, of which a balance of
RMB186,782,000 was aged over one year, accounting for 56%
of the total balance of trade receivables.
RZE—+F+_HA=+—H EBE5EALCREREHELE
A R #335,591,0007T * H A 45 #f A R #186,782,0007T HI BR e
B —F HEHEWRFBEERE56% -

The determination as to whether a trade receivable is impaired
involves significant management’s judgement. Specific factors
which management would consider include the aging of the
balances, existence of disputes, past collection history and
other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of counterparties. Management uses such information to
determine whether any objective evidence of impairment exists
for trade receivables and whether a provision for impairment is
required.

BEEIRUERRETREREYREREELE AL - E1E
EEENAERZBEARKR EEFEAMY  BEEKRLE
ARESHEMBEAFHERNERN -ERENA Ll &k #
FTEHRUWEREDFERENTEZE UREEFEREA
BB

Relevant disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 21 “Trade
and Bills Receivables” to the financial statements.

BB BEBHNABREMEI 2 [EEGHE RG] K21
ZEZRUER L EERE] -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBRNMEERARERSER

As to our audit procedures, we have:

ERFNFEZBET  HMAD:

. Tested the Group’s controls over the receivables
collection processes;
o AR EEBEHKFUREOES:

. Reviewed the Group’s assessment of the impairment
provision at the end of the reporting period by checking
the correctness of the aging of the trade receivables,
the repayment history of the debtors and the future
repayment plan for the overdue receivables;

. FBEREBEIERKERNERRES ER EBANER
M8 K B W AR R R B RGT) Ien BE&HE
P ¥ BRI R SR (E B B PR R BT Ak

. Obtained direct external confirmations for samples of
trade receivable balances; and
c BESEERRFREREABMEERINRER X

. Checked bank receipts for the settlements of trade
receivables made subsequent to the year end.
s WMEFHEBANUEREIHRUBRREENRITHRE -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik=s ARBTR ARET T

REVENUE A 5 873,293 1,443,487
Cost of sales SHE B AR (815,182) (1,361,900)
Gross profit E5 58,111 81,587
Other income and gains = PN & 5 140,553 37,564
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (107,330) (144,423)
Administrative expenses THEA (475,632) (470,977)
Exchange loss, net lEREE FR (44,121) (86,417)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 7 (426,286) (237,142)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment % Bi&= K& R E AR EE 2

and goodwill B (18,006) (516,250)
Other expenses HihEA (12,873) (105,283)
Share of loss of a joint venture i e =N/ = 17 (2,779) (1,460)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRB A& 6 (888,363) (1,442,801)
Income tax credit/(expense) e, (Bx) 10 14,608 (56,197)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR TEEER (873,755) (1,498,998)
Loss attributable to: DTATEEER:

Owners of the parent [SNEIEZFS PN (872,219) (1,495,804)

Non-controlling interests IR A (1,536) (3,194)

(873,755) (1,498,998)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATEERAERS AEMN

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREE
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted ERREE 11 RMB A R RMB A R #

(0.86) 7T (1.48) 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEREWAXR

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=-FT—+F+-A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBFIT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEER (873,755) (1,498,998)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H2EmW A (FiE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be FRE B B[] 2 27 57 26 2 18 7 A7
reclassified to profit or loss in HEh2EMA S (EE) -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEINEEBEENEN Z5

operations 153,862 (133,018)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) to be REEHRRENSEEERN

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hib 2@ A (EE)FHE

periods 153,862 (133,018)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ERNBRBHEEAHMEZERA S (FHE)

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 153,862 (133,018)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR S RZHEEEASHE (719,893) (1,632,016)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UTATEGEZEESEARE:

Owners of the parent (SS/NEIEFEWN (718,357) (1,628,822)

Non-controlling interests R E R (1,536) (3,194)

(719,893) (1,632,016)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 12 3,082,754 3,315,315
Properties under development ERPME 13 - 1,196,775
Investment property AW 14 1,138,221 1,138,221
Long term prepayments and deposits RHIEMNFIBERIZS 15 123,710 144,582
Prepaid land lease payments SEE Ry iz ke 16 1,123,673 1,211,764
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERRIZERE 17 34,556 37,335
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 18 800 800
Pledged deposits EERZE 23 482,723 95,570
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 5,986,437 7,140,362
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BREAP Y 13 2,601,118 1,036,362
Inventories eSS 20 288,705 411,001
Trade and bills receivables B FREBER R EREE 21 371,120 618,421
Prepayments, deposits and TETFRIE ~ e R E A FEUGRIA
other receivables 22 601,470 657,497
Pledged and restricted bank balances BB R ZRGIRITE % 23 183,286 562,390
Cash and bank balances BRe RIRITAER 23 36,392 439,067
Due from a related party JRE M5 BE e 75 B IE 37 84,568 90,726
Total current assets RBEEAE 4,166,659 3,815,464
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables BHRNERRENZE 24 670,349 790,348
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t B E1T R E £ E 25 3,332,194 4,374,936
Other payables and accruals EMEARIERETER 27 1,695,458 1,185,524
Provision B 28 = 29,268
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFKEE 29 467,821 87,911
Due to a director & EFE5RIA 37 106,994 5,563
Due to a related party JE 1< B B 5 3K IE 37 = 3,927
Tax payable FEBEIR 60,800 62,042
Total current liabilities RBAEBEARE 6,333,616 6,539,519

T EFFERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR® T ARBEF T
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFEE (2,166,957) (2,724,055)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,819,480 4,416,307
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 19 577,019 592,201
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 2 R1T R EMEE 25 1,880,686 1,389,904
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEEHFREER 29 140,597 496,609
Government grants K 47 B 30 375,113 369,707
Total non-current liabilities krBaERHE 2,973,415 2,848,421
Net assets EEFE 846,065 1,567,886
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEAEGLESR
the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 31 88,856 88,856
Reserves i 32 745,667 1,464,024
834,523 1,552,880
Non-controlling interests FEVE R A 11,542 15,006
Total equity ERA 846,065 1,567,886
CHEN CHANG CHEN ZHAO NIAN
o= R 3k
Director Director
2 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
g A L s g =

Year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAEFARE
Asset Statutory Exchange Non-
Issued Share  revaluation  Contributed Capital reserve Retained  fluctuation controlling Total
capital premium reserve’ surplus reserve fund profits reserve Total interests equity
BE Ex
BRARE RiAEE  EfGHE EHAH EU-1- RS YN € Brad RBHE @i FEREs BHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥Tn
(note 31) (note (a))
(WizE31) (M (@)
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-75-f-H 88,856 767,097 1,153,715 224,589 57,607 165,276 804,247 (79,685) 3,181,702 18,200 3,199,902
Loss for the year TEEHE - - - - - - (1,495,804) - (1,495,804) (3194)  (1,498,998)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: REFEAMEERE:
Exchange differences related to ENEERERNERZR
foreign operations - - - - - - - (133,018) (133,018) - (133,018)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEE2AFEER - - - - - - (1495804)  (133018)  (1,628822) (3194)  (1,632,016)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-R"E+ZA=1-A 88,856 767,097 1,153,715 224,589* 57,607 165,276+ (691,557)* (212,703 1,552,880 15,006 1,567,886
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t%5-f-H 88,856 767,097 1153715 224,589 57,607 165,276 (691,557)  (212,703) 1,552,880 15,006 1,567,886
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (872219 - (872209) (153)  (873755)
Other comprehensive income for the year: REREMZEMA:
Exchange differences related to ENEEBABHNEL£E
foreign operations - - - - - - - 153,862 153,862 - 153,862
Total comprehensive loss for the year rER2ERBLE - - - - - - (872219) 153,862 (718,357) (1,536) (719,893
Dividends to non-controlling shareholders AERTHERREZRE - - - - - - - - - (1,928) (1,928)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t5+ZA=1-A 88,856 767,097 1,153,715 224,589* 57,607 165,276*  (1,563,776)* (58,841)* 834,523 11,542 846,065
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from # ERVERBREFEARATEINENREMEM

owner-occupied property to investment property carried at fair value.

EEBEESHFHE-

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBEEOEGAEVBURARPABEARE
RMB745,667,000 (2016: RMB1,464,024,000) in the consolidated 745,667,0007T (= F — /X F : AR ¥1,464,024,0007T )
statement of financial position. KGR E -

Note: M T -

(@) In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of (a) WEFEARAME ([FE)REE AATRFE

China (the “PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC AMOMBEA AR ERREFEETE RN (KHA

are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve
fund. When the balance of an entity’s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
the registered capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such usage.

—EEFERE

FEENEABEEZ) NN BEAEZERES -FRE
SH K E%L*1I"’“§E£ﬂﬁ§$ﬁ’350%ﬁf EERTHE
BRAEELTE f*"ﬁ%"}ﬁﬁ%%&%ﬂfiifﬁ%
Tﬁ*iiﬂﬂuiﬂﬁﬁzﬁ A EEATES AR Lt
BEMRNBRE KEREARTEME RN25% -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HmERERER
Year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ—Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—iF ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b 5 AREBT ARBFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax MR ATE 18 (888,363) (1,442,801)
Adjustments for: BTHRIERE:
Finance costs BE R R 7 426,286 237,142
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—HAEERAEE 17 2,779 1,460
Bank interest income HRITH S WA 5 (38,792) (16,116)
Government grant income IR I 4 B s A (26,914) -
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME BWER&ZHEFER
plant and equipment and prepaid BN LE e
land lease payments (5,879) -
Depreciation e 12 143,045 176,661
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEfT 7 & 8
payments 16 26,456 26,031
Impairment of trade receivables E S EREFRE 21 1,721 1,614
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of Ze kEAMmEWKFIEA
deposits and other receivables CRERRE) RE 22 (12) 70,510
Provision against slow-moving and B RRETERE
obsolete inventories 20 7,020 27,131
Impairment of items of property, WE - WEREZEBREBRE
plant and equipment 12 18,006 512,175
Impairment of goodwill R RE - 4,075
(334,647) (402,118)
Decrease in inventories F &R 115,276 377,984
Increase in properties under development 3 & R ¥ 1L A (306,941) (228,235)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 R R % R IR R R
VR 243,051 303,479
Decrease in prepayments, TERTFRIE ~ i N A A FEURIE
deposits and other receivables A 54,423 225,811
Decrease in pledged and BEHEARZRERITERR D
restricted bank balances 400,171 192,389
Decrease in trade and bills payables B RNERRENZERD (119,999) (271,737)
Increase in other payables H &~ R8N FE 5T B R4S AN
and accruals 498,416 583,318
(Decrease)/increase in a provision B ORd) (29,268) 4,920
Increase in government grants IS 4 B 38 0 - 163,832
Cash generated from operations KEEARS 520,482 949,643
Interest received B A A 5 38,792 16,116
Corporate income tax paid EfREMEH (1,612) (2,641)
Net cash flows from operating activities EE EZHELARSHRETHE 557,662 963,118
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik=s ARBTR ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME WENIERHER

equipment (10,086) (157,720)
Addition to an investment property REBREME 14 = (28,192)
Addition to prepaid land lease payments EomER e 16 = (157,380)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HERMNTHESIER

prepaid land lease payments Fr 15 5/ 18 63,251 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME WMERZREIEE

property, plant and equipment FT 1S 38 109,440 5,774
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due from & Uk BA B 5 2B R A (18 40)

a related party 2,231 (90,726)
Purchase of time deposits BATEHER (408,220) -
Receipt of government grants W B BK 7S #68 Ab 32,320 -
Net cash flows used in REFEFMARSRERE

investing activities (211,064) (428,244)
CASH FLOWS FROM REETHRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings FIGRITERRHEMEER 5,781,560 4,614,870
Repayment of bank loans and BERTERRHMEE

other borrowings (6,284,883) (4,727,002)
Proceeds from issue of bonds and notes BITEFREBAGHIE 143,406 -
Repayment of bonds BERR (88,680) -
Interest paid BEAFLE (471,472) (271,524)
Increase in an amount due to a director g ENEERIE 101,431 5,563
Increase in an amount due to a related party ¥71% & (< B Bt 77 7B - 3,927
Interest element of finance lease rental MEMEHSNRZAEHS

payments (11,200) (12,588)
Capital element of finance lease rental MEHEHSNRCERELS

payments (81,720) (72,631)
Net cash flows used in RETEFMARSRERE

financing activities (911,558) (459,385)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEREMEBR

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=-FT—+F+-A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik=s ARBTR ARET T

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReRBESEEY

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R A) EmEE (564,960) 75,489
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEF REE 2 L EFME

changes, net 162,285 77,443
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUReRBESEED

of year 439,067 286,135
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREAEGRELEEY

AT END OF YEAR 36,392 439,067
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeERBELEEBYESBIM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 23 36,392 439,067
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services

. property development and investment

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits
Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

RAREEER
KIAMAKARMEZERER LA ([RAF])
RZZZNE-ANBREBFRAEFHSE(F22E
REVE(—NAR—F B3R AN KR E RIEFT)
ERESHETAMELRERRNBRAR AR
A 5 9% = B 2 #b 4k & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands °

ARBAREMBAR (R AKRE])TERE

AT EREE :

e HENHERRERWNERRHMBBRE
AR 75

. MEERKLKE
EERR ARANERRAAREFEERIAR

Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam J) ' &% A &

A B8 BE 22 B S RE AL ©

ERHMEBLARZER
ARBEEMBRABZHBEOT

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
A RIK BERTEER YNNI A
NI =38 RS REBDL FTEXER
Direct Indirect
BE 4%
% %
Lessonstart Enterprises British Virgin Islands US$300 100 — Investment holding
Limited REBELHS 300% 7T REEK
MEEEEBRRAA
Lucknow Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands US$10 - 100 Investment holding
EEERHS 10% 7T REZER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and business

i RN R

IR B
Crown Central Holdings Hong Kong

Limited BB
FHEBEFRAA
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Hong Kong

Group Co., Ltd. BB
KIMEEEARAA
Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/

Co., Ltd. Mainland China
HBRKIHEBRAA A A
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/

Petrol-Fittings Co., Ltd. Mainland China
BMNBHAACEMHERRE RE HEXNH

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/
OCTG Co., Ltd. Mainland China
BMNEHRIABEERRAR REHERH

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZBER
& AR A<

HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T

HK$100,000
100,0007% 7T

HK$1,550,000,000
1,550,000,0007% 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,0007% 7T

HK$21,000,000
21,000,000/ 7T
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RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
DA ESL
REB DL
Direct Indirect
B =
% %

Principal activities

TEEHK

- 100 Trading of steel
pipes
MEZH
- 100 Investment holding
and trading of
steel pipes
REEREMEE S
- 100 Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes
FUENMIHE
BhREIRBEHE
- 100 Manufacture and
sale of petrol
fittings
HERHEEALEN
- 100 Manufacture and
sale of oil country
tubular goods
FERHE
AomEM
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AIREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ARMEBARZER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBATZFBENT: (£)

follows: (continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
S R Kk ERTEER DA ESL
IR B BRI REB DL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
B =
% %

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$10,000,000 - 100 Steel pipe casing
Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China 10,000,0007% 7T and lining services
Coating Co., Ltd. AR A 8l & B 7 I

& N2 BR A A o 8 B B R N EE 2 [E iR 1%
BRAA]

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$50,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China 50,000,000 7T sale of welded
Co., Ltd. AR A steel pipes

BN BRoR A i E B R 2 A HENHERE

REME

Panyu Chu Kong Steel The PRC/ RMB1,100,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Pipe (Lianyungang) Mainland China AR sale of welded
Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP FRE R A 1,100,000,0007T steel pipes
(Lianyungang)”) BLENHER

HEREWILME GEZE) RBEME
BRAR ([HBILHE

(EEHE)]D)

Guangzhou Panyu The PRC/ RMB20,600,000 - 100 Steel pipe casing
Chu Kong Hualong Mainland China A R #20,600,0007T and lining service
Petroleum Steel Pipe RE R A il E [y & fe A BE
Anti-Corrosion Co., Ltd. BRE R

(“Hualong Anti-Corrosion”)
BMNmEHERKIERLAME

iEERRARE
(TEREMmE])

T EFFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Company name

NREE

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.

EEHTHE (H9)
BRAF

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy
Equipment Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Kaidi”)

BEEAYITEIMKERAF

(rsh#])

Lianyungang Pearl
River Petrol-Fittings
Co., Ltd.

EEBPWRUALEH
BRAA]

Lianyungang Aike New
Construction Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Aike”")

BERENAREEMAERAR

(131

Guangdong Pearl Steel
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Pearl Steel
Investment”)

ERKMBREERBERAA

([ERIHIRE )

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
i R R
B

The PRC/
Mainland China
B B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
RE B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
RE B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R E A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B A b,

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZBER
& AR A<

HK$686,760,000
686,760,000/% 7T

RMB470,000,000
AR
470,000,0007T

HK$303,000,000
303,000,000/% 7T

RMB100,000,000
AR
100,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
A K #50,000,0007C
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RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributabl
to the Company
DA ESL
REB DL
Direct Indi
B#E
%

e

rect
k=3
%

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

TEEHK

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel pipes

Bl MIHE R G
IREWE

Manufacture
and sale of steel
pipe equipment
and metallurgy
equipment
HERHEME
HERe&RE

Manufacture and
sale of petrol
fittings

HERHERLEN

Manufacture and
sale of tubular
piles

SUERHEEM

Property
development and
investment

MERERKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER (8
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ARMEBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBATZFBENT: (£)

follows: (continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
S R Kk ERTEER DA ESL
IR B BRI REB DL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
B =
% %

Nanjing Rongyu Group The PRC/ RMB75,000,000 - 100 Market management
Co., Ltd (“Nanjing Rongyu Mainland China A E#75,000,0007T of steel products
Group”) B A M ERZTS

ERRAREEERAA g

([FARAmER])

Nanjing City Qixia Hill Roll ~ The PRC/Mainland RMB20,316,500 - 100 Manufacture and
Steeling Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing  China AR %20,316,5007T sale of
City Qixia Hill") AR A screw-thread

MR mEE LB ERA A steels

([FEmmEEL]) BE R IHE B
41

Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$230,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd. Mainland China 230,000,000/% 7T sale of welded

HIME (BR)ERAR R A steel pipes

HENHERE
REME
PCK Steel Middle East FZE Dubai AED1,000,000 - 100 Trading of steel
ME 1,000,000 #i7 #8 products
B MM Em

View Sharp International Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited aBA 10,000/% 7T HEER

SEBEEBRAR

Ningbo Sanhe Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.(“Ningbo Sanhe”) Mainland China A K ¥20,000,0007C sale of welded

BE=AMEARAR FE R A steel pipes

(l=g=461) BlE MIHE R E
REME
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and business

o 3

NCIECE =38

Guangzhou Zhu Gang The PRC/
Property Management Mainland China
Co., Ltd.(“Zhu Gang R R B A
Property Management”)

BRI EERBR A A

(TR EER])

Pabo Detection Technology The PRC/
Service Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Pabo Detection”) FRE R B A

R 175 A8 B+ 71 PR 75 5 IR 2 &)

([tatEmoal)
Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf The PRC/

Co., Ltd. (“Zhugang Wharf”) Mainland China
HEBHRMEERNMERAT  HE HERM
(THREMIESE])

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER
EREES

RMB5,000,000
AR #5,000,0007C

RMB60,000,000
AR %60,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
A K #3,000,0007T

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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RAREEES (8

ERHWEARZER (8)
ARBEEMBRBZFHBTOT : (H)

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

AN T EML
BREBS L FTEHEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ E:3
% %
- 100 Property
management
MEER
- 100 Detection

technology service

A R 52 4t BR 75

- 100 Port service

70 R

RN EETRA/IBFEFAREAXIBRAE
BEEFENIERDZARAMBRARARE:
EERRJLEMHBARFBEEEEIIXRB
RILE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 ImBREE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB, International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee
Interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for an investment property which has been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee,;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

T EFFERE

ZEVBRERDIRIEABR S BN RS EM
MBRMBREER BEREERESSIAE
THBARCBERGFENREHEREZESS

BEBERARGIZRERERR -HIIAESSL
RAEBHRE EREVERAFEAE - ZF
MHEBREAARE (AR 27 BHATIH
B MEBEDREEREAT T

REEE
HAVWBHRREBBEAEEEE_T—tF+-A
St BLEFEZMBER -MEBARELRRQF
BERSAEESZER (BREBLER) -EX
SEEBBE2EARRZTERELGRAZ DR
ZEBRAERN WaEHMIREH REREE N
EmBeR (NREREMNAEANEBEENE R
BREVRZMAEEY) AIRXRAEEERR
BRI

EARFEEAMERALINREHRAZ K
SRABEUENE RFGAEEHZREHR
EEBRERIN AEEEEMERBEEERE
B

(a) EZREHSKIHEMBRERBAEAZALN

(b) HEMAKNTHELEZEN: &

(c) AEBZEERRBEREE-
MEBARPBHRRNREAREARARFER L
RAE-BWEAHRER - MEARNEEHAN

SERGSENEZAESEEFE BEETBHES
btz BRIE-

BIRBRARAEZRERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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REEE (8
BEEhEME2ERENSEKRTDFEBRAEE
BRAEE ANOFER s - B UL 8 5| BOFE
ERSEBEMER ITBEERAKREEXEB AR
RzRXHz2EEAFRRABEERAE #a-
WA -AXERERESENGRAER2BEH-

HEERBERB R EX T =AES ARz —
BRZELRB( AEEGEFFHERES
IR E S R WA L= Z B LR HEA
REZHURERZH AR

i 7% 5% [ 5k 25 S I B8 8 ) 2 4 4 - R AR L HERR
(VZMBRRZEE (BEBAE)RERE ()E
I FEE R R 2 BREE R (i) PR Nz R
FHENEZRE RERGOEWREZATE (i)
REEMKRE 2 A FE R (i) B E A Bt E
Ezﬁ’ﬁ%iﬁﬁmfiﬁﬁua \,\ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂz)\ﬁjﬁ@uu
ZASBEREHBIEFR O BEEaLETEN (1
EA) ﬁgiﬁiﬁ’i@ﬁﬁﬁdgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%
PR 2 ZEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a consolidated loss of RMB873,755,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: loss of
RMB1,498,998,000). Excluding the impairment of RMB26,735,000,
the Group recorded a consolidated net loss of RMB847,020,000
for the year, which included (i) a provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables amounting to RMB1,709,000 (2016:
RMB72,124,000); (ii) a provision for inventories in respect of the
write-down to net realisable value amounting to RMB7,020,000
(2016: RMB27,131,000); and (iii) impairment of property, plant and
equipment amounting to RMB18,006,000 (2016: RMB516,250,000).
These non-cash items had not affected the Group’s operating cash
flows. The Group had net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB557,662,000 (2016: RMB963,118,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMB2,166,957,000 (2016: RMB2,724,055,000),
included therein were the bank and other borrowings and fixed
rate bonds of RMB3,800,015,000 (2016: RMB4,462,847,000)
which were due for repayment or renewal within the next
twelve months after 31 December 2017.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern.

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group implemented
or is in the process of implementing the following measures:

(1) Active seeking new sources of finance

On 2 February 2018, the Group entered into a long term
loan agreement of RMB1,680,000,000 with a third party,
Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co., Limited, a finance trust
company established in the PRC with limited liability by
Guangdong Yuecai Investment and Guangdong Science
and Technology Venture Capital Co., Limited. The loan
received subsequently on 9 March 2018 and 12 March
2018 is for a period of three years, bearing interest rate
of 11.25% per annum for the first two years and 10.25%
per annum for the third year.

T EFFERE

REE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—RHILFE A&
B 815474 B 1B A R #873,755,0000T (= Z — <
FE B AR K1,498,998,0007T) ° fifi N it KA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)
(2) Active negotiations with banks to obtain adequate

©

4)

)

bank borrowings to finance the Group’s operations
Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the Group repaid
short term bank loans of RMB968,063,000, obtained new
long term bank loans of RMB200,000,000 and renewed
the existing loans of RMB72,500,000 with related banks.

The Group will continue to actively negotiate with the
banks for the renewal of the Group’s borrowings when
they fall due or obtain additional source of finance
to meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the near future. The directors of the
Company have evaluated all the relevant facts available
to them and are of the opinion that they have a good
track record or relationship with the banks which will
enhance the Group’s ability to renew the Group’s loans
upon expiry.

Active negotiations with debtors on outstanding
receivables

Management is actively following up with its debtors
on outstanding receivables with the aim of agreeing a
repayment schedule with each of them.

Exploring alternative source of capital
Management is considering co-operation with business
partners to further develop and promote derivative
products or services which have high gross margins, and
thus generate stronger positive cash flows.

Improvement of the Group’s operating cash flows
The Group is taking measures to tighten cost control
over various production costs and expenses with the aim
of attaining profitable and positive cash flow operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Going concern basis (continued)

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast for the Group which covers a period of twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. They are of
the opinion that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, coupled with the rebound of the market
demand of the Group’s major products and the pre-sale
of the second phase of Golden Dragon City Fortune Plaza
(“GDC”) commenced in November 2017, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the successful and favourable outcomes of the steps being
taken by the directors as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised at amounts other than those
they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In addition, the Group may have to provide
for any further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2B BREDREE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REBEERAFE 2EEEVBREERERMATY
standards for the first time for the current year's consolidated FE] RSB AT AR R o

financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative R@ TR ETR HESE
1BET AR
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax R e et AR K BT BT R 1 575 AT
Assets for Unrealised Losses F125R1EFT AR HEEE
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in Other BAN—ZF—WFE HEEAMEZERD
IFRS 12 included in Entities ZE-NFEHHZ
Annual Improvements FE A2 BB
2014-2016 Cycle B 75 s & 22 A
FL25RABET A
Other than as explained below regarding the impact of BRIt BRBBEE gt ERBTRIEET AR
Amendments to IAS 7, the adoption of the above revised 22N BN Ll A (S BT 2E RI 30 A S L 5 B S TR R
standards has had no significant financial effect on these EEXERUBKTE-

financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures R ERFTRET A EREBIEL HE -
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes RV BRERERENTERESFHEECBEY
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both o ARReREEE EYNIERESEH -/
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. BEEHELEZABZBHREE NN B HREMN
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from financing 533 -

activities is provided in note 33 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

IFRS 9

IFRS 15
IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 15
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Annual improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property*

Amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28!

Amendments to a number of
IFRS?

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The
expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s certain financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are equity investments
stated at cost less impairment.

Equity investments currently held as available for sale will be
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable
future and the Group expects to apply the option to present
fair value changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under IFRS 9 are largely unchanged from IAS
39, except that IFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a
financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised
in other comprehensive income (without reclassification
to profit or loss). The Group currently does not have any
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this
new requirement may not have any impact on the Group on
adoption of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in early
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
of the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRSs. Based on the preliminary analysis, the Group
anticipates that the adoption of IFRS 15 in the future is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the recognition of
revenue.

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. For
lessee accounting, the standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessor accounting, the standard substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS16 upon
adoption.
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31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHHEHME

POLICIES

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);
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31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (8

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation NE BERZEBERITE (&)
(continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write MEREWE BERREBENMETIEAE
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to HNBEHEHE UMEXN A EEF R EB 5
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated BmE A EAFRRFBREBENT
useful lives and residual values used for this purpose are as
follows:

Estimated useful lives Residual values

e AEREH FIsrEE

Land and buildings 5~50 years 5%~10%
T REF 5~504F
Plant and machinery 3~16 years 1%~10%
T 5= Ko i 2 3~16%F
Office and other equipment 3~16 years 1%~10%
MAZEREARE 3~16%F
Motor vehicles 4~10 years 5%~10%
qE 4~10%F
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment EVE BELRBEEENLH>SETRAEA
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated FH ZEENKAREGBELEESSOPHE
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is M ERNITE - FIerE@E - o] 8 A F BRI
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and EFZELEBEVRFEFEBETREANH
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if B2 (m@Ea) -
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
An item of property, plant and equipment including any BEHEVIHANDE BELRREBESET
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon RIE RN KIEME AR L ERBRTRET KRR
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected KBEMRE A ESERERER ERIEERZ
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or BHEENR -—FERBERERTERN LS WME
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the WERBE EEHEEELEMSFIEFREER
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the REENERE-
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and EREIEEBEIEERTOET HE LR
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost BB ERBEEBEEIE BETg ?ﬁ%°ﬁk$
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost BEELAENEEEIKNAREHEBEESZ
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised EARCEEXRAR - EZITRENIRETKEILER
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period B SEFEAESEHINNOYME KEREE-

of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (8
POLICIES (continued)
Properties under development BRPYHE
Properties under development represent properties being BRERAMERAHEMBER 2WE WIERKAEAR
developed for sale and are stated at the lower of cost and AR FEME 2REETR A BIEE MM
net realisable value. Cost comprises the prepaid land lease e TR AN ERERZSWEEG 2 EMEAMm
payments or cost of land together with any other direct costs BRENA A RAEEPREMEANERZIEEH
attributable to the development of the properties and other X AR FETBEFZENMERITT
related expenses capitalised during the development period. BRTH AT ARBEZNEREE ZKNAE
Net realisable value is determined by the directors based on E °

the prevailing market prices on an individual property basis
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current BERPVERSBANDEE KRIFEEMER
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property BREEREXNHMKBLEEFCEERRT -Z
development project is expected to complete beyond the EYHETERTHRENEREZERGEME-

normal operating cycle. Once the development of these
properties is completed, these properties are transferred to
completed properties for sale.

Revenue is only recognised upon completion of the WABEFERTRKER TUBRR - RERERIER R
development. Sales deposits/instalments received and RATRTEEEEFVWERNERD KRR ERHE
receivable from purchasers in respect of the pre-sale of e/ DHAR AR AG

properties under development prior to the completion of the
development are included in current liabilities.

If a property under development is intended to be redeveloped W—BERPYERETHAENETETEDE
into an owner-managed property, it is transferred to ARSI mEEREERTIR
construction in progress at the carrying amount.

Completed properties for sale EHIGEYE

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of EREEMERKANEHEAERFEME CBE
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all development EIR- KN ABEMEERAS - BABERKAR
expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct RZEYERLMZEMBEERS BBERELD
costs attributable to such properties. Cost is determined by KEM T REFEMARZLHIET - 7] #]/)F
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings BHREEZRENMEZRITMEREEZWER
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value is EEZKAERE -

determined by the directors based on the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

If an item of completed property for sale becomes WM—IEHENGEVEARETETE MHEBKER
owner-managed, it is transferred to property, plant and BEER=WE WE MEE-

equipment at the carrying amount.

TR LFFERE BIAARARMEZRERAT 147



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B REERAR AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Completed properties for sale (continued)

For a transfer from an item of completed property for sale
to investment property that will be carried at fair value as its
use has changed as evidenced by the commencement of an
operating lease, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount shall be
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (8
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
Prepaid land lease payments represent the cost of land use TE A+ b FA 48 A AR B RO M B S A5 O b fF R
rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Prepaid land RERAR o 48 2 ETBN T AH & VPR AN B
lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at BEERHEHRRNNE SR EER

cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets RERHMERMEE

Initial recognition and measurement BEXERRE

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as CHMEERVGEBRAFADEAUNATFTERER
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans JIEMeMEERERREWRFREB - NEERE
and receivables. The Group determines the classification of RERCHEERETEDE-2REERE X
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets BARBRATFENKBEEREEREZR IR
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus HECEEBEATEAABRZEREERIN

transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are TREEMNFE—MREZENRIXSZAH (AAXAEH
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group ARAEBEZEEMNBE) TUBR —REED
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases EIEB—EMERENEL—FEHBRAZGE
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require ENcREEER-

delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement H#:E
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on TREEHEFERBEESBNT:
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R FEGAEm L EE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include RATHEFAEZNEMNEERERIFEEN S
financial assets held for trading and financial assets BEERVIIRERERHET AL A TETAER
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through MNeMEEZSREE S MEENUEHEE
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for REMMEE S BEAREEEEAE-TAL
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the BE(BEBYBRARTETR) MO BEARIFEER
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded E%rﬂéé"fﬁ?%%ami%ﬁ’xﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂlﬂ’éﬁﬁ\\(E
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they = RBIB g ERIZE395) °

are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
IAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have yet not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, short term notes and fixed rate bonds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETBRME (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued) cHas (&)
Subsequent measurement H#:E2
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends THABENHEAERTUTHE:

on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss R FERERZ IR HE E

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include A?Tﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁ%’i']ﬁ%ﬁ@i@ﬁ%{ﬁ BEEEEE
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities CREBELRRERERFEEANATERESR
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through RIENERBE

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they CREBENNEHERAEMNMES ANEA
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near BEEESRAGE WY EEEREE g AR
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments EIRTER W E AU HABERFEPITE
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging WHRAREBFEIZHPTE S E T E - bR IEE B R
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. ARTTETEWEEREREG T E TATE
Separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held DEAREFEESMAGR -BIFEEEANAE
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging REZERFER - REERTEROATERE
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are FETIABERZECHBERERNNEMFE -

recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at RUBERBEERNEREATEIEZERE
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date BERVERRE A RFEEERE S ERF395 M
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are 165 -

satisfied.

Loans and borrowings EAREE

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings RERERE FFTREFRLEEREHRESH
and short term notes are subsequently measured at amortised BLAEBRMN R RIRBEHN AT S RIEBEH
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the BMARE LULER T BRI BR o 4% 1F 1
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case REBRBRERMNEZHEREPEENBER
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised BamiPER-

in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any HEHSERAREERREMEENEITESX
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are wENEEERERNE -5 EBRAKAR -
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective ERFEEHEAABREPHORMELAE -

interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current
or separated into current and non-current portions based
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

—  Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of
the reporting period, the derivative is classified as
non-current (or separated into current and non-current
portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

— Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the
host contract are classified consistently with the cash
flows of the host contract.

—  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on the weighted
average basis

Work in progress and Cost of direct materials, direct

finished goods labour and an appropriate

proportion of overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

(a) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

T EFFERE

FriEH
FIRHRERAMEERLMFR - BN B AINE
RHIBBBEANABHNBRIAINIER DR E
2 ER R EERNERER -

AHHBEEERBENRER SR ERMH
FEELCEMORE (RBRE)  AERAEHE
SEMEBRRBITNRERED REHATEMR
BERKEHMES N EREFTE -

ELXERBRABEIRERNRERAREERAFEN
MERERMBHRESH S OREENRTA TR
EREE-

ERRGERMEZRTERABERAE
TIERERSN

(@ MEEHBABENEXZTIEREE
FEEXREREL MZIXHLIFEBE
Bt BERR F I A2 E & Fm M S ERR
m A EER - &

(b) MERHMBARNAERRZKRERHD
ERVEREZEMS NEREZENTE
(o] B F) A A 6 - R B B 1 2 R0 AT B3R
AT ERE @M IR -

PTG AT HURE B 1 2 2 R R B A IR R S B (A
APARBERNEHEHORERRSECHEE
B 7 2R FE IR & B A R 1 A5 BT I AR FE R A 0i A
EHNANRESEER UHAKRDAREER
RARGABE BB EE  ETIBERERIN:

BIRMAARMEEZRERAT 161



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B REERAR AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

(a) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (8

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants B #RG

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where BRI e BRE/RKIEBEHERIGFE
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received Fir 8 B A5 16 S e 32 B (B FE R © 40 478 A B ) 32
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the BEEHE BIRMEHEABRRRRA  UIER
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income A A R E AR ANABR o MR A
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which EEBE - AEQRTEGF ABRLEWZER Y E7%Z
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant BHEEMREAERNRITEBROTERI TN
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred BAB@mE-

income account and deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no EASEESTAESNESERTSINENBNE
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a HAREZ-—HERAER MRALER[e/REE]
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government METHRENE - PR BTEFRNVBRED
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method, ELAEBRNEEER BT EHE KR TS H
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial EHBNEFRMERTZ BEROGEERAEE
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted BEWW R ZER - (E R B IE I £ 18
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the AEBERSHAFHTEENES ABEEK

difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition PN

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic MREEN =] ge R ARE R MUABEHE

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be BRI AEAREINGE WASERE RERE

measured reliably, on the following bases: R

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and (a) SHEEM: Eféﬁﬁ%lﬁ’]iﬁﬂ 2 K (B 5 B 8
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, TEREBRRAR HAEEAETHL2ME—
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial A& B ET Eﬁéﬁﬁaﬂ'} BRIBESMED
involvement to the degree usually associated with B B R R
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of manufacturing services, when the (o) ZERRTS - NI MR R
underlying services have been rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective (c) FEWA EREFEEUNERFNEEKER
interest method by applying the rate that exactly TEREEMErAAFHEEREKEBAER
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the SIEBMARESREEREDFEMMNE
expected life of the financial instrument to the net R &

carrying amount of the financial asset; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all existing
and retired employees under these plans. Contributions to
these plans by the Group are expensed as incurred. The
Group has no further obligations for benefits for their qualified
employees under these plans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

The Company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands uses the
Hong Kong dollar as its functional currency. The functional
currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As the Group
mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a joint venture are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESTHERMAS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
subsidiaries in Mainland China according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing and amount
of the payment of the dividend. Withholding taxes are only
provided for the profits of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
which the Group considers probable to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

EZRgsHHE KA (8

TN FARERE
FRBRNIEBRRENHENRGTTHEER
EMEMTIERR (ZEBRRETEERRGF
EEYTEMBRFENEELABNREELR
A B ERER) BT -

REYWFZ 2 FlElEE
MRZFAENERERET S 2REER XK
EeZRitEERTREsREr 81

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a () TRME MRRAIME 2 MERFRTS 2
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect FHEBR (KARURMEZEEZR)
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, (o) JERREEMIBE 2 ™SR RED X
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic B (KABRUNMEBERZEEBRETR S
conditions since the date of the transactions that B B ARG EM R 2 EMEE) &
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable (c) BERKBEREMIEAEGHFENZE

estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

168 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

BB eRE  WEBANFEENEESHEL L
HAbA 8 2 B R (2710 T) 50k
FE (MR RIER 2 B LR S
BRE)AEE YRATRRARRS R
5 5 8 S T RO B B 9B AR 2
TEES

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end date based on changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there
is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax
losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of the deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and to the extent
that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available within the utilisation periods
to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax losses, and
that the asset balance will be reduced and charged to profit or
loss.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down requires involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down/write-back of
inventories in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the provisions for impairment of trade
and other receivables by assessing their recoverability based
on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements. Provisions
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the provisions at the end of
the reporting period.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related
manufacturing services; and

(b) the property development and investment segment
engages in development of properties for sale and
property investment for its rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

—EEFERE
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REEMS AKEREERNMREE D RZ @
EBEM UYHAMERSKCLEDE HINWT:

(@) HENHNETRERBEERZME RIEH
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(b) MERBRKEDAHADEHELETYE
REMAEENERSRAETOERRE

EREERYERASESEENAHMNER U
BRDBERFRBTEELIRE -9 E KRB IIIRE
Ef%ﬁ%’ﬁa‘ﬁﬁ'ﬂ} FEBBETMG M & H
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B —EBUASEENRINESN BEBE EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF RS R AR BT T
31 December 2017 = Z—+F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEPEHER (@)

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE

Property
development
Steel pipes and investment Total
LIS
HE BERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®BTR AR®TR
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers mANEDE P 873,293 = 873,293
Segment results: DERELE (696,862) (66,273) (763,135)
Reconciliation: #R:
Corporate and other unallocated NEREMADBERAX
expenses (48,227)
Finance costs BE M A (77,001)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (888,363)
Segment assets: DEHEE: 2,280,918 3,967,474 6,248,392
Reconciliation: #R
Elimination of intersegment H5H 2 S0 R FE e 0B
receivables 1,508,800
Corporate and other DA R EM KD EE E
unallocated assets 2,395,904
Total assets BEE 10,153,096
Segment liabilities: SBEE: 3,483,172 3,308,419 6,791,591
Reconciliation: Hik -
Elimination of intersegment payables I 88 9> SP ] FE A 5108 1,508,800
Corporate and other REAKEMASEERE
unallocated liabilities 1,006,640
Total liabilities wafE 9,307,031
Other segment information: HthaBER:
Share of loss of a joint venture BlE—HaEREBE (2,779) - (2,779)
Impairment losses recognised in the REREER R ERE
statement of profit or loss (31,265) - (31,265)
Impairment losses reversed in the REZRER 2 REBIE
statement of profit or loss 4,530 - 4,530
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREHE (169,093) (408) (169,501)
Investment in a joint venture R—BEaERAIZEE 34,556 = 34,556
Capital expenditure* BARFZ* 34,116 140 34,256
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+H+-_A=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEPEHER (@)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HLFE

Property
development
Steel pipes  and investment Total
LR
HE B E HE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBF T ARBFT ARBFT
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers RINER P & 1,443,487 - 1,443,487
Segment results: DERELE (1,234,235) (162,772) (1,397,007)
Reconciliation: ESl
Corporate and other unallocated NE R EAMAD B %
expenses (10,773)
Finance costs RE AR (35,021)
Loss before tax PR A 1B (1,442,801)
Segment assets: DEEE: 5,044,720 3,913,325 8,958,045
Reconciliation: R
Elimination of intersegment 5 S0 e W 0B
receivables (145,114)
Corporate and other DA R EM KD ELE E
unallocated assets 2,142,895
Total assets mEE 10,955,826
Segment liabilities: PTHEE: 7,197,724 1,745,315 8,943,039
Reconciliation: Bl
Elimination of intersegment payables 85 9 B ] FE 1 5108 (145,114)
Corporate and other REkEMARDEAR
unallocated liabilities 590,015
Total liabilities wafE 9,387,940
Other segment information: HthpHER:
Share of loss of a joint venture [Eih—fE&EARIEE (1,460) - (1,460)
Impairment losses recognised in the RIBREERZREEBE
statement of profit or loss (547,126) (70,510) (617,636)
Impairment losses reversed in the REZRERZREEBE
statement of profit or loss 2,131 - 2,131
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREHE (202,268) (424) (202,692)
Investment in a joint venture R—BEERAZIRE 37,335 - 37,335
Capital expenditure* EART 442,893 28,833 471,726
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARIBEREME BELEH REMER
equipment, an investment property and intangible assets. BIZEE-
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about steel pipe products and services
The revenue from the major products and services is analysed

4. EEDZWER (#)

HEERRRBES

TEEMERBOWASIHOT

as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFIT
Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: HERHEEWE
LSAW steel pipes HEEBEE 512,343 949,426
SSAW steel pipes BIEIRE 37,370 108,259
ERW steel pipes BHEE 129,924 148,376
Steel pipe manufacturing services: B B IE R A
LSAW steel pipes HHEINEE 47,165 43,149
SSAW steel pipes BHEIRE 24,190 13,170
ERW steel pipes BEEE 1,286 2,306
Others* Hitg* 121,015 178,801
873,293 1,443,487
* Others mainly include the manufacture and sale of steel fittings, * HMTZoRYAERFEEMNEE M BN R

screw-thread steels and scrap materials, and the trading of

equipment and steel plates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Geographical information

4. EEDZWER (#)

tEE R

(a) The revenue information based on the locations of the

customers is as follows:

(@) WAEHREFPHMESREDINT :

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Sales to external customers: RINEBE P 88 &

Mainland China A i 467,733 622,453
Other Asian countries H I MBIR 160,652 100,484
Africa FEM 114,951 -
Oceania RAEM 77,093 105,133
America EM 44,932 327,045
Middle East FER 7,396 274,307
European Union N gt B 536 14,065
873,293 1,443,487

(b) Over 90% of the Group’s assets and capital expenditure (b) AEBHEEKEZHZE0% i A H

are located in Mainland China. A o

FEEFER
EAREBMERARRIONZNA L2 EFTETR 2R
=ESN W

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below:

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFTT

Customer A EPA o 235,670
Customer B ZFB 2 169,750
Customer C XFC 97,986 *
Customer D BFED 90,866 *

* Less than 10%

T EFFERE
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other
sales taxes, after allowances for returns and discounts during
the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

WA - E At A K W 5

WA - FEFEREEEmMATRE ARG EHZEE
OERIBER (BER]) REMEER XEFA
RERITHEE-

AREBERA B RA RS

is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T
Revenue N
Manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and & & $H & 125 & &

the provision of related manufacturing services RUEERRERE 873,293 1,443,487
Other income and gains Hb g A & W=
Bank interest income BITHF B M A 38,792 16,116
Subsidy income from the PRC government Fh B0 AT A R A A (B 5E30)

(note 30) 26,914 20,691
Compensation f1E 67,077 332
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE WEAEKEERE X

plant and equipment and prepaid land AR i el

lease payments 5,879 -
Others H A 1,891 425

140,553 37,564

The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the local
finance bureaus to Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Lianyungang)
Co., Ltd., Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd., Panyu Chu
Kong Steel Pipe (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. and Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy
Equipment Technology Co., Ltd. as awards for their products.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
such subsidies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBATEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBMABRBRATBEIENE, (5FTA)
(crediting):
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®T T ARBT T

Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAE 542,921 1,096,000
Depreciation e 12 143,045 176,661
Share of loss of a joint venture BEEEAREE 2,779 1,460
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments &1 1= ith T & 8 &4 16 26,456 26,031
Minimum lease payments under KEHESEBASMER

operating leases 9,613 7,278
Auditor’'s remuneration % ERD B & 3,489 3,420
Exchange loss, net &N e 58 44,121 86,417
Finance costs L= DN 7 426,286 237,142
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMAE (BEEEH

directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (Hf3E8) ) -

Wages and salaries TERE® 156,789 188,996

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAE FIET B 5K 21,219 23,160
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5 B R FORE 1,721 1,614
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of e &HE Mt B FRIA

deposits and other receivables* (BERE) RE* 22 (12) 70,510
Write-down of inventories to net WoRFE 2 #5R)FE

realisable value* 20 7,020 27,131
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #% - H 5 & & &R E 12 18,006 512,175
Impairment of goodwill EERE - 4,075
Bank interest income H|ITH B A 5 (38,792) (16,116)
Research and development costs Tt 8% B AR 72,363 84,717
* Included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of * FAGEBERANTHMBER] -

profit or loss.
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKADSTLT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBETF T

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEEF B

(including bonds and notes) (BHEEHFEER) 470,153 271,891
Interest on finance leases BEHEEN S 11,754 14,959
Interest on discounted bills BRI BT E 8,717 1,918

Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ W IR AFEFABRZz SR AE

at fair value through profit or loss g kA EFMZ A5 490,624 288,768
Less: Interest capitalised Ve = N oI D= (64,338) (51,626)
426,286 237,142
8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEFM
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed FRN EEHFMoFBRELTRAN - BAERA
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and 1E0155383(1)(a) * (b) (c) (& AA (FHEE
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of EFZER) RO F2MWEMNT

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

2017 2016
—2—tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Fees we 587 584
Other emoluments: EAh i

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREWEN 3,706 3,598

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE T FT 814 5% 65 68

3,771 3,666

4,358 4,250
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R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EEHM (=

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIYFHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RAFE BENBIERTEEZE/RUOT
during the year were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Mr. Chen Ping B A 198 198
Mr. See Tak Wah MBS & 191 188
Mr. Tian Xiao Ren AEgEE 198 198
587 584
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER BEENTELERITESTOHHA
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZFE—RF: &)
(2016: Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITESE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e EHR EBHRERFE
we BEWER R B 48 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AR¥TT ARBTT ARBT T
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-Z—t &
+tZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Chen Chang BRE &4 - 1,842 - 1,842
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian Bk F L+ = 935 32 967
Ms. Chen Zhao Hua BRIk E L+ = 929 32 961
— 3,706 64 3,770
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=-ZT— A%
+ZA=+t—-HLEE
Executive directors: HiITE=S:
Mr. Chen Chang BRE LA - 1,799 - 1,799
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian BRIkFE L+ - 899 34 933
Ms. Chen Zhao Hua BRikEL+ - 900 34 934
- 3,598 68 3,666

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
are analysed as follows:

LEBRGEHES
FEBRFANALREHEEIHMMAT :

Number of employees

EE%E
2017 2016
—E—ifF ZT—RF
Directors 5% 3
Non-director highest paid employees FEEHSFHESE 2 2
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above directors are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the above
non-director highest paid employees during the year are as

EPRMEEZ HEFFISHI N LM Es o Lt 3k
EEBSFEERFANFMNFEBET:

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYET 1,420 1,118
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RAIREFIFT B 34 33
1,454 1,151

The number of these non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

TIHMEENFEERSFHEREAZBNT

Number of employees

waBE

2017 2016

—g—tf —F-AF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/% 7T 2 2
2 2

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
Other than the directors and the five highest paid employees,
the number of members of senior management whose

hEBRSHES (#)
BREELhAAGEEHEBRIN BTIHFHERD
BREEEREAZRLT:

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EE#H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$200,001 to HK$300,000 200,001/ T £300,0007% 7T = 2
HK$300,001 to HK$400,000 300,001/ 7T £400,0007% 7T -
HK$400,001 to HK$600,000 400,0017% 7T £600,000/%8 7T 1 -
1 3

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on

10. A8 %

REBARKNEBRE RBIFTEREENRDER

— =
=
—=

profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
is not subject to income tax.

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited (“Lessonstart”) and Lucknow
Consultants Limited (“Lucknow”), which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax.

Crown Central Holdings Limited (“Crown Central”), Chu
Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. (“CKSPG”) and View Sharp
International Limited (“View Sharp”), which were incorporated
in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

—EEFERE

BATELSSRBNEN  REBEEZMMEH-
RRARRFASHSEMMKIL  BAZREH -

FlEEEBEBR AR ([FMEE])KXLucknow
Consultants Limited ( [Lucknow | ) 7 55 & & 2 B¥
B BAEGMTER -

KFEREBRAR ([EH]) WIMEREER
AR ([WIHESE]) RRBEREAERQR (R
#]) (MEFEEMRIL)RFAERTBELEN
il 5t AR B0 I 2B 4216.5% B9 B R BN RIS 1 -

MRS ERF RN EAETBEL RRRE(E
AR A - B I AR BB RIS T A -
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fr8 8 (®)

PCK Steel Middle East FZE (“PCK(UAE)”), which was
incorporated in Dubai, the United Arab Emirates on 20 May
2013, is exempted from corporate income tax for the years
from 2013 to 2028 according to the preferential corporate tax
policy in Jebel Ali Free Zone in the United Arab Emirates.

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP”), as a High
and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) qualified on 16
December 2008 and renewed in 2011, 2014 and 2017, is
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019. Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP(zZhuhai)"), as an HNTE qualified on 30
September 2015, was entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

Pabo Detection Technology Service Co., Ltd. (“Pabo
Detection”) and Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf Co., Ltd. (“Zhugang
Wharf”) meet the requirements of tax privileges for small
enterprises and were entitled to a reduced tax rate of 10%.

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, except for certain preferential tax treatments
available to PCKSP, PCKSP(Zhuhai), Pabo Detection and
Zhugang Whart, the companies of the Group which operate in
Mainland China were subject to Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
at a rate of 25% on their respective taxable income for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

10. Fr8 8 (®)

The major components of the income tax expense for the year FANBHRASMNEZAXNBLET

are as follows:

Current — Mainland China

2017 2016
—E—+tF :’%_/\i
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

BIE - E A i

Charged for the year FALH 574 469
Deferred (note 19) IR (P3EL9) (15,182) 55,728
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FAMIE (Ke) FXBE (14,608) 56,197
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before HRARHERTAEENBEBERS (BRAQRR
tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the BEXHBOMBARMENBERAEEHEFE
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled HASERERTERAENTIER O H KR KE
to the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a AP REERBTERMEERNT

reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE-_Z-—t+tF+-A=+t—-HLEE

Mainland China Hong Kong and others Total
HE R EERHAMLE @t
RMB'000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFR AR¥TT ARETT
Loss before tax B EE (738,103) (150,260) (888,363)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREHENHE (184,526) 25.0 (3,997) 2.7 (188,523) 21.2
Tax effect of: hze
Lower tax rate for HNTEs BI RN ENRER 38,785 (5.2) - - 38,785 (4.4)
Lower tax rate for small enterprises NI ERRER
with low profit (a71) = = = an) -
Expenses not deductible for tax TAMBRX 4,107 (0.5) - - 4,107 (0.5)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HiREARMERE AR
previous periods 543 (0.2) = = 543 (0.2)
Loss attributable to a joint venture NS 417 (0.2) - - 417 =
Tax losses not recognised AEANTEEE 126,237 (7.2) 3,997 (2.7 130,234 (14.6)
Tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate EASEERHENTHER L (14,608) 2.0 - - (14,608) 16
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

11.

Year ended 31 December 2016

10. Fr8 8 (®)

BE-_Z—RFE+ZA=+—HLFE

Mainland China Hong Kong and others Total
FE A FARHEME @t
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
Loss before tax BRBRTEE (1,225,521) (217,280) (1,442,801)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEHEAENHE (306,380) 25.0 (26,951) 12.4 (333,331) 231
Tax effect of: RBYE:
Lower tax rate for HNTEs BRI ENRERX 41,713 3.4) - - 41,713 (2.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax MBS 3,301 (0.3) - - 3,301 (0.2)
Adjustment in respect of current tax of HBTRRIERE AR
previous periods 469 (0.0) - - 469 (0.0)
Provision for impairment of BEREEE RERE
deferred tax assets 80,497 (6.6) - - 80,497 (5.6)
Super-deduction of research and REKABEIR
development costs (1,538) 0.1 - - (1,538) 0.1
Loss attributable to a joint venture —HAERREEEE 219 (0.0) - - 219 (0.0)
Tax losses not recognised FERNBIEER 237,916 (19.4) 26,951 (12.4) 264,867 (18.4)
Tax expense at the Group's BASEERBERNHRERR
effective tax rate 56,197 (4.6) - - 56,197 (3.9)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. AR EERFTEEABLERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the

loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,011,142,000 (2016: 1,011,142,000) in issue during the

year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share

amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no

potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ -BMERRE

Office
Land and Plant and and other Motor Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BAER
THREF BER#ES HitiR e RE ERIR EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR®Tr AR¥TRT AR®Tn AR%TT AR®Tx
31 December 2017 —Z-tf+-A=+-H
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=+-H
and 1 January 2017: RZZ—tF-A-H:
Cost A 822,406 2,806,251 49,738 55,232 1,020,256 4,753,883
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 27 & K& (104,885)  (1,272,040) (39,880) (21,763) - (1,438,568)
Net carrying amount FEFE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315
At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated RZE—tF-R—-8"
depreciation and impairment NR2BEFERAE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315
Additions RE 528 1,365 257 = 32,106 34,256
Disposals HE (96,561) (4,416) (378) (2,206) = (103,561)
Depreciation provided during the year FRBENTE (36,864) (99,080) (2,481) (4,620) - (143,045)
Impairment A = (18,006) = = = (18,006)
Transfers BA 179,770 7,105 - = (186,875) =
Exchange realignment X RE - (178) (29) (167) (1,831) (2,205)
At 31 December 2017, net of accumulated R-Z—+45+=-A=+—H"
depreciation and impairment R 2EHAERAE 764,394 1,421,001 7,221 26,476 863,656 3,082,754
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+E&+=A=1+-8:
Cost A 894,775 2,799,273 46,365 51,109 863,656 4,655,178
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 E R & (130,381)  (1,378,272) (39,138) (24,633) - (1,572,424
Net carrying amount EEFE 764,394 1,421,001 7,221 26,476 863,656 3,082,754
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. ¥ -BERRE (&)

Office
Land and Plant and and other Motor  Construction
buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
THRET  HERES HithR nE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTRT ARETT AR%TL ARETR ARET:
31 December 2016 “B-RE¥+=ZB=t-H
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016: AZF—-RF+-A=+—-ARK
“E-R¥-A-B:
Cost A 664,990 2,554,314 49,804 59,079 1,146,197 4,474,384
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ ZTE#E L& (75,661) (622,775) (36,191) (18,397) - (753,024)
Net carrying amount FEFE 589,329 1,931,539 13,613 40,682 1,146,197 3,721,360
At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated RZE-R"E-A—B HNKREBRRER
depreciation and impairment A 589,329 1,931,539 13,613 40,682 1,146,197 3,721,360
Additions RE 25 4,842 739 1,067 279,481 286,154
Disposals HE - (2,506) (90) (3,178) - (5,774)
Depreciation provided during the year ERNBEREOTE (29,224) (137,767) (4,437) (5,233) - (176,661)
Impairment HE - (512,175) - - - (512,175)
Transfers PN 157,391 250,076 - - (407,467) -
Exchange realignment S - 202 33 131 2,045 2,411
At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated R-Z—A~F+-A=+—H"
depreciation and impairment MR 2EHERAE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=1+—-R:
Cost A 822,406 2,806,251 49,738 55,232 1,020,256 4,753,883
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 E R & (104,885)  (1,272,040) (39,880) (21,763) - (1,438,568)
Net carrying amount REFE 717,521 1,534,211 9,858 33,469 1,020,256 3,315,315
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. ¥ -BERRE (&)

Impairment tests for property, plant and equipment
When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or entity. The
carrying values of these individual plants or entities were
compared to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs, which
were based predominantly on the higher of value-in-use and
its fair value less cost of disposal. Value-in-use calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using the same cash
flow projections of the fifth year. Other key assumptions applied
in the impairment tests include the expected product price,
demand for the products, product cost and related expenses.
Management determined that these key assumptions were
based on past performance and their expectations on market
development. Further, the Group adopts a pre-tax rate of 15%
that reflects specific risks related to CGUs as the discount rate.
The assumptions above are used in analysing the recoverable
amounts of CGUs within operating segments.

As a result of the impairment assessment, management
recognised an impairment loss of RMB18,006,000 against
the property, plant and equipment in the steel pipes segment.
The impairment charge is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China.

Included in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment was capitalised interest of RMB308,097,000 as at
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB308,097,000).

Included in the total costs of plant and machinery are certain
assets acquired in prior years for which government grants
of RMB5,950,000 (2016: RMB5,950,000) were received and
deducted from their costs in arriving at their carrying amounts.
The original costs of those assets before the deduction of
the grants amounted to RMB117,183,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB117,183,000).

Details of the Group’s property, plant and machinery pledged
to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 25.

T EFFERE

ME -BMERREZRENR
B HBREMREDRS MERESHREELE
UEME - BELRBERBEN G - ReEELE
UAREEREREE ZZEMEKREXEEBAR
HEARSEEBMHITWRE S EELER MR
CELENZIKRESENTEZREEAEER
ERFEREERA (UReERE)FTHE -FH
BEDBEEEECHECAFYRBEERAM
AReRnEBAAE BHAFH2RERED
HRAERFIER SRS TEREFTHOR o 8% BRI AT
ERAZEMERBECEERERER ERF
K ERERAREERS EEERRZSHE
R IR E R R HE 58 R 2 FEHAKRE -
SEoh - NEBFE A R A IR & E £ B AR
EJ‘LF ZELAIH = 15% fE R RE IR K - iR
AMEENHERNESEESBN 2] KEIES5E -

BERAETGZER EEERRMES 2D
%J*%& 5 2 (B B 1B A A R #18,006,000

TeoREBEBRAREBEE-_T—+tF+=ZA=+—8
iifzfAﬁ SRMFER -

REBW D REFARN D E AN TR IES
HORE -

R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—8 D% BELER
ZEEEBEERLFE A ARE308,097,000
T (=—ZF— 7<% AR%308,097,0007T) °

RUAEFERENE TEED S AKRE & #28
WBKAN REREEER TEEERNHE
BRAFR B HEZSE é?%mmﬁﬁﬁ%AE%
5,950,0007T (= Z — /X% : AK#%¥5,950,000
) RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H ZFEEX
MR RKAZERE ARE117,183,0007T (=
T—NF: ARM117,183,0000T) °
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TERNFBEHNMFE25 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the
Group located in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Lianyungang and Ningbo
with a total net carrying amount of approximately RMB222,860,000
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB205,455,000) have not yet
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the end of the
reporting period, the directors were still in the process of obtaining
these certificates.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s fixed assets held
under finance leases included in the total amounts of plant
and machinery at 31 December 2017 was RMB182,596,000
(2016: RMB207,544,000).

12. W% BE KRB (&)

RZZT—+tF+A=+—8 AEEMLREM-
RE EEBERERNE TEFHAREREPE
B HFEERERER ZEEFOEEFES
A ANRB222,860,0007T ( ZZE—NEF: AR
#205,455,0007T) - RIEHR  ESEMHIEZ
ERENRBFE-

RZZE—+tF+ZA=1+—B AEEREHEH
ERGrETEEZEREFE Dt AP REE R
MR 2 RIEREE AN 28 A A R182,596,0007T
—Z—"F: AR¥207,544,0007T) °

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 13. BEPYE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBEFT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—RA—BZEHE 2,233,137 808,127
Transfer from investment property (note 14) EREAREYE (KF14) - 1,196,775
Additions NE 367,981 228,235
Carrying amount as at 31 December EAWLZH =t+—HZEEE 2,601,118 2,233,137
Amount classified as current assets DHEARDEEZSRE (2,601,118) (1,036,362)
Non-current portion EMENE 5 - 1,196,775

No impairment/reversal of impairment was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,355,945,000 (2016: RMB442,742,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 25).

All properties under development are situated in Mainland
China and were held under long term leases as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REWH
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBF T
Commercial property in Mainland China A2 R

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 1,138,221 2,306,804
Additions A=Y - 28,192

Transfer to properties under development ERTERPYE (M5E13)
(note 13) - (1,196,775)
Carrying amount at 31 December RtTZA=+—BZEEAE 1,138,221 1,138,221
1,138,221 1,138,221

The Group’s investment property consist of one commercial
property in Mainland China, which is held under medium term
leases. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment property is a commercial asset, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the property.

Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2017, the fair value of the investment
property was RMB1,138,221,000. Each year, the Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decided,
after approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s property
manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.

T EFFERE

AREBMKREDEBTE —RXHE AN EA
ME - BPRENORE - ERNDENMEERHER
PASHNER ARAREZRREVEEERD
REE-

BEBY EEAERGHEMKFITIEERER
RARZE—RFFTZA=T—HEZZE—LF
TZA=Zt+—BZHE REVMEZATERA
R #51,138,221,0007T ° 2N £ [&] 1) 1 3 4938 K 87 7%
BEGFRAEINEGHEMZ AR CESEZE
BgttER ZEHAEAREEME ZINBEE -
TEKRHEBREmS TR B2 BUMRESH
FBEERKE - AEENYELBERVBRAESTE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

14. BEYE (&)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment property:

AFESER

TRETAEEREMEZ A FEFERR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using

REB—tF+-A=Z+-HERAUTHAEFEZAVE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBT S BEARTA BEART
PR E % BEEGAE BEBAE
(B—-%) (B=#&) (B=8) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ TR AR% TR ARBTR
Recurring fair value BEMNTFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property ElE/ES - - 1,138,221 1,138,221
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
RIZB-—RF+_A=+—RERNTHAEFE2ATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IR BT 5 Eb Ny EvNN|
PrRE BxaAE B AE
(B—#) (B=H) (B=%) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
Recurring fair value KEHEAFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property Edik/ES - - 1,138,221 1,138,221

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

190 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

WAFE F-—HREF-_HF2ATBEAFENE
ZEE NEAF=-RABALEL (ZT—KRF:

&) o

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. REYE (5)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER (FH)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within AFEERE=FRNZAFEFAELER:

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

2017
—E—tfF
RMB’000
ARBF T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RZE-—RE-A—AZEEE 2,306,804
Additions ANE 28,192
Transfer to properties under development EREERPYE (1,196,775)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RE+ZA=+—HFK
1 January 2017 —E—tF-A-HZEHEE 1,138,221
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in 1828 2 B Uk A R 5 R
other income and gains in profit or loss NEPEFHBEZ WS FRE -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZZT—tF+ZA=+—HZEHAE 1,138,221
The valuations of investment property were arrived at using REMENHEDRAERELEBEZN 2R EEH
the direct comparison method by making reference to the EALLRAHEERMER -
comparable sale prices in the relevant locality.
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the HIEEMELEMSNEERTEREEGAEDN
key inputs to the valuation of investment property: MESHI0T
Significant observable
Valuation techniques inputs Range or weighted average
B & BERATEHERAE EHESMEFH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Commercial property  Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate 7,200~7,500 6,506~7,836
(RMB/s.q.m.)
EEX/ES BEELEE MmiZBEMEE
(BFARARE)
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

15. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

15. RPEAREREZS

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARBF T

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment VI R MR 2 A RIE 84,885 101,863

Deposits paid RN & 38,825 42,719

Share of net assets B EEFE 123,710 144,582

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AL #tEE

2017 2016

—E—iF ZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBEFIT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEHE 1,238,979 1,107,630

Additions NE - 157,380

Disposal s (63,251) -

Amortisation provided during the year FAEERE (26,456) (26,031)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HBZEHE 1,149,272 1,238,979
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits 5t AFBATZUE « 124 K H 8 U 7k

and other receivables (note 22) 18 2 BNERER & (B 3E22) (25,599) (27,215)

Non-current portion FE BN EAEB o5 1,123,673 1,211,764

Details of the Group’s leasehold lands that are pledged to
secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 25.

BB EE25
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—EBEE QAR ZKRE
2017 2016
—E 1+ —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Share of net assets DIEEERE 39,363 47,541
Exchange realignment PE 3 58 & (4,807) (10,206)
Share of net assets DIGEEFE 34,556 37,335
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: KEBEERTZFHBIHNAT
Place of Percentage of
Particulars  registration Bt
of issued and Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held business interest power sharing activities
e BT R
£ IR 13 F 1B EEME EEER REHE FEAE R R FEEK
Al-Qahtani PCK Registered Kingdom of 50 50 50 Manufacture and
Pipe Company capital of Saudi Arabia sale of welded
SR50 million steel pipes
each
Al-Qahtani PCK EMEASE b B RHERENE
Pipe Company 50,000,000  fUh{AF &
DRHEDR
The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by FHRREERRZIREBRARAIMERE -

the Company.

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company, which is considered a material Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company #1327~ % E 2
joint venture of the Group, acts as the Group’s producer and BEREERNT HREXAEERD FRAETEH
distributor of steel pipes in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and FERDHME  WAEREAR

is accounted for using the equity method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 17. R—RBEEARZRE (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial N Z& %7~ Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company 2 817
information of Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company adjusted for ERHE EREREHERAMNEEELFE
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the I £8 B 75 Rk P 51 AR T (B 40 B

carrying amount in the financial statements:

2017 2016
—g—tfF —FAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Inventories FE 3,843 -
Other receivables H b FE W 5K IB 4,529 7,722
Cash and bank balances Re RiRITE R 5,574 15,693
Total current assets MBEERE 13,946 23,415
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 578,701 565,824
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 578,701 565,824
Amount due to PCKSP N EBERTINE KA 11,337 1,191
Other payables b FE T SRR 27,416 29,842
Trade payables B 5 ENERXK 6,717 7,564
Current portion of long term loans EHEZRRS XD 23,377 18,544
Tax payable FEBEIR 944 -
Total current liabilities BB EEE 69,791 57,141

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and ERE TR EE  TRIEE FEN

other payables and provisions R 3 N2 Hh JE A< FRIE % 4 360,248 353,133
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE 360,248 353,133
Net assets BEFE 162,608 178,965
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31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 17. R—EBEERAZ2RE (#)
2017 2016
—E 1+ —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint HAEBNEGERNA 2R

o|

venture:
The loss from contribution of non-monetary assets T AIFEHBEE 2 EI8 (83,883) (83,883)
Net assets after reconciliation HERBEEFE 78,725 95,082
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE 7 BB RELL 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEEEGLHEERAIEEFE 39,363 47,541
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 39,363 47,541
Administrative expenses THEA (4,086) (2,920)
Finance costs Bl & Bl AN (1,472) -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year AEEBEMEEEEESE (5,558) (2,920)
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. I HERE
2017 2016
—B—tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Unlisted equity investment, FELMBRAKRE
at cost less impairment R AHIBR R E 800 800
The unlisted equity investment with a carrying amount of BRMEE AR ES800,000t (ZZE—RNF: AR
RMB800,000 (2016: RMB800,000) is stated at cost less 800,0007T) 2 F F M AR AN % & 1= B AR HI bR R E
impairment as the investment does not have a quoted market R -AAREEEZRMBS EYEMERE MZ
price in an active market, and the range of reasonable REZAEENR Wﬁﬁﬁz TEAKRK EERAEH
fair value estimates of such investment is so wide that the NFERGER SEH T E o A& B I T8 H L 52 Hf
directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be NHEZIRE -

measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of
the investment in the near future.
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RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets

19. IEFEH IH
ELEHEEE
Losses
available

Impairment of

for offsetting

trade and against
other future taxable
receivables profits Total
B R A] i 4K 8
H {th & Wk 18 RIRPER
mE BENZEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T AR¥T R
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—F—H = 47,887 47,887
Deferred tax credit to AAFARGEBRER
the consolidated statement of B IR AT A% I8
profit or loss during the year - 16,089 16,089
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+ZA=+—H - 63,976 63,976
Losses
available
Impairment of for offsetting
trade and against
other  future taxable
receivables profits Total
B5 Kk AJ LR 8
H th & W sk 1E AR PERR
BE  BRMzEE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AREF T ARBEFT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 1,810 78,687 80,497
Deferred tax charged to FARGREERE
the consolidated statement of IR B9 1R TR 18
profit or loss during the year (1,810) (30,800) (32,610)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-—A"F+ZA=+—H - 47,887 47,887
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R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of RMB391,197,000 (2016: RMB372,090,000),
which are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB1,895,811,000 (2016: RMB1,143,459,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

19. IEERE (#)

RZE—+F

T2 RA=1t—B A&KERE

BEHAIEEIB ARKE391,197,000T (- &

— /N AR¥372,090,0007T)

R ERIAR

BUERABERHELBASEN QRN RKE
ARBEN - REB IR B N EEE B IEE R
AR #1,895,811,000t (Z T —RF: AR
1,143,459,0007T) - RN —Z R FE RN I H - LAK
HARERB AN BAREAZSTEENNEA
REEE—BREME BTKAEEEERT R
LIRS PI B ARIBEE NURRZSEERER

BIERTAEE °

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBERE

Appreciation

Changes in of property,
fair value of plant and
investment equipment Withholding
property and lands tax Total
ME - BER
REMEZ RER
DNFELE T FE itk st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR% TR AR®TR
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 625,623 12,200 2,265 640,088
Deferred tax charged to the FARGEERR
consolidated statement of HBRHERER
profit or loss during the year 1,174 (267) - 907
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—tF+A=+—H
recognised in the EREMBHRNRERZ
consolidated statement EERIEAELESE
of financial position at
31 December 2017 626,797 11,933 2,265 640,995

T EFFERE
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19. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 19. IEZEBLIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) BEEHBEAE (H)

Appreciation
Changes in of property,

fair value of plant and
investment equipment Withholding
property and lands tax Total
REWMEZ R &
RNEEEE THTHE I st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®ETT ARETT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"E—H—H 602,239 12,466 2,265 616,970
Deferred tax charged to the FARGEERR

consolidated statement of HIBRHEE R B

profit or loss during the year 23,384 (266) - 23,118
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—RF+ZA=+—H

recognised in the EREHBRARERZ

consolidated statement ELERIEAELESE

of financial position at

31 December 2016 625,623 12,200 2,265 640,088
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and HEFEMmE ETEEHEEEREREER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BEMBRARPEE AEERYBRERNS
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred HUEERIBATE ST AT -

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2017 2016
—®—tF —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in &R G BT 15 AR 0 2= 7 R

the consolidated statement of financial position EERIEE EFHE - -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in &R & BT 15 AR 0 2= 7 R

the consolidated statement of financial position EERIE B EFE 577,019 592,201
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19.

20.

— =
=
—=

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% (or
a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors) withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Since year 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by
the Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject
to withholding taxes as management considered it is not
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

19.

EERTE (F)

R A% P B AT BOE - i 5 A B K B K SZ A9 1
BRERBIMMREET RS  EHH10% (X
i R B A ESNE R E E B RDEER R
BAOREREREF)BBIAR -LRER _FZN
F-A-BAER AERAR_ZTZELF+_-A
=t —RERBROAEN Al AEBEZATD
MR L2 ZEWNB AR —TTNF—H—H
REEZAN DR R SEAIBINN -

BE-E——FfE& AKEHMERARNEORZ

ZEHB AR 2 RE LB 2 A SR TR

REEBE AREEEAR/ZEMBRARTTAK
Bt

AREER R R D IRZ S RN

INVENTORIES 20. 78
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Raw materials JR AT 67,228 121,858
Work in progress E& 71,465 120,216
Finished goods BUAK i 168,831 196,058
307,524 438,132

Less: Provision against slow-moving and BB RRETERE

obsolete inventories (18,819) (27,131)
288,705 411,001

—EEFERE
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 2. ESERERFREVRERE
2017 2016
—E 1+ —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 KRR 350,024 608,491
Impairment RE (14,433) (12,712)
Trade receivables, net B S ERBEFFE 335,591 595,779
Bills receivables e 35,529 22,642

371,120 618,421
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEEEAXPHNESBRRETZREE HFE
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance P—REEBFNERBRIN-EEH—HKAH30H
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 to FIH -BHREBEFEEREERE:- Zﬁ’*l?ﬁmiﬁi
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The E!‘E%%Tlﬁiﬂgiaf%lﬁgﬁ BRAGEER
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding R AR o 8 Hl R Hﬂm@%ﬁ)\%iﬁﬁ%@i
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances AREMBRAKEE LAKE 2B 5B RE
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of RENHEFPEHR HUBEEREEETER-
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade AEBETHE FEWRRE R T E I &G E
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, EHRRREMRAEANRE -BHEBERR
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group TEFE e

does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

21.

EZRUERRRERRE (&)
REERR RRZAHSEERSHBRERBD

B RBIRFREDTAOT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Within 60 days 60H A 64,914 206,449
61 to 90 days 61H %=90H 5,046 20,122
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 36,544 88,491
181 to 365 days 181 H #365H 42,305 52,332
1to 2 years 1E2%F 111,636 135,429
2 to 3 years 2E34F 58,143 78,347
Over 3 years HHiR3F 17,003 14,609
335,591 595,779

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade ZoRBERRERBEZSHOT :

receivables are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 12,712 11,098
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 2,974 3,745
Impairment losses reversed [RECAENREY SE= (1,253) (2,131)
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H 14,433 12,712

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB14,433,000 (2016: RMB12,712,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of RMB14,433,000 (2016:

RMB12,712,000).

T EFFERE

FTALIE S EWERERMRERERER D RE
2B SRR AREL14,433,000T (ZF — X
F: AR®12,712,00070) 2 #fE - BEOERT
EAARML14,433,000L (ZT—NF: AR

12,712,0007T) °
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 2. ESRWERR R BWERE (&)

An aged analysis of trade receivables that are not considered WRATERENE ZEBERREIITOT
to be impaired is as follows:

2017 2016
—g—tF —FAF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired R B R R R 161,646 428,396

Past due but not impaired aHME SRR E
1 to 180 days 1H£180H 44,840 75,895
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 66,681 25,634
Over 365 days #HI365H LA E 62,424 65,854
335,591 595,779

The Group’s neither past due nor impaired trade receivables
mainly represent sales made to recognised and creditworthy
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
These customers who trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. A HIE e R HEMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Prepayments SEEN O 350,394 428,039
Deposits and other receivables e & H e FRIE 153,155 127,712
Tax recoverable AJ Y [B1 752 18 166,572 168,793
Current portion of land lease payments (note 16) TS A RENBH (M E16) 25,599 27,215

695,720 751,759
Less: Impairment of deposits and other receivables & : % & & H {th i I3 E B (E (94,250) (94,262)

601,470 657,497
The movements in the provision for impairment of deposits ReREMBEWFIEREREZE LT

and other receivables are as follows:

2017 2016
—g—tF T AR
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETT

At 1 January n—HA—H 94,262 23,752
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B RBERE (i) - 70,510
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B EREEE (MFe6) (12) -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—8 94,250 94,262
As at 31 December 2017, the net balance of deposits and RZE—+tF+ZA=1+—RH e kEMERK
other receivables was neither past due nor impaired. Financial RB#HRFERGPERLERE-2HEED
assets included in the above balance relate to receivables for FT A bt B3 HA NG R 3 R G SR M FE R IE B Y
which there was no recent history of default. KR

—E RS BIfmmAAREEEREaRAT 203



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23. BERBITEBRRCEFRZIRHIER

AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 1THEER
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBEFT
Cash and bank balances BRe MRITER 36,392 439,067
Pledged and restricted bank BRI R R GIRITE R
balances 666,009 657,960
702,401 1,097,027
Less: Do
Pledged and restricted bank balances B R R G R1T AR
— Pledged for long-term bank loans — B RERITEREER 25(c) (413,741) (410,160)
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes —BLERITA N RIRE M (123,633) (197,158)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — LR B E R (98,365) (29,902)
— Restricted cash —ZRHIEE (@) (30,270) (20,740)
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERREEEY (b) 36,392 439,067
Notes: B 5T

@

(b)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales proceeds
of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and payments of construction fees
for the relevant property projects. As at 31 December 2017,
such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB28,918,000 (2016:
RMB18,419,000).

As at 31 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group is a
defendant in a dispute brought by a supplier. Pursuant to
the property preservation, the Group’s bank account of
RMB1,352,000 was frozen.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB29,467,000 (2016:
RMB371,632,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

@

(b)
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

24.

BESEMNEARENRE
REEAR RERREHHENESBNER
RENEERKSTHT :

follows:

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ETFTT

Trade payables BESEMERR
Within 90 days 90H A 51,306 309,447
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 318,893 52,683
181 to 365 days 181H ®365H 16,775 149,595
1 to 2 years 1&E2%F 79,394 88,756
2 to 3 years 2%34F 56,664 20,748
Over 3 years HHIR3F 24,240 17,562
547,272 638,791
Bills payable EAEE 123,077 151,557
670,349 790,348

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms.

All the bills payable have maturity dates within 365 days.

T EFFERE

B ORNER /T E  B—REROBNZ(T-

B FE EE 3658 M EIH -
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. st ERITRHEMEE
BORROWINGS
2017 2016
“E-tE& ZE-RE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000

RERIE %) HER ARMTR EBEAEM®) HER  ARETR

Current Vol

Finance lease payables (note 26) e R AT E5E (:126) 4.61-8.43 2018 100,476 4,61-8.43 2017 96,076

Bank loans RITER

— secured -FHEA 2.75-6.16 2018 825,833 1.00-6.16 2017 707,682

- unsecured - EER 4.35-6.09 2018 404,230 2.85-6.09 2017 1,023,033

Other borrowings Hifg g

— secured -BHEA 16 2018 324,824 -

- unsecured —EEH 4.35-24 2018 729,465  2.94-18.00 2017 368,578

Government loans BRITER

- secured -HHEA 4.75-4.90 2018 143,500 4.90 2017 17,600

- unsecured -EER 2.65-4.75 2018 194,000 3.15-5.50 2017 200,000

Current portion of long term loans ROBEFRDHH

- secured -BHEA 4.75-7.35 2018 609,866 2.30-5.96 2017 1,818,847

— unsecured — &R A - 2.50 2017 143,120
3,332,194 4,374,936

Non-current ERE

Finance lease payables (note 26) [ERBEREE (MiH2e) 5.68-8.43  2019-2020 52,678 461-843  2018-2020 149,998

Bank loans RITER

— secured -FHEA 2.95-7.21  2019-2028 1,449,608 230596  2018-2028 718,006

Government loans BRER

— secured -BHEA 490 2019-2023 378,400 475490  2018-2023 521,900
1,880,686 1,389,904
5,212,880 5,764,840
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. st ERITRHEMEE (80)
BORROWINGS (continued)

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Analysed into: BTN A:
Bank loans repayable: AR THREENRITER:
Within one year —F KN 2,168,753 3,692,682
In the second year F_F 49,708 140,556
In the third to fifth years, F=FEERF
inclusive (BHEEERT) 345,300 439,450
Beyond five years BiBAF 1,050,600 138,000
3,614,361 4,410,688
Government loans repayable: AR THREENBRNTER:
Within one year —F R 337,500 217,600
In the second year FF 70,400 143,500
In the third to fifth years, F-FEFERF
inclusive (BREEREMSF) 264,000 246,400
Beyond five years AT 44,000 132,000
715,900 739,500
Other borrowings repayable: ARATEIR EE
H 845
Within one year —F R 829,942 464,654

—fF 37,677 97,319

In the second year %
EoFERERF

In the third to fifth years,

inclusive (BREEEMSF) 15,000 52,679
882,619 614,652
5,212,880 5,764,840

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: AEEETRITEFBTISEERER:

(a) the pledge of certain property, plant and equipment of (@ ERAEERNBRERREEDFEARAR
the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately #51,477,453,000C (Z T —RNF: AR
RMB1,477,453,000 (2016: RMB1,512,480,000) as at the 1,512,480,0007C) M E T¥W % W E k&
end of the reporting period; 1
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. FFERTRAEMEE (8

BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) the pledge of certain leasehold lands of the Group with a () BERAEERBERRKEFENRAR
net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,003,365,000 #1,003,365,000C (Z T — <N F: AR
(2016: RMB1,061,802,000) as at the end of the reporting 1,061,802,0007T) M) & FHE i
period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits amounting c) BEAEERBREHRSEAARE
to RMB413,741,000 (2016: RMB410,160,000) as at the 413,741,000 (= — R F: AR¥
end of the reporting period; and 410,160,0007T ) #& TFEH &

(d) the pledge of certain of the Group’s properties under d BERXEERBEHRBRARE
development amounting to RMB1,355,945,000 (2016: 1,355,945,000C (— B —XNF: AR
RMB442,742,000) as at the end of the reporting period. 442,742,00070) K& TERT M-

Except for the bank loans of RMB324,824,000 (2016: RZE—tEF+ZA=+—HB BRBITEX

RMB161,566,000) and RMB8,908,000 (2016: AR 324,824,000 (=T —RNF: AR

RMB1,986,000,000) as at 31 December 2017, which are 161,566,0007T ) & A K #£8,908,0007T ( =& — <

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars, #F: AR #1,986,000,0007T) 5 Al LA T R ZE T

respectively, all borrowings are in RMB. FIEHNN 2HEEAUARESE -

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities: REEA T MARRERRITEE:

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Floating rate PR o) P

— expiring within one year* ——F R 515,500 1,944,563

* Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn * BIEABEE 4 N&EE <A A RK200,000,000
banking facilities of RMB200,000,000 (2016: RMB1,200,000,000) L (=T — "% : AR%1,200,000,0007T) 2 & F
can only be used for property development projects and are RIEMRITEECTRRYELRER LKA
repayable based on the pre-sale progress of such properties. Bk TREHEEER-
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 26. EmEHEERE

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for
its steel pipe manufacturing business. These leases are
classified as finance leases and have remaining lease terms
ranging from 11 to 36 months.

On 21 April 2014, PCKSP entered into an equipment transfer
contract and a finance lease contract (collectively the “2014
finance lease arrangement”) with CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. (“[E
Re@MBEARAA") (the “Lessor”). Pursuant to the 2014
finance lease arrangement, PCKSP sold the equipment to the
Lessor, and the Lessor leased back the equipment to PCKSP
for a period of 60 months. The aggregate consideration was
RMB200 million, and PCKSP paid a guarantee deposit of
RMB26 million and a service charge of RMB10 million to the
Lessor. According to the 2014 finance lease arrangement, if
no default occurs during the lease term, the ownership of the
equipment shall be automatically transferred to the Group at a
price of RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term.

On 23 November 2015, PCKSP (Zhuhai) entered into an
equipment transfer contract and a finance lease contract
(collectively the “Zhuhai finance lease arrangement”) with
Henggin Jintou Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (“&Z & & EE
FrEMEBR QA" (the “Lessor’). Pursuant to the Zhuhai
finance lease arrangement, PCKSP (Zhuhai) sold the
equipment to the Lessor, and the Lessor leased back the
equipment to PCKSP (Zhuhai) for a period of 36 months. The
aggregate consideration was RMB100 million, and PCKSP
(Zhuhai) paid a guarantee deposit of RMB6 million and a
service charge of RMB5.4 million to the Lessor. According to
the Zhuhai finance lease arrangement, if no default occurs
during the lease term, the ownership of the equipment
shall be automatically transferred to the Group at a price of
RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term.

T EFFERE

AEBBEES THE ;e OETHERESE
HK-BREENEAREME M THHNF
11E361@ A °

RZZE—MFMAZ+—B FEKIMEER
HeMEEERAFT ([HBEADTZ—1M0 (R
HHEER) k—H (REBEEGR) (HE[=
T-NERMERELTY]) BEBE_ZT—MOFRE
HERH ERHRINEERESEFHAA M
HAAGSZERLD THBHKLENE  BH60EA -
#ARAE A AR200,000,0000T MESHTHEE
B X RE & ARK%26,000,000T X REEAR
#10,000,000C T HHA - RIBE-ZT —NFFHE
HEZH WRBHBRATEBEEELY BIZRE
WEEEREBHEREKEDEBREREER 1
BEAAREL00T -

R-ZZE—HF+—A=-+=H FEHKITMWE (K
BIEEZSRBEMEEERR A A ([HE
ADFTI I —0 (REEFEAR) R—H (BER
EAR) (WK EMERELRH]) - REKE
BEMERY BEWIWHE (KF)AEHEAL
ERE MEBAKREERD FHERSKINE (K
) 7 EA36ME A - 48X (E & A R %100,000,000
ToMmMEBEBEHIME (KE)ERMERAZA
ERZE AR 6,000,000t EREEBARE
5,400,0007T * 1R 4% k)6 @b & f2 & 22 BE - 4 50 8 B8
NI EBEARLY AZBENREERNESRER
BEEBEBERER EERARKLI00T -

BImmRARMESERERLT 209



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R AL

31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 26. ENREHEERE (&)

On 21 December 2015, PCKSP entered into an equipment
transfer contract and a finance lease contract (collectively
the “2015 finance lease arrangement”) with KW Leasing
Co., Ltd. ("&£ XBIEmMEHREABMRAA") (the “Lessor”).
Pursuant to the 2015 finance lease arrangement, PCKSP
sold the equipment to the Lessor, and the Lessor leased
back the equipment to PCKSP for a period of 60 months. The
aggregate consideration was RMB60 million, and PCKSP paid
a guarantee deposit of RMB6 million and a service charge of
RMB3.5 million to the Lessor. According to the 2015 finance
lease arrangement, if no default occurs during the lease
term, the ownership of the equipment shall be automatically
transferred to the Group at a price of RMB100 upon expiration
of the lease term.

On 1 January 2016, PCKSP (Lianyungang) entered into an
equipment purchase contract and a finance lease contract
(collectively the “Lianyungang finance lease arrangement”)
with Yayin (Zhuhai) Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (“gz 4R
(B)MEMEBERAT") (the “Lessor”). Pursuant to
the Lianyungang finance lease arrangement, PCKSP
(Lianyungang) leased the equipment from the Lessor for
a period of 36 months. The aggregate consideration was
RMB16,453,000, and PCKSP (Lianyungang) paid a service
charge of RMB113,000 to the Lessor. According to the
Lianyungang finance lease arrangement, if no default occurs
during the lease term, the ownership of the equipment
shall be automatically transferred to the Group at a price of
RMB100 upon expiration of the lease term.

The rent is calculated based on the leasing cost and the
lease rate which was decided based on the interest rate for
a one-to-five-year loan denominated in RMB quoted by the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC").
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 26. BEABEREERIE (&)
At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease RZE—+tF+_A=+—H BEMEEHH
payments under finance leases and their present values were BREM2EEEERBELBERERESHINGOT
as follows:

Present value  Present value

Minimum Minimum of minimum of minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE REHE BREHEE HERE
RHE HE  HEZRE HEIBRE

2017 2016 2017 2016
=B—tF —E-RF Z=B-tF _—ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BTT AR¥TRT ARBTT

Amounts payable: JEN &5
Within one year —FR 106,857 107,303 100,476 96,076
In the second year EF 39,861 103,764 37,678 97,319
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEERF
(BEEEMF) 15,762 55,623 15,000 52,679
Total minimum finance RERMEAHERIALE
lease payments 162,480 266,690 153,154 246,074
Future finance charges AR BER (9,326) (20,616)
Total net finance lease payables ENRERERBRTE 153,154 246,074

Portion classified as current liabilites S EARBEEZ $H
(note 25) (P5E25) (100,476) (96,076)

Non-current portion (note 25) FEREHB (MF25) 52,678 149,998
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HthENREREFTEH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Deposits received Bz e 234,287 323,648
Receipts in advance* T8 W kg 920,087 525,314
Other payables** E{h JE A R IE 452,883 264,344
Payroll payables JE 1<% i B 29,248 28,892
Accruals and other liabilities EErERREMEE 43,859 19,629
Other tax payables H b FET B 1R 15,094 23,697
1,695,458 1,185,524
* Receipts in advance represent sales proceeds received from * ERREAAEEEEREHEMBRER CHEHER
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales of properties. 17 o
**  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average o HtENREBEATHANERFTHHERAMNE =@
term of two to three months. Ao
28. PROVISION 28. &
Legal
proceeding
EERRF
RMB’000
ARBFIT
1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H 29,268
Utilised during the year FANEEHH (29,268)
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+&+_H=+—8 -
Two subsidiaries of the Group were defendants in lawsuits AEBEMENBARA—BE=FIRHAFR
brought by a third party alleging that the subsidiaries WE ZEZHEBEZSEWEBATERERTETN
breached and repudiated certain counter guarantee contracts. ETREREGED -RREBH BECERN-

As at the reporting date, the provision was settled.
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R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

29. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES 2. EEEBFRESE

US$72,000,000 5.6% bonds due 2018

On 30 April 2013, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$72,000,000 and the bonds will be repayable in
full by 30 April 2018 (the “2013 Bonds”). The bonds may be
redeemed at the option of the Group in whole, but not in part,
at any time, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the holders of the bonds, at their principal amount,
together with the interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon interest
rate of 5.6% per annum for five years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 30 October 2013. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$100,000,000 5% bonds due 2017

On 2 May 2014, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of HK$100,000,000, which were subscribed at a
price equal to HK$86,500,000 (the “2014 Bonds”). The bonds
bear interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 5% per annum
for three years payable semi-annually, commencing on 2
November 2014. On 27 April 2017, the Group redeemed in
full the 2014 Bonds before maturity at a redemption price of
102.48% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest.

HK$155,000,000 8% notes due 2020

On 27 April 2017, the Company entered into a note purchase
agreement with an investment fund. The Group agreed to
issue, and the investment fund agreed to purchase from the
Group, HK$155,000,000 8% notes due in April 2020 (the
“2017 Notes”). Pursuant to the purchase agreement, specific
performance obligations are imposed on the controlling
shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the specific
performance obligations may constitute a breach under the
note purchase agreement, pursuant to which the investment
fund is entitled to redeem the 2017 Notes immediately in
accordance with the terms and conditions.

T EFFERE

72,000,000 E TR = ZE—N\FRHZFRZE
5.6% f& %
RZE—=FWOA=1+H AEEETLALES
72,000,000 T2 EHREHFHRZFT—/\F M
H:‘I—EHI BHEM(ZZ2—=FE%]) A%
EREEREBRNESFFEAELTSRI0H
@T\tﬂGOHE@L%MAZK@ﬁ@H@ fE A H
M E2BMIEBSBERES -EHRETF
EEL56%ITE BT —=F+tA=+THRAE
HAFHESYFI N -EHFAEERM-

100,000,000 TR =Z—tF B2 F A
E5% EH
RZZE—NFRAZR AKEEHTRASEA
100,000,0007% 7t 2 &% * A] #£86,500,000/% 7T 2
f BRE([ZTE—NFEH]) BEFREEFE
K50t BT —NFE+—AZHAERE=
Eﬂaﬁt¥¢§ﬁ —E—tFMA=FLEH"
REERES ‘Jﬁﬁﬁwﬁké%ﬁloz 48% NN L FEET
RAMFEZERBEHERN T —NFESH-

155,000,000 8B TR=—Z_ZFHHZEH
£8% B

RZZE—tFMNAZ++EE ARAEREES
AV EFEERE - ALSERERT KREES
[F & [ A & @ 155,000,000 T — T - F
FHARBFREINEHF([ZZ—LFE
F) BREEERRE AEEERRRBBITH
TET - ANERBTENETAREKRESR
B THENTA MIBREEBIGERRGES:
REESERHALKTINER T —tFE5H-
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29. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (continued) 29. TEEEBHFREE (®)

US$3,000,000 7% bonds due 2020

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued a bond with a principal
amount of US dollar 3,000,000 to an individual investor (the
“2017 Bonds_A”"). The bond will be repayable in full by April
2020. The bond bears a fixed coupon interest rate at 7% per
annum for three years payable semi-annually, commencing on
28 October 2017. The bond is unsecured.

HK$10,000,000 7% bonds due 2021

On 24 August 2017, the Company issued a bond with a
principal amount of HKD10 million to an individual investor
(the “2017 Bonds_B"). The bond will be repayable in full
by August 2021. The bond bears a fixed coupon interest
rate at 7% per annum for four years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 24 February 2018. The bond is unsecured.

HK$10,000,000 6% bonds due 2020

On 26 September 2017, the Company issued a bond with a
principal amount of HKD10 million to an individual investor
(the “2017 Bonds_C”). The bond will be repayable in full by
September 2020. The bond bears a fixed coupon interest
rate at 6% per annum for three years payable semi-annually,
commencing on 26 March 2018. The bond is unsecured.
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BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

29. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (continued) 29. EEEHEREE (#®)
2017 2016
—E-t% ZE-RF
Principal  Contractual Principal ~ Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000 ‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000
FE%AE AHERER RE¥ARE  ANERE
BE (%) IHMA AR®TR BB (%) IHE  ARETR
Current ik
2013 Bonds —E-ZEEH Uss$72 5.6 2018 467,821 Uss$72 5.6 2018 -
2ET —Z-N\F TETL —Z-N\E
2014 Bonds —E-MEES HK$100 5.0 2017 = HK$100 5.0 2017 87,911
1007% 7T e o2 1007% 7T S S
467,821 87,911
Non-current ERH
2013 Bonds “T-=5f% US$72 5.6 2018 - us$72 5.6 2018 496,609
E —T-N\F TETL —T-N\F
2017 Notes “E-tFEH HK$155 8.0 2020 112,057 -
155/ 7T it S 323
2017 Bonds_A “E-tFEHA Us$3 7.0 2020 16,194 -
KE e S 323
2017 Bonds_B “Z-tFEHB HK$10 7.0 2021 5,991 -
108 7T S 3
2017 Bonds_C “Z—tFEAC HK$10 6.0 2020 6,355 -
108 7T S 323
140,597 496,609
608,418 584,520
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P e e
31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H
30. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 30. BT Bh
2017 2016
—E 1+ —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 369,707 205,875
Grants received during the year F ARG 32,320 184,523
Recognised as income during the year (note 5) FAERBBKA (HFE5) (26,914) (20,691)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 375,113 369,707

Government grants have been received as encouragement
for technological innovation and improvements, the
construction of production plants and rewards for investment

BB BB BUTRHAL - LAS B R T 81 2T IR A
WELERFERIEASRENRE -ZFHUME
MimRERGHRIRER - B LM HREERZ

encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions or HREEMARKL-
contingencies attached to these grants. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been
completed.
31. ISSUED CAPITAL 31. ERITRA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Authorised: VATE
10,000,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0000% ( =& — /K& :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000/% )
BIREE0.108 Tz LMk 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE:
1,011,142,000 (2016: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,000/& ( =& — /<%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,011,142,0000% )
BIREE.108 Tz Timk 88,856 88,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

32. RESERVES 32. #E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEERAFERAGFENRESEREHZ
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the FINB MR GERREHRA -
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT B.FERERERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities METHEEC2EEEH
Bank and Finance Fixed rate
other lease bonds and
borrowings payables notes
RITR EfmE EEES
Hifg & HENRE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®ET T AR®TF T
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 5,518,766 246,074 584,520
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREE (503,323) (92,920) 54,726
Foreign exchange movement [ 5 & 44,283 = (30,828)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—LtF
+=—A=+—H 5,059,726 153,154 608,418
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. REE
(a) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (a) REEHR B MmE P REE 2 B ER
not provided for in the financial statements were as N
follows:
2017 2016
—E—iF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage faciliies  FIZIBRE BN EEYWEDN
provided for certain purchasers of ETETRENER
the Group’s properties 174,090 136,630
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31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 34. RAAE (&)
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of default
on mortgage payments by these purchasers before the
expiry of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any auction
proceeds as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related
properties were pledged to the banks as collateral
for the mortgage loans, in the event of default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks
are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is responsible for repaying the banks when the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the issuance of real estate ownership certificates to the
purchasers, which will generally be available within one
to two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MIRE

31 December 2017 —Z—+§&+-A=+—H

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 34. RAAE (&)
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)
The fair value of the guarantees is not significant EROAFELINER  BARAEZARR
and the directors of the Company consider that in the REFEONBRAT EEWENT]ERF
event of default on payments, the net realisable value BERUNEEREENIZBASEREF
of the related properties can cover the repayment of B ETF - A L B T ek 3 R R UE
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the Hﬂ?éﬁ"

accrued interest and penalties and therefore no provision
has been made in the financial statements for the

guarantees.
(b) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities (b) RMEBR WHERRPRBHEZXABE
not provided for in the financial statements were as (U
follows:
2017 2016
—E—iF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Guarantees given to banks in connection RETFTTIAZ

with facilities granted to: EhE M RITIRMER:

a joint venture LN 217,781 231,800
As at 31 December 2017, the banking facilities RZZE—tF+TA=+—H KXEHM
guaranteed by the Group to a joint venture were utilised —HAEERAERZBITHRECHANA
to the extent of approximately RMB200,524,000 (2016: [£#200,524,000c (ZZE—XF: ARK
RMB185,440,000). 185,440,0007T ) °
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. KREMEZRH
As lessee fERABEA
The Group leases certain of its factory and office premises AEERBEEHEXHEEERETIRENA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties EME-KERMERERRAE =157
are negotiated for terms of one to thirty years with an option REREZER EMEGRRETENES -

for renewal after that date, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum RZE—+tF+ZA=1+—H AEE A HH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling HETHE R AR R SR & AR %8 12 & i B PR 10
due as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within one year —F A 3,398 3,697
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERAFT (BREEEWMT) 4,200 6,613
After five years fF & 5,193 6,175

12,791 16,485
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BATEERAR MY RE

31 December 2017 —=Z—tF+=-A=+—H

36. COMMITMENTS 36. H&IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B b SCHIGESSFT Il S & T E R E SN NE B
in note 35 above, the Group had the following capital BT E A A

commitments:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BERTH B R B
Land and buildings T RAEF 289,235 343,643
Plant and machinery R 55 K ik 25 94,700 95,349
Construction and development cost BEERAENAE 187,338 143,833
571,273 582,825
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI HEREE A -
Capital contributions payable for establishment B —MEERRZKIZEE
of a joint venture 120,676 140,495
Authorised, but not contracted for: EREBRETL
Plant and machinery 5 M 8% 2,500,000 2,500,000
3,191,949 3,223,320
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have R HASK » AR &) 30 4 A B KR o

any significant commitments.
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31 December 2017 —Z—+%&+-A=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 7. MM AR S
The directors are of the view that the following companies are EFRABTVRRANIREFRNEREEFTLEARR
related parties which entered into material transactions with 5 1) B B

the Group during the year:

Name of related party

BB S A8
Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool
Works Co., Ltd. ("GZMT”)

BENTIRTHABAR AR ([EMEK])

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company

Relationship

B &

GZMT is a company of which Mr. Chen Chang is the ultimate equity
owner.

BRI ARERERRKEBEEEAZATF

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company is a joint venture of the Group.
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company AN @ 2 A% Q7] e

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BATBREREMIIAPLENRZ HIN F
these financial statements, the Group had the following A RNEEEBEE SN TR S :

transactions with related parties during the year:

Purchases of spare parts

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR®T T ARBTT

m— %@L BEZM

from a related party ()
GZMT & N 1% PR 4,154 8,120
Sales of machines to a related party M — LR E S es (i)
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe
Company - 88
Notes: B 5
(i) The purchases were made at prices based on agreements () ZEEERAEFIESENZEHEEECHNE
signed between the parties. MEH#ETT o
(i) This transaction was carried out after negotiations between (i) ZRGDHEAEEREHR T ERBREBTE
the Group and the related party in the ordinary course of BARPET WEAREEMETHMGEIT
business and on the basis of an estimated market value as (ER

determined by the directors.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with a related party and a director:

37.

BBMLXS (#)

(b) BB NERZ RN AR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBEFIT
Due from a related party JFE Uk B B U R IE
GZMT & M % R 84,568 90,726
Due to a related party JEE 1< BRI BSE 5 I8
GZMT BN % R - 3,927
Due to a director BN —REEHE
Mr. Chen Chang BRE £ 106,994 5,563

o
i

The outstanding balances with related parties are eyl o N N E = URE s =

]

i
T

A

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of TE

repayment.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the () REEFZEBABHNFM:

Group:

2017 2016
—E—+tF TE—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT AREEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe wmMEEDNG 5,646 5,505
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R ARAE F 5T &4 5K 116 141

Total compensation paid to key management SINEFEETERAEFH B
personnel 5,762 5,646

EEMENE—FTHBEANAMBRERZ

note 8 to the financial statements. MI7E8 o

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

BREE F TR SRS I EK
FHHRABIMAETNBEER L HEBRER
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Z e

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of purchases of
spare parts above also constitute connected transactions
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. EMIAENDSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR SEemTANKRIMERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets TREE
2017 —E—+tF Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BERR At E
W RE EHEE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT ARET T
Available-for-sale investments At ERE - 800 800
Financial assets included in long term SFARBENRER
prepayments and deposits REMEMEE 38,825 - 38,825
Trade and bills receivables E 5B IRR R
e 371,120 - 371,120
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERRIE e R
deposits and other receivables E b R RIER
TREE 153,155 - 153,155
Pledged and restricted bank balances B R 2R
RITAERR 252,292 - 252,292
Time deposit TE BT R 413,717 = 413,717
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHEH 36,392 = 36,392
1,265,501 800 1,266,301
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. eMIAENSE (&)
(continued)
Financial assets (continued) TRMEE ()
2016 —E-RF Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BERR S
JRE W R IE TRIEBE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T

Available-for-sale investments B ERE - 800 800
Financial assets included in long term FTARBEMNRIER
prepayments and deposits ReWaemEE 42,719 - 42,719
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 EWEER R
e 618,421 - 618,421
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFABNRIE ek
deposits and other receivables H fh FE W RIBHY
TRMEE 127,712 - 127,712
Pledged and restricted bank balances [REAECDS &0
IRITHE R 657,960 - 657,960
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHEER 439,067 - 439,067
1,885,879 800 1,886,679
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. EMIENDE (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities cHmas

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

BEHERAAENSREE
2017 2016
—®—tF —TAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade and bills payables BEORNERRENRZE 670,349 790,348
Financial liabilities included in other payables FEACE AR FUE K

and accruals ErBRNEREE 452,883 264,344
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings EERITREMEE 5,212,880 5,764,840
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEEHFREE 608,418 584,520

6,944,530 7,404,052
39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 0. EMIAZAFERAFESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEECTHESRBSEEY BEEAERZ
cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, BHAE D  RETFR B HERERLEREE -
investment deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and BORNERRENRE FFABMNRIE e
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, K Hfth FEUGRIE 2 & B & & - 5H A H M BT /I8
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in LEFEBEAZCBRAE EHNEHREYR
other payables and accruals, short term notes and amounts WEABFEz A FE HEKEEMESE 2
due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts ARZETARNGEAZIE-

largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are CREERAGBZAFENERR S (BiBK
included at the amount at which the instrument could be BRHERINENRIPRZIAZARSEE
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, AR TAFERBHRAN GG TEE:

other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
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LB BﬁEI

31

39.

40.

December 2017 —ZF—+F&+=-A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities included
in long term prepayments and deposits, the non-current
portion of pledged deposits, available-for-sale investments,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed rate
bonds and notes have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for finance
lease payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
and fixed rate bonds and notes as at 31 December 2017
was assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
these financial instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group did not have any financial asset or financial liability
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

T EFFERE

39.

40.

EMITAZAFERLAFESER (&)

HARBEAREERReZEMEENEE:
EEEER NP AIHBEERE TR
ﬁﬁ&ﬁmﬁﬁ&*gﬁﬁﬁgﬁzﬂiﬁ’
THMER - ER &%T%EWMZIEE%
ARG TIR =X Tﬁ ETEHIRRIE & i\
T—+F+ A=+ —HB AEEREMRER

HIE FHERTEREMEEREEELFRER
ZEBTETRBRTFEATER - N2 —LF
+ZA=F+—BEZZE—XR"F+=ZA=+—8"
ZERBERAARZ ST AZEAAERER
FEITESAKER-

//IL ar =

DFESH

RIB—tF+_A=+—B AEELEEM
BAFEABZEREELEREBEA(ZT—X
FE)
FRE-—REF_AZEBERERSREER
EMBBEZAVEFEEE TEEAS =ML
BE=REL (ZT—RF HE)-
BERBEEBERBEE
AEEIZENEeMIARERTLEAMEE &

BEFERER RekERFH -ZF2RITA
MEIZENRAAEENKERE - AEBRAS
BEMeHMEENABER WEHFRUETLES
ENERE BEEREKEES-
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. I RBREEBEREBER (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group
introduces prudent strategies on its risk management. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to
the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

Management does not anticipate any significant impact
resulting from the changes in interest rates because most
of the Group’s loans as at the end of the reporting period
were at fixed interest rates which have no significant
impact on cash flow interest rate risk.

If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest
rate of bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated operating results would
decreasel/increase by approximately RMB22.5 million
(2016: RMB13.6 million), and there would be no impact
on other components of the consolidated equity, except
for retained profits, of the Group.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. I RBREEBEEREBR (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (b) FhHE B

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
These exposures arise from sales by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 47% (2016: 56%) of the Group’s sales
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States (“US”) dollar exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss
before tax.

Effect on loss before tax

AEEHBRXZEERR -ZERBRKE L
BEMABEMOEEEUINEEETT
HIBHE - REBHETL47% (ZT—XF:
56% ) AETIHE MK L BN EEE R A
SN EHEEHE -

TRERNREHRAEERHAERE
B A B AR T B R T T
A BB B BB -

HEHAIERE T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% 3 T E 38 N3% (13,670) (77,709)
Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% % T I O 3% 13,670 77,709
(c) Credit risk (c) EERMR

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited
with state-owned banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the Group’s trade
receivables are widely dispersed among different
customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21.

T EFFERE

AEEEETEERR - AEERENES
SEVIEFRAPERERBRT

FIANEGE M BARRRNE B K H A &K
EMEEMREEEYNETESREE
EHEREENEANEERR -NEBEEE
MHEEAEERRNEREE -

ERNASEERERTREERFNE=
TEARS WBAELER - AR AEE
BZRYEREZOMNTIRARTS  BAE
BYEEREREERR-

ERAKEREZREERFIAEAZEER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

40. MR EEEERBEK (&)

d) RBELER

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and
other borrowings with debt maturities spreading over
a range of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s
outstanding borrowing obligation is not exposed to
excessive repayment risk in any one year. Due to the
capital intensive nature of the Group’s businesses, the
Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit
lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its
ability to obtain external financing to meet its committed
future capital expenditure. With regard to its future
capital commitments and other financing requirements,
the Group has already obtained banking facilities
with several banks of up to an amount of RMB3,201
million as at 31 December 2017, of which an amount of
approximately RMB2,685 million has been utilised.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

AEEMERER MBEEBIHAZE TR
MEBRITEEMEE BRSEESERH
MENABERE EMERASE M KE
ENBEEBETAN - FIrEAZBEN
EERR ARNANEEEBNERT ST
AEERREFEHRE RERRBNRRD
RERBEZER-

AEBNTHECTEZRBEHERERR
MBS RANEMEHEMSEE URR
BHRELBENTEABARENEARMAX
MeE N -ERAEEBKBERFREMEA
MEFE - HE-_ZT—+tF+=ZA=+—
B AESBEENBEZRBITRBEARYE
3,201,000,000C I EEFEE - AR EEHAL
AR #2,685,000,0007T °

RBEHR AEBERE T AR K
TRABENIHERNT

=

31 December 2017
—E—tH+-A=1+-—H

Less than Over

On demand 1 year 1 year Total

RER LPR—F —FBE Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR® T AR®T ARBT T

Trade and bills payables BORNERRENZE - 670,349 - 670,349

Other payables H{th & 5018 = 452,883 = 452,883
Interest-bearing bank HERITREMEE

and other borrowings - 3,501,679 2,609,260 6,110,939

Fixed rate bonds and notes  FE&EH KZI& - 494,397 185,565 679,962

- 5,119,308 2,794,825 7,914,133
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. R REEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBES R (&)

31 December 2016
—E-RE+-A=+—H

Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RER DR —F —FUE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARBETRT ARBETET ARETE

Trade and bills payables BHENERRENER - 790,348 - 790,348
Other payables H A FE 5B - 264,344 - 264,344
Interest-bearing bank FERITREMEE

and other borrowings - 4,462,638 1,812,130 6,274,768
Fixed rate bonds ERER - 119,655 513,438 633,093

- 5,636,985 2,325,568 7,962,553
(e) Capital management (e) EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital REBEAEENTIEZEERERAER
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BREEENENREBRERN LT - UIHHE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy ¥B A ERREERAL

capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. I RBREEBEREBER (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXEE (#)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEENBEEABLRERERN ZILX
is total debts divided by total assets, and is defined to REBBRINAEE TERABENIER
include payables incurred nor in the ordinary course of BEBBETEEANENRBE - REKBE
business. Total debts include interest-bearing bank and FERRITEEMEEREEGEHFEER R
other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes. The WEHRNEERGBLENT
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Interest-bearing bank and other AERITREMES
borrowings (note 25) (MF3E25) 5,212,880 5,764,840
Fixed rate bonds and notes (note 29) FEEFRERE (HiF29) 608,418 584,520
Total debts BE 5,821,298 6,349,360
Total assets BEE 10,153,096 10,955,826
Gearing ratio EEBELE 57.3% 58.0%

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. HEHEEHE

On 2 February 2018, the Group entered into a capital injection
agreement and a loan agreement with an independent
third party. Pursuant to the capital injection agreement, the
independent third party acquired 1% of the equity interest in a
subsidiary of the Group at the consideration of approximately
HK$15.65 million. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the
independent third party agreed to provide a loan to the Group
in the amount of RMB1.68 billion for a period of three years
bearing interest rate of 11.25% per annum for the first two
years and 10.25% per annum for the third year. The loan was
received subsequently on 9 March 2018 and 12 March 2018.

On 12 February 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
with the independent third party in relation to the cooperation
to facilitate the change of the use of the land held by a
subsidiary of the Group from “industrial” to “residential and
commercial”’, and the disposal of an aggregate of 59% of the
equity interest in the subsidiary.
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. AR 2 M BRR K

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the ARARRMERARZMBRRARER DT
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2 ®RE 922,759 922,759
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 922,759 922,759
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIB -~ e K E A FE UK IE 8,436 119
Due from subsidiaries [ N ENEIES 1,459,521 1,219,967
Cash and bank balances R e RIRTT 48R 5,188 50
Total current assets mBEERE 1,473,145 1,220,136
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBBE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings A ERIT R EME R 324,824 -
Other payables and accruals Hitb R RBREREA 8,503 5,495
Due to subsidiaries JE A~ B 2 R RIE 64,895 -
Fixed rate bonds and notes TEBEFLERE 467,821 87,911
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 866,043 93,406
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 607,102 1,126,730
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRDER 1,529,861 2,049,489
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES B EE
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEBEHFMEE 140,597 496,609
Total non-current liabilities ERBAELRE 140,597 496,609
Net assets BEFE 1,389,264 1,552,880
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) B () 1,300,408 1,464,024
Total equity 1 48 5 1,389,264 1,552,880
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42, AR 8 2 AR R &k ()
COMPANY (continued)
Note: B EE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAZEERENT :
Exchange
Share  Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
B’ 195 E BB R2itErR EXRBHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTET AR®BTRT ARETT ARBTET ARETT

At 1 January 2016 R-ZZ—XR"F—HA—A8 824,219 1,712,731 (158,582) (53,548) 2,324,820
Total comprehensive REE2EBRA
income/(loss) for the year (BE)%E - - (901,671) 40,875 (860,796)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=-A=+—8 824,219 1,712,731 (1,060,253) (12,673) 1,464,024
Total comprehensive AFEEEEEER
loss for the year - - (125,229) (38,387) (163,616)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-A=+—~ 824,219 1,712,731 (1,185,482) (51,060) 1,300,408
43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. #HEM B ®RE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for PHBRRENRZZE—N\F=ZA=-+\HEESTE
issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018. e R R -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFYBHER

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MHERBE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities REEBRTXMEMSEOELEFRBERENRFE
of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis MEAMEEREERAGHRENT:

set out in the note below is as follows:

Results E¥4

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BHLHFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
22—+ ZT-RF ZT-RF ZT-NF ZT—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETRE

Revenue WA 873,293 1,443,487 2,539,178 2,679,188 2,027,057
Cost of sales HERA (815,182)  (1,361,900)  (2,131,965)  (2,367,575)  (1,714,113)
Gross Profit EH 58,111 81,587 407,213 311,613 312,944
Other income and gains Hp WA Rz 140,553 37,564 29,221 125,840 222,098
Selling and distribution expenses 46 & 7 4% (107,330) (144,423) (171,695) (139,232) (131,511)
Administrative expenses THER (475,632) (470,977) (439,991) (453,637) (337,537)
Other expenses Hin B A (12,873) (105,283) (17,469) (38,156) (6,518)
Exchange gain/(loss), net bE 5 Wz (B518) 38 (44,121) (86,417) (53,558) 1,850 -
Finance costs AR (426,286) (237,142) (237,111) (260,365) (173,777)
Impairment of property, plant and #1% - B = KR & U K&

equipment and goodwill EEZRE (18,006) (516,250) - - -
Fair value gains on BREMEZ A FER

investment properties - - 627,882 99,587 196,501
Share of a loss of a joint venture [E{F—fA & QD REE (2,779) (1,460) (582) (263) (299)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF (BE) (888,363)  (1,442,801) 143,910 (352,763) 81,901
Income tax (expense)/credit Frs® (i) /% 14,608 (56,197) (118,399) (5,914) (40,430)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (F8E) (873,755)  (1,498,998) 25,511 (358,677) 41,471

Other comprehensive income/ FRNEMEARAS
(loss) for the year, net of tax (B18) (MkHE) 153,862 (133,018) (94,725) (2,189) 1,175,934

Total comprehensive income/ FREZERA (FE)
(loss) for the year o5 (719,893)  (1,632,016) (69,214)  (360,866) 1,217,405

Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) & EF,/ (E#E)(ARE) RMBAR#% RMBAR® RMBAR® RMBAR® RMBAR®E
— basic and diluted —HEARR#EE (0.86) 7T (1.48) T 0.027C (0.36) 7T 0.047C
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T FEIBEHRE
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
31 December
+=BA=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F —ZT—RXF —ET—FHF ZZ-NF =—T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT AR®TT AREBTRT AR®BTR
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,986,437 7,140,362 7,872,635 7,429,301 6,320,686
Current assets TEAE 4,166,659 3,815,464 4,200,730 4,032,307 4,653,455
Current liabilities mEAE (6,333,616)  (6,539,519)  (4,594,486)  (4,778,993)  (4,221,202)
Non-current liabilities FRBAR (2,973,415)  (2,848,421)  (4,278,977)  (3,413,499)  (3,133,870)
Total Equity R 846,065 1,567,886 3,199,902 3,269,116 3,619,069
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